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Abbreviation Description 

AEL Atmospheric Emission License 

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 

AQMP Air Quality Management Plan 

AQO Air Quality Officer 

CAE Chief Audit Executive 

CWDM Cape Winelands District Municipality 

CWDMC Cape Winelands Disaster Management Centre  

CW-RSEDS 

EEM 

EPWP 

Cape Winelands Regional Socio-Economic Development Strategy 

Employee Efficiency Monitoring  

Expanded Public Works Programme 

ERM Enterprise Risk Management 

FARMCO  Fraud and Risk Management Committee 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

HIV 

IDDRR 

Human Immunodeficiency Virus 

International Day for Risk Reduction  

IDP Integrated Development Plan 

IT 

JOC 

KPI 

Information Technology 

Joint Operations Committee  

Key Performance Indicator 

MFMA Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 

2003) 

MHS Municipal Health Services 

MIG 

MSA 

MSAT 

NEMA 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) 

Multi Sectoral Action Team 

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) 

NGO Non-governmental organisation 

PGWC Provincial Government of the Western Cape 

ABBREVIATIONS 
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CHAPTER 1 
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CHAPTER 1ABBREVIATIONS 
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PTIG 

PTNOG 

SALGA 

Public Transport Infrastructure Grant 

Public Transport Network Operation Grant 

South African Local Government Association 

SANS South African National Standards 

SCM 

SDBIP 

Supply Chain Management 

Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan 

SMME Small, medium and micro-sized enterprise 

SPLUMA Spatial Planning Land Use Management Act, 2013 (Act No. 16 of 2013) 

WCG: DCAS Western Cape Government: Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport 

WCG: DEA&DP 

WCG: DEDAT 

Western Cape Government: Department of Environmental Affairs and 

Development Planning 

Western Cape Government: Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

WCG: DSD Western Cape Government: Department of Social Development 

WCG: DLG 

WCG: DT&PW 

QCTO 

Western Cape Government: Department of Local Government 

Western Cape Government: Department of Transport and Public Works 

Quality Council for Trades and Occupations  
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1.3 HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE 2021/2022 FINANCIAL YEAR – SERVICE DELIVERY1.2

 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S FOREWORD1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 

1.2 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S FOREWORD1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 

 

 

 

Dear Cape Winelands Resident 

It is with great pride and humility that I present the Annual Report of 

the Cape Winelands District Municipality for 2022/2023 financial year. 

This report serves as a testament to the collective efforts and 

achievements of our municipality in the pursuit of progress, 

prosperity, and community well-being. 

Over the course of the financial year, we have faced unique 

challenges that tested our resilience and adaptability as a 

municipality. However, amidst these challenges, our commitment to 

serving the needs of our diverse communities has remained 

unwavering. We have strived to meet the expectations of our 

residents and to deliver on our promises with determination and 

dedication. 

In this report, we showcase the outcomes of our collective endeavours across various 

departments. From infrastructure development and financial resilience to social empowerment 

and environmental sustainability, we have worked tirelessly to make a positive impact on the 

lives of our residents. 

We have received nine consecutive “Clean Audits”, which illustrates the dedication of all officials 

to diligently deliver services in order to build a “Unified Cape Winelands of Excellence. Our 

commitment to sound financial management and accountability has been a guiding principle in 

all our initiatives. We recognise the importance of responsible governance, and under my 

leadership will ensure that we will utilise our budget in an effectively and transparent manner.  

We acknowledge that none of our achievements would have been possible without the 

unwavering support and cooperation of our dedicated Cape Winelands District Municipality 

team and valued stakeholders. I extend my heartfelt appreciation to our municipal officials, 

councillors, community leaders, and all partners who have played an indispensable role in 

driving progress in our district. 

I also want to express my gratitude to the residents of the Cape Winelands District Municipality. 

Your trust and engagement during our Mayoral Mondays and processes during public 

participation meetings have been instrumental in shaping Integrated Development Plan that 

informed our budget policies and programmes; to meet the evolving needs of our communities. 

As we celebrate our achievements, we are mindful of the challenges that our residents face 

daily, like the ever-rising cost of living and ongoing load-shedding affecting our economy and 

ordinary households. I am, however, confident that by fostering a spirit of collaboration and 

continuous innovation, we will overcome any obstacles and continue to create a dignified life for 

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORDCHAPTER 1 

 

1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 

1.2 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S FOREWORD1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S 

FOREWORDCHAPTER 1 

 

1.1 EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORDCHAPTER 1 



 
2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

 

10 | P a g e  

all. CWDM remains committed to play its role in mitigating the negative impact of load shedding 

on community safety, economic growth and investor confidence on our district. We are 

continuously working on measures to ensure our residents get the services they deserve 

through a working Joint District and Metro Approach (JDMA) and a Whole of Society Approach 

(WOSA) as part of our commitment.   

 

This Annual Report reflects our commitment to transparency, accountability a whole of society 

approach, and inclusive governance. It provides an opportunity to share our successes, learn 

from our experiences, and set a direction for bold steps to continue growth and dignity for all. 

Our district is widely respected and valued for rendering services within our mandate and we 

will continue to build on this.  

I encourage all stakeholders to read this report and gain insights into our journey. Together, let 

us forge ahead with renewed determination and a shared vision of “A unified Cape Winelands 

of excellence for sustainable development. 

Thank you for your unwavering support and trust in our political leadership. Together, we will 

build a stronger community for generations to come. 

 

 

 

ALD (DR) HELENA VON SCHLICHT 

EXECUTIVE MAYOR 
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW – 2022/2023 

R' 000 

Details Approved Budget Final Budget Actual  

Income       

Grants (Operational) 257.711.131  257.711.131  256.947.947  

Taxes, levies and tariffs                       -                         -  
                            

-  

Other 201.669.372  201.669.372  193.343.541  

Sub-total 459.380.503  459.380.503  450.291.488  

Less Expenditure -459.380.503  -459.380.503  -400.541.254  

Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary 
allocations) (National / Provincial and 
District) 

2.123.365  2.123.365  816.856  

Transfers and subsidies - capital (in-kind)                       -                         -  
                            

-  

Net Total          2.123.365           2.123.365  50.567.090  

 

 

 
 
On 23 June 2022, the Municipal Manager approved the revised staff establishment of the Cape 

Winelands District Municipality (CWDM). The process to develop job descriptions for new, 

approved posts will now commence. The job descriptions will firstly be submitted to the Internal 

TASK Job Evaluation Committee who will establish whether the job descriptions meet the 

criteria as specified in the approved Revised Internal TASK Job Evaluation Policy, which was 

approved by Council under item C.15.1 on 26 May 2022. Secondly, the job descriptions will be 

submitted to the Regional TASK Job Evaluation Committee for job evaluation and thereafter to 

the SALGA Provincial Audit Committee for auditing. The implementation of the grading 

outcomes will only take place once the Municipal Manager received and signed off the outcomes 

report from the SALGA Provincial Audit Committee. The majority of posts on the staff 

establishment of the CWDM have approved job descriptions. 

 

The Regional TASK Job Evaluation Unit established under the leadership of the CWDM, which 

includes participating municipalities within the area of jurisdiction of the CWDM, evaluated a 

total of 418 posts during the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, which were subsequently 

submitted to the SALGA Provincial Audit Committee. 
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Council adopted the Human Resource Management Strategy and plans on 29 June 2017 and 

the fourteen (14) Strategic Human Resources plans are assessed quarterly or bi-quarterly. 

 

During the 2022/2023 financial year, the following new and revised policies were developed. 
All the policies were circulated to the extended management team and to labour for their input. 
The policies below were approved by Council respectively at Item C.15.1 on 26 January 2022, 
C.21.1 on 25 April 2023 and at Item C.15.3 on 25 May 2023: 
 

1.  Revised Telecoms and Cellular Phone Allowance Policy 
 
2. Substance Abuse Policy 
 
3. Revised Employee Study Aid and Leave Policy   
 
4. Revised Recruitment & Selection Policy      
 
5. Revised Overtime Policy  
 
6. Employment Equity Policy 
 
7. Scarce Skills & Retention Policy     
 
8. Secondment &Transfer Policy 
 
 
  



 
2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

 

15 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Under the strong political leadership of the Democratic Alliance and with sound 

intergovernmental relations and administrative governance, the Cape Winelands District 

Municipality (CWDM) ensures public accountability and participation by all citizens and role-

players in its area of jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE  

The CWDM ensures that all political parties represented in Council are also represented on the 

various committees of Council. This enhances a stable political environment and buy-in from all 

parties with regard to recommendations/resolutions and ensures that Council applies its mind 

to all matters. 

 

Section 79 Committees of the CWDM consist of the following: 

 

• Rules Committee; and 

• Municipal Public Accounts Committee (established in terms of section 79A of the Local 

Government: Municipal Structures Act 117 of 1998, as amended by Act 3 of 2021). 

 

The main focus of Section 79 Committees is to ensure the effective and efficient performance 

of any of the municipal Council’s functions or the exercising of any of the municipal council’s 

powers. 

 

The following statutory committees have been established by the CWDM as required by 

legislation: 

 

• Training Committee;  

• Local Labour Forum; and 

• Employment Equity Committee 

 

MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE (MPAC) 

 

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) of the CWDM is established in terms of 

Section 79 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998). For 

transparency and ethical reasons, the chairperson is appointed from the membership of the 

political parties represented in the CWDM, other than the majority party. 

 

The MPAC considers various matters, as contained in Chapter 9 of the Annual Report, and is 

considered essential to the running and sound political governance of the CWDM. 

 

CHAPTER 2 – GOVERNANCE 
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AUDIT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Section 166(1) of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 

of 2003) (MFMA) states that “each municipality and each municipal entity must have an audit 

committee” and section 166(4)(a) of the MFMA states that “an audit committee must consist of 

at least three persons with appropriate experience”. The Audit Committee of the CWDM is an 

independent advisory body and currently consists of four members from the private sector who 

have been appointed by Council. With reference to the CWDM Audit Charter, the Audit 

Committee assists the Council by providing inputs to ensure effective systems that complement 

service delivery, the safeguarding of municipal assets, the maintenance of financial records, risk 

management, information technology (IT) governance, effective corporate governance, and an 

effective internal control system. The Audit and Performance Committee also investigates 

matters within the scope of the committee’s duties, if referred by Council. 

 

Furthermore, the Audit and Performance Committee provides independent specialist advice on 

financial performance, efficiency and effectiveness, performance management and compliance 

with legislation. 
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POLITICAL STRUCTURE 
 

   
Ald (Dr) H von Schlicht 

Executive Mayor 
Ald M Sampson 

Executive Deputy Mayor 
Ald DD Joubert 

Speaker 

   
Cllr JHP Steyn 
Portfolio Holder: 

Economic Development 

Cllr D Swart 
Portfolio Holder: 

Sport, Arts and Culture 

Ald C Meyer 
Portfolio Holder: 

Disaster Management 

   
Cllr XL Mdemka 
Portfolio Holder: 
Municipal Health 

Ald R Farao 
Portfolio Holder: 

Fire Services 

Cllr WC Petersen 
Portfolio Holder: 

Rural and Social Development 

   
Cllr E Groenewald 

Portfolio Holder: 
Corporate Services 

Cllr GJ Carinus 
Portfolio Holder: 

Infrastructure Services 

Cllr WM Blom 
Whip of Council 

 
 
COUNCILLORS 
 
1 JULY 2022 TO 30 JUNE 2023 
 
Total number of Councillors:   41 
Directly elected Councillors:   24 
Proportionally elected Councillors:  17 
 
Attached as Appendix A is a full list of Councillors. 
Attached as Appendix B is a list of committees and committee purposes. 
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POLITICAL DECISION MAKING 
 
1 JULY 2022 TO 30 JUNE 2023 
 
Number of Council resolutions:  110 (all resolutions implemented) 
Number of Mayoral Committee resolutions: Ordinary meetings – 78 
Number of Mayoral Committee resolutions:                      Confidential meetings – 17 
Number of Mayoral Committee resolutions not tabled before Council: None 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Municipal Manager primarily serves as chief custodian of service delivery and ensures the 

implementation of political priorities. During the 2022/2023 financial year, the Municipal 

Manager provided strategic and management leadership in various fields and projects.  

 

Good governance has eight major characteristics, namely participatory, consensus-orientated, 

accountable, transparent, responsive, effective and efficient, equitable and inclusive and 

follows the rule of law. It assures that corruption is minimised, the views of minorities are taken 

into account and that the voices of the most vulnerable in society are heard in decision making. 

It is also responsive to the present and future needs of society. 

 

The Municipal Manager identified the following focus areas: 

 

• Basic service delivery that covers, inter alia, the effective management and maintenance 

of the infrastructure of the district municipality. 

• Social upliftment and economic development as well as establishing an environment that 

is conducive to local economic development and the development of projects and 

strategies. 

• The optimisation of financial resources through efficient financial management. 

• Good governance that includes community participation, effective communication and 

sound municipal administration. 

• The establishment of a safe community through efficient disaster management, fire 

services and environmental health. 

 

Community participation in municipal decision-making is of utmost importance and the Municipal 

Manager encouraged and created conditions for the local community to participate in the affairs 

of the district municipality through Integrated Development Plan (IDP) forums and meetings. 

During the 2022/2023 financial year, all Section 56 positions were filled. Interaction, as well as 

the ability to work with Section 56 appointees as an efficient management team, provided 

professional leadership, proving once again that the district municipality’s human resources are 

our greatest asset. Interaction with the Executive Mayor and Portfolio Councillors has resulted in 

an effective governing body providing sound political leadership, which is essential for successful 

local governance.  

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
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The Municipal Manager had also developed a culture of municipal governance that 

complements formal representative government with a system of participatory governance. As 

such, participation is required in terms of the: 

 

• preparation, implementation and review of the IDP; 

• establishment, implementation and review of the Performance Management System; 

• monitoring and review of performance, including the outcomes and impact of such 

performance; and 

• preparation of the municipal budget. 

 

In terms of section 83(1)(c) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 

(Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA), the Municipal Manager has implemented effective bidding 

structures to minimise the possibility of fraud and corruption. In terms of section 112(1)(m)(i) of 

the MFMA, the Municipal Manager has identified supply chain measures to be enforced to 

combat fraud and corruption, favouritism and unfair and irregular practices. Furthermore, in 

terms of section 115(1) of the MFMA, the Municipal Manager, as the accounting officer, has 

taken steps to ensure mechanisms and separation of duties in the supply chain management 

system to minimise the likelihood of corruption and fraud. 

 

The Municipal Manager has also in terms of sections 165(2)(a) and (b)(iv) of the MFMA 

ensured the effective operation of the Internal Audit Unit. This unit has prepared a risk-based 

audit plan and an internal audit programme for the financial year and has advised the Municipal 

Manager on the implementation of the internal audit plan and matters relating to internal audit, 

internal controls, accounting procedures and practices, risk management, performance 

management and compliance with the MFMA and any other applicable legislation. 

 

As local government has a legal obligation and a political responsibility to ensure regular and 

effective communication with the community, and as statutory enactments all require high 

levels of transparency, accountability, openness, participatory democracy and direct 

communication with the communities, the Municipal Manager ensures that the district 

municipality’s website serves as a tool for community communication. Furthermore, section 75 

of the MFMA requires that municipalities publish key documents and information on their 

websites, including the IDP, the annual budget, adjustment budgets and budget-related 

documents and policies. 

 

In terms of section 83(1) of the MFMA, the Municipal Manager, senior managers, the chief 

financial officer, non-financial managers and other financial officials of a municipality must meet 

the prescribed financial management competency levels that are key to the successful 

implementation of the MFMA. In view of the aforementioned, the Municipal Manager ensured 

that the necessary training was arranged for the officials of the district municipality in order to 

meet the competency levels prescribed in the regulations. The MSA and the Local 

Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations, 2001 require 

municipalities to adopt a performance management system. Once the IDP and budget were 

prepared and approved, the Municipal Manager ensured that the district municipality had 
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prepared its Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) in accordance with the 

MFMA and MFMA Circular 13. The SDBIP indicates performance targets and financial 

performance targets, and assigns responsibility to execute the respective performance targets. 

The district municipality assessed its performance on a regular basis and reported progress 

on performance against set targets to Council on a quarterly basis and ultimately presents the 

annual performance results in this Annual Report.  

 
 
 
 
 
TOP ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE  
 

 
  

 

Mr HF Prins 
Municipal Manager 

   

Mr PA Williams  
Executive Director: 

Community Development 
and Planning Services  

Mr F van Eck 
Executive Director: 
Technical Services 

Ms FA du Raan-
Groenewald 

Chief Financial Officer 
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INTRODUCTION TO COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
RELATIONS 
 
Good cooperative governance and intergovernmental relations are important to the CWDM 

as a sphere of government, due to the fact that the district municipality is often the first, or 

even the only sphere of government that citizens interact with on a regular basis, with specific 

reference to the rural areas. 

 

Public confidence in the CWDM can only be assured by operating according to the requirements 

and spirit of cooperative governance and intergovernmental relations. The district municipality has 

the responsibility to govern its region, taking into account the abovementioned components to 

create an open society for all where results must meet the needs of society while making the best 

use of the limited resources at its disposal. 

 

Intergovernmental relations give effect to good governance according to democratic principles 

and also provide a platform for effective public participation in the region. Through this process, 

the CWDM ensures that members of the public feel they have a stake in the district 

municipality. The district municipality also ensures that all role-players have the opportunity to 

improve or maintain their wellbeing. 

 

 

 
 
The CWDM actively participates in national, provincial, inter-district and local intergovernmental 

structures and takes part in the agenda-setting process to ensure participation. In this regard 

there are both direct and indirect engagement on a political and senior management level. 

 

Through this process and engagements, topics directly linked to the district municipality and 

local municipalities in the area of the CWDM are elevated to a higher level, which ensures 

greater coordination and participation. 

 
The benefits of sound intergovernmental relations at all levels ensure that problems are 

resolved to render a cost-effective service to the community that benefits the region as a whole 

through the elimination of duplication. 

 
 
RELATIONSHIPS WITH MUNICIPAL ENTITIES 
 
No municipal entities. 
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The Cape Winelands District Municipality conducts meetings in collaboration with local 

municipalities situated in the municipal area of jurisdiction. The purpose the public participation 

and stakeholder meetings is to ensure joint planning for the IDP of the Cape Winelands District 

and local municipalities, which assists in strategy formulation for the region. It serves in a 

‘cleaning house’ capacity for transversal issues of development and planning. Such meetings 

afford municipalities, community organisations and provincial departments the opportunity to 

share and communicate information on their current activities and thus facilitates 

intergovernmental planning and budgeting. 

For the public participation process, the Cape Winelands District Municipality took the following 

steps: 

• Posted public invitations on various social media platforms such as Facebook. 

• Advertisements were placed in various local newspapers across the district. 

• IDP- and budget-related documents were placed on the municipal website. 

• Radio interviews (local radio stations) were held to involve the community in the 

process. 

  

PUBLIC MEETINGS 

Communication, participation and forums 

The CWDM and the local municipalities in the district, namely the Drakenstein, Stellenbosch, 

Breede Valley, Witzenberg and Langeberg municipalities, as well as the Western Cape 

Government: Department of Local Government (WCG: DLG) are devoted to building strong 

government institutions that actively promote sustainable and integrated community 

development.  

The District Public Participation Forum and Communication Technical Forum is a consultative 

forum aimed at increasing coordination, integration and communication between these three 

spheres of government through information sharing, dialogue, capacity building and 

consultation on matters of mutual interest. 

WARD COMMITTEES 

The CWDM does not have ward committees as they are a function of local municipalities in the 

district. These committees do however provide valuable support in terms of organising sectors 

and assisting with the mobilisation of citizens for public engagements, given their innate 

knowledge of their communities. It is well known that ward committee members are valuable 

resources for information.  
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COMMENT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD 

IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 

IDP participation and alignment criteria* Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies? Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes 

Does the budget align directly with the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align with the Section 57 Managers? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 outcomes? Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public?  Yes 

Were the four quarterly aligned reports submitted within stipulated timeframes? Yes 
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OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

Through corporate governance, the CWDM converges funds and builds relationships with 

various stakeholders to determine its mission and vision, with the goal of optimising resources 

to promote accountability and cost-effective services to the public. 

 

In view of the fact that corporate governance determines the success or failure of a municipality, 

the CWDM closely monitors its business principles through policy guidelines, risk management 

and political oversight to ensure compliance with the purpose of obtaining a clean audit. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Section 62 of the MFMA states that the accounting officer should take all reasonable steps to 

ensure that the municipality has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of 

financial and risk management and internal control, and to ensure the effective, efficient and 

economical use of the resources of the municipality.  

 

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework aims to ensure that risks that could impede 

the achievement of objectives are managed better and mitigated earlier, thereby improving the 

district municipality’s ability to carry out its mission and achieve its goals.  

 

The Fraud and Risk Management Committee (FARMCO) is guided by a Terms of Reference 

(TOR), which is in compliance with the MFMA. The CWDM’s FARMCO consists of the Municipal 

Manager, Executive Directors, the Director: IDP, Performance and Risk Management, the 

Deputy Director: Performance and Risk Management, current Chairperson of the Audit and 

Performance Committee, and the Chief Audit Executive (CAE).  

 

During the 2022/2023 financial year, the unit was responsible for risk management awareness, 

facilitating quarterly reviews and updating risk registers. Although the Deputy Director: 

Performance and Risk Management is responsible for the coordination of risk management in 

the organisation, management took ownership of risks and the mitigation thereof. 

 

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy 
 
Section 83(c) of the MSA refers to the implementation of effective bidding structures to minimise 

the possibility of fraud and corruption, while section 112(1)(m)(i) of the MFMA identifies supply 

chain measures to be enforced to combat fraud and corruption, favouritism and unfair and 

irregular practices.  

 

Section 115(1) of the MFMA states that the accounting officer must take steps to ensure 

mechanisms and separation of duties in a supply chain management system to minimise the 

likelihood of corruption and fraud. 

 

The CWDM has adopted an attitude of zero tolerance towards fraudulent and corrupt activities. 
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT  
 
Overview of Supply Chain Management (SCM) 

 

Prescribed SCM processes and procedures are in place and maintained, as per sections 110 to 

119 of the MFMA and the Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005. The Supply Chain 

Management Policy was initially adopted on 23 January 2006, and was revised for a ninth time 

on 6 February 2023. It is fully compliant with National Treasury’s prescripts. 

In order to continue to fulfil the needs identified in the CWDM’s Integrated Development Plan 

(IDP) together with an enhanced demand management planning process, an annual 

procurement plan in respect of the 2023/2024 budget has been compiled in the third quarter of 

the 2022/2023 financial year. The plan contains key target dates for each planned procurement 

initiative and was approved by Council during the approval of the final 2023/2024 Annual Budget. 

In addition to this, the municipality introduced an initiative that is a concept of an Operational 

Business Plan that outlines the procurement activities and spending targets intended during 

coming financial year. 

Enhanced controls have been implemented to ensure that all specifications for goods and 

services are complete and unbiased to promote the five pillars of procurement as set out in the 

Constitution. 

 

The procurement processes of the municipality are centralised and all requests for procurement 

are actioned by the Supply Chain Management Unit. This serves as an effective control measure 

to ensure that processes are properly executed in accordance with the requirements of the 

different threshold values of procurement. It also combats the deliberate splitting of goods or 

services into parts or items of a lesser value merely to avoid complying with the threshold 

requirements. Requests for procurement in excess of R30 000 are advertised on the municipal 

notice boards, official municipal website and in the applicable media in the instance of 

competitive bids (in excess of R200 000). The subsequent outcome of these procurement 

processes is timeously published on the official municipal website. 

 

The municipality also maintains a database of current and prospective suppliers and 

accreditation data are regularly updated.   

 

LEGAL SERVICES 

The Directorate: Legal Services is for strategic reasons located within the 

Office of the Municipal Manager.  

 

Legal Services’ main funct ion is to provide an effective and eff icient legal 

support service to Council in order to enable it to deliver on its 

constitut ional mandate and to manage and l imit the legal r isks of the 

Distr ict Municipal ity.  

 



 
2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

 

27 | P a g e  

Legal Services play a major role in ensuring that the decisions taken by 

Council and its Structures, as well as the Administrat ion, are legally 

compliant and that legal support is available to the various line 

departments as and when they require i t.  

 

  
 

This inevitably decreases the legal r isks to which the Distr ict Municipal ity is 

exposed in its decision-making bodies which ult imately promotes service 

delivery. 

 

LEGAL DIRECTION, OPINIONS AND ADVICE PROVIDED ON QUERIES 

RECEIVED AND LEGAL CORRESPONDENCE GENERALLY REFERS TO 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS MADE TO A THIRD PARTY, BY, OR ON 

BEHALF OF, A CLIENT REGARDING A LEGAL CASE OR CONTROVERSY  

 

Legal advice/opinion/direct ion involves analysing and considering a set of 

facts as it applies to a specif ic situation and advising a person to take a 

specif ic course of action based on the applicable law.  
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LEGAL IMPLICATIONS PROVIDED ON ITEMS OF COUNCIL MEETINGS, 

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEETINGS, LLF AND TRAINING COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS AND BID ADJUDICATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 

Members of the Municipal Council  and its 

Committees  have the responsibi l ity to take 

informed decisions during the decision-making 

process of a meeting and should therefore be 

properly informed in order to apply their minds.  

In order to ensure that a val id decision is taken, 

it  is very important to careful ly peruse and 

consider the implications provided on each item 

that indicate relevant factors that must be taken 

into account, especially in view of the Promotion 

of Administrative Just ice Act,  2000 

(Act No. 3 of 2000), which states that 

administrat ive act ion means any decision taken 

by an organ of state when exercising a power in 

terms of the Constitut ion of the Republic of 

South Afr ica, or exercising a public power or 

performing a public funct ion in terms of an 

empowering provision.  
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In order to ensure that a val id decision is taken, it  is very important to 

careful ly peruse and consider the implicat ions provided on each item that 

indicate relevant factors that must be taken into account, especial ly in view 

of the Promotion of Administrat ive Justice Act, 2000 (Act  No. 3 of 2000), 

which states that administrative act ion means any decision taken by an 

organ of state when exercising a power in terms of the Const itut ion of the 

Republic of South Afr ica, or exercising a public power or performing  a public 

funct ion in terms of an empowering provision.  
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DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS  

 

The Cape Winelands Distr ict Municipality has 

workplace rules as well  as a Code of Conduct 

for Municipal Staff Members that all employees 

must adhere to. Where an employee allegedly 

transgresses such rules or the Code of Conduct, 

the Distr ict Municipality may inst itute steps in 

accordance with the Discipl inary Procedure 

Collective Agreement that is a product of 

col lect ive bargaining, and the application 

thereof is peremptory. Discipl inary action is not 

a punit ive measure, but a correct ive one and 

sanctions imposed for misconduct are intended 

to deter future repetit ion of unacceptable 

behaviour.  
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DRAFTING AND VETTING AGREEMENTS  

 

The draft ing of agreements may not be the most excit ing activity, but it  is 

def initely worth the t ime and effort.  Draft ing is the  process of creat ing a 

contract or an agreement that is legally binding on the parties. In contracts 

the details matter, and every word, sentence, and paragraph is cr it ical to a 

contract's legality and interpretat ion.  I t takes precision and t ime to create 

an enforceable contract  that both sides are comfortable with.  
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Legal vett ing of agreements is the process of evaluat ing documents 

thoroughly and crit ical ly in compliance with the law.  A thorough, careful and 

crit ical analysis of the agreement's contents is part of legal contract vett ing.  

The process of draft ing and the vett ing of agreements plays a very important 

role to mit igate legal r isks.  

 

 

 

REVIEW OF COUNCIL’S SYSTEM OF DELEGATIONS  

 

In terms of sect ion 59(1) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 

32 of 2000, a municipal council must develop a system of delegation that will  

maximise administrat ive and operat ional eff iciency and provide for adequate 

checks and balances .   

 

Council ’s current System of Delegations, reconfirmed by Council on 2 

December 2021, was due for a comprehensive review and the Municipal 

Manager established a Delegations Task Team, consist ing of 

representatives from each of the three departments as well  as other relevant 

off icials, to commence with this process during January 2023 . The review 

has subsequently been concluded and the reviewed System of Delegations 

wil l be tabled at Council dur ing the 2023/24 f inancial year for approval.  
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INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

Refer to Appendix 1 for more detail. 

 

COMMENT ON BY-LAWS 

 

No new by-laws were promulgated. 
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3.1.1 Predetermined objectives 

As a point of departure, it is the duty of a municipality to establish, develop, and maintain a 

sound performance management system as prescribed in terms of sections 38 to 40 of the 

Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA). In terms of section 46(1)(a) to (c) of the 

MSA, a municipality must prepare for each financial year a performance report reflecting (a) the 

performance of the municipality and of each external service provider during that financial year; 

(b) a comparison of the performances referred to in paragraph (a) with targets set for and 

performances in the previous financial year; and (c) measures taken to improve performance. 

The core components that underscore the performance management system established by 

the municipality, as prescribed by section 41 of the MSA, are integral to the information reported 

upon by the municipality. Furthermore, the reflection of the key performance indicators and 

performance targets in the Integrated Development Plan is prescribed in terms of section 26(i) 

and is aligned to the predetermined objectives as reflected in the approved 2022/2023 – 

2026/2027 IDP. 

 

The table below illustrates the alignment between the strategic objectives and the 

predetermined objectives as per the approved IDP. 
 

No. Strategic Objective No. Predetermined Objectives 

1. 

Creating an environment and 
forging partnerships that ensure 
social and economic development 
of all communities, including the 
empowerment of the poor in the 
Cape Winelands District. 

1.1 
Provide a comprehensive and equitable MHS including AQM 
throughout the CWDM. 

1.2 
Ensure coordination of multidisciplinary and sectoral disaster risk 
reduction through integrated institutional capacity for Disaster Risk 
Management, Disaster Risk Assessment and Response and Recovery. 

1.3 
Effective planning and coordination of specialised firefighting services 
throughout the CWDM. 

1.4 

To facilitate environmentally sustainable economic development 
planning through the development and maintenance of strategic 
partnerships, investment attraction, retention and opportunities, SMME 
support and development, skills development and information 
knowledgement. 

1.5 

To facilitate, ensure, and monitor the development and empowerment 
of the poor by graduating people out of poverty, social inclusion and 
improving the livelihood of the poor; vulnerable groups; rural farm 
dwellers; and rural communities. 

2. 

Promoting sustainable 
infrastructure services and a 
transport system which  fosters 
social and economic opportunities. 

2.1 
To comply with the administrative and financial conditions of the PGWC 
roads agency function agreement. 

2.2 To implement sustainable infrastructure services. 

2.3 To increase levels of mobility in the Cape Winelands District. 

2.4 To improve infrastructure services for rural dwellers. 

2.5 To implement an effective ICT support system. 

3. 
Providing effective and efficient 
financial and strategic support 
services to the CWDM. 

3.1 To facilitate and enhance sound financial support services. 

3.2 
To strengthen and promote participative and accountable IGR and 
governance. 

3.3 To facilitate and enhance sound strategic support services. 
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3.1.2 Framework for managing performance information: Key concepts 
 

When monitoring and assessing performance outcomes and the related impact, it is 

necessary to consider potential government interventions and the related consequences 

that may result therefrom. Such considerations should be timeously identified and 

monitored in order to mitigate potential risks and where risks exist, for these to be 

effectively managed through corrective actions. Through effective planning, budgeting 

and implementation of predefined activities that are appropriately monitored, a 

municipality is able to successfully achieve the desired results in order to deliver against 

its designated mandate.  

 

 

 

3.1.3 Planning, budgeting and reporting 
 
The performance information reported in the Annual Performance Report and correlating 

documentation enables Council as well as the public to hold the municipality accountable 

and to effect necessary transparency. 
 

In addition, performance information should be available to management at each stage 

of the planning, budgeting and reporting cycle so that they can adopt a results-based 

approach to managing service delivery. This approach promotes effective planning and 

manages a focus on desired results, as well as manages inputs and activities to achieve 

these results. 
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3.1.4 Financial performance per strategic objective 
 

The tables detailed below provide an overview of the operating, capital, and project budget 

amounts at an SO level for 2021/2022 (budget and actual); 2022/2023 (budget and actual) and 

2023/2024 (budget). 

 

 

 

 

Project Budget 

SO 2021/2022 Budget 2021/2022 Actual 2022/2023 Budget 2022/2023 Actual 2023/2024 Budget 

1 
 R         

13.931.138  
 R              

12.631.392  
 R              

15.507.678  
 R              

13.887.009  
 R              

17.610.952  

2 
 R               

3.335.500  
 R               

1.298.386  
 R               

8.634.500  
 R               

4.792.130  
 R               

9.833.000  

3 
 R                             
-  

 R                             
-  

 R                             
-  

 R                             
-  

 R                             
-  

Total 
 R              

17.266.638  
 R              

13.929.778  
 R              

24.142.178  
 R              

18.679.138  
 R              

27.443.952  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SO 2021/2022 Budget 2021/2022 Actual 2022/2023 Budget 2022/2023 Actual 2023/2024 Budget

1  R            148.565.662  R            134.251.152  R            160.042.653  R            139.064.781  R            165.653.671 

2  R            147.103.662  R            130.732.905  R            170.209.174  R            151.171.573  R            175.401.156 

3  R            124.506.016  R            112.888.738  R            129.128.676  R            110.304.896  R            134.129.614 

Total  R            420.175.340  R            377.872.795  R            459.380.503  R            400.541.250  R            475.184.441 

Operating Budget

SO 2021/2022 Budget 2021/2022 Actual 2022/2023 Budget 2022/2023 Actual 2023/2024 Budget

1  R               6.919.827  R               1.031.287  R              14.307.003  R              12.232.579  R              35.397.117 

2  R               6.261.555  R                  622.661  R              15.413.164  R               7.211.624  R              69.866.700 

3  R               2.325.597  R               1.479.454  R               1.367.164  R               1.291.861  R               2.405.100 

Total  R              15.506.979  R               3.133.402  R              31.087.331  R              20.736.064  R            107.668.917 

Capital Budget
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2021/2022 

SO 
Original 
number 
of KPIs 

Number of 
KPIs post-
adjustment 

Zero 
performance 

Under-
performance 

Achieved and 
overachieved 

Delivery as a 
percentage 
2021/2022 

1 12 12 0 1 11 92% 

2 11 9 2 2 5 56% 

3 19 18 0 3 15 83% 

Total 42 39 2 6 31 79% 

 

2022/2023 

SO 
Original 
number 
of KPIs 

Number of 
KPIs post- 
adjustment 

Zero 
performance 

Under- 
performance 

Achieved and 
overachieved 

Delivery as a 
percentage 
2022/2023 

1 12 11 0 2 9  82% 

2 12 11 1 5 5 45% 

3 19 19 1 5 13 68% 

Total 43 41 2 12 27 66% 

 

 3.2.1 Cape Winelands District Organisational Key Performance Indicators 

The Organisational KPIs were revised during the Adjustment Budget that took place in February 

2023. At the mentioned Adjustment Budget, the following changes were made: 
o Certain targets were adjusted to zero, as reaching the initial target was no longer 

feasible given the time required to implement. 

o Quarterly performance targets were amended to align with adjusted budget figures 

(where applicable).  

 

3.2.2 Cape Winelands District Detailed Organisational Key Performance 

Indicators 

The table below serves as the legend to indicate whether a KPI has achieved (1) 

overperformance; (2) target achieved; (3) target almost achieved; (4) underperformance; or (5) 

zero performance. 

Legend 

Overperformance >100% 

Target achieved 100% 

Target almost achieved 80 to 99% 

Underperformance 1 to 79% 

Zero performance 0% 
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National Government has identified five key performance areas (KPAs) for local government: 

• Service delivery and infrastructure development; 

• Local economic development; 

• Municipal financial viability and management; 

• Municipal transformation and organisational development; and 

• Good governance and public participation. 
 
3.3.1 The CWDM contributed to the national key performance areas as follows: 

 

KPA 1: Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

Roads Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Kilometres of road responsible for (provincial 
de-proclamation and maintenance contracts) 

Kilometres 3 601 3 601 

Kilometres of roads maintained and 
rehabilitated (provincial de-proclamation and 
maintenance contracts) 

Kilometres 3 601 3 601 

Total amount of operating budget allocated to 
road maintenance 

Rand 
 

R 109 352 941 
 

R 129 841 118 

Total amount of operating budget spent on 
road maintenance 

Rand R 101 830 995 R 117 861 209 

KPA 2: Local Economic Development 

Economic growth Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Total rand value of procurement transactions Rand R 88 891 618 R 122 788 233 

Total rand value of contracts awarded to 
SMMEs 

Rand R 85 939 240 R 116 127 487 

Total rand value of contracts awarded to BEE 
suppliers 

Rand R 52 832 590 R 74 663 942 

Total rand value of contracts awarded to 
women 

Rand R 20 640 438 R 48 119 913 

Total rand value of contracts awarded to youth Rand R 4 943 517 R 7 080 019 

KPA 3: Municipal Financial Viability and Management 

Financial viability Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Total operating transfers (grant and subsidy 
income) 

Rand 
R 254 213 310 R 257 457 299 

Total operating expenditure Rand R 367 153 188 R 388 407 927 

Capital budget spend in year Rand R 3 133 402 R 20 736 064 

Council-approved capital budget in year Rand R 15 506 979 R 31 087 331 

Total outstanding customer debt as at 30 June Rand R 0 R 24 323 

Current assets as at 30 June Rand R 844 420 699 R 706 923 839 

Current liabilities as at 30 June Rand R 48 714 593   R 54 802 063 

Total revenue Rand R 401 867 501 R 438 975 017 

3.3 NATIONAL KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS 2022/2023 
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Revenue from grants Rand R 253 274 643 R 257 206 294 

Debt service payments (finance charges) Rand R 13 896 000 R 13 454 000 

Salaries budget (including benefits) Rand R 230 972 967 R 247 764 678 

Total operating budget Rand R 420 175 340 R 459 380 503 

Municipal systems improvement grant (MSIG) Rand R 0 R 0 

Amount of this allocation utilised Rand R 0 R 0 

Municipal infrastructure grant allocation Rand R 0 R 0 

Amount of this allocation utilised Rand R 0 R 0 

KPA 4: Municipal Transformation and Organisational Development 

Organisational design and capacity Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Number of posts on the organogram as at 
30 June 

Number 491 489 

Number of posts on the organogram that were 
filled as at 30 June 

Number 402 393 

Total number of staff employed at the 
municipality as at 30 June 

Number 436 425 

Total number of Section 57 staff employed at 
the municipality as at 30 June 

Number 4 4 

Section 57 posts vacant for more than 3 
months in the financial year ending 30 June 

Number 0 0 

Percentage of municipality’s budget spent on 
implementing its workplace skills plan 

Percentage 0.18% 0.15% 

Employment equity Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Number of Section 57 staff who were classified 
as Black (African, Indian and coloured) as at 
30 June 

Number 3 3 

Number of Section 57 staff who were women 
as at 30 June 

Number 1 1 

Number of staff (out of total number of staff) at 
the municipality who were women as at 
30 June 

Number 162 161 

Number of staff (out of total number of staff) at 
the municipality who were classified as 
disabled as at 30 June 

Number 9 8 

KPA 5: Good Governance and Public Participation 

Council meetings Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

How many Council meetings were held in the 
financial year? 

Number 11 11 

How many open Council meetings were held in 
the financial year? 

Number 11 11 

Corporate governance  Unit 2021/2022 2022/2023 

Number of Section 57 staff dismissed Number 0 0 

Number of Section 57 staff suspended Number 0 0 

Number of Section 57 staff resigned Number 0 0 
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The followings actions were taken throughout the 2022/2023 financial year to improve the culture of 

performance management in the organisation: 

• Strategic sessions were held with the Mayor and the Municipal Manager; 

 

• Strategic sessions were held between the Municipal Manager and the Senior Management Team; 

 

• All Executive Directors were tasked by the Municipal Manager to prepare up-to-date evidence files that 

were uploaded on the Collaborator electronic record management system;  

 

• Performance contracts were concluded with identified officials;  

 

• The Internal Audit Unit performed testing of organisational key performance indicators and/or projects 

– to verify the quality of data and evidence of performance for quarters 2, 3 and 4; 

 

• Internal Audit reports were submitted to management, as well as other senior management involved, 

for response and action to address any identified shortcomings; 

 

• These Internal Audit reports also served before the Audit and Performance Committee for oversight, 

where after the Audit Committee’s quarterly reports served before Council; and 

 

• An electronic compliance register also assisted to monitor the compliance with various pieces of 

legislation relating to performance management. 
 

3.4.1 PMS Audit Focus for 2022/2023 

 The focus for the 2022/2023 financial year was as follows: 

• Quarter 1:  The review was not performed due to capacity constraints in the Internal Audit Unit.  

• Quarter 2:  Review of the Municipality’s compliance with the (MSA) Municipal System Act in respect 

of organisational performance management. Review the usefulness of key performance indicators 

and the reliability of reported performance information.  

• Quarter 3: Review the usefulness of key performance indicators and the reliability of reported 

performance information. Review of the Municipality’s compliance with the Municipal System Act 

in respect of organisational performance management. Review the supporting documentation to 

verify that it supports the actual information. Review weather output evidence in terms of 

completeness, accuracy, and validity for related key performance indicators. Ensure that the actual 

information fall within the correct reporting period.  

• Quarter 4: The review will be performed in Quarter 1 of the 2023/2024 financial year.  
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Looking at the applicable legislation, specifically s46(1)(a) of the MSA – A municipality must prepare for 

each financial year an annual report consisting of –  

(a) a performance report reflecting— (i) the municipality’s, and any service provider’s, performance 

during that financial year, also in comparison with targets of and with performance in the previous 

financial year.  
 

In consideration of this legislative requirement, we consider the definition prescribed to a service 

provider, as well as a municipal service and a service delivery agreement in terms of the MSA.  
 

A ‘service provider’ in terms of section 76(b) of the MSA constitutes a person or institution, or 

combination thereof, that provides provide to or for the benefit of a local community, whereas an 

‘external service provider’ is considered to be an external mechanism (as referred to in section 76(b)) 

that provides a municipal service for a municipality.  
 

It is necessary to further consider the meaning prescribed to a ‘service delivery agreement’, as in terms 

of section 76(b) this is considered to be an agreement between a municipality and an institution or 

person mentioned in section 76(b) in terms of which a municipal service is provided by the institution or 

person, either for its own account or on behalf of the municipality. Finally, the MSA defines a ‘municipal 

service’ as necessary to ensure an acceptable and reasonable quality of life and, if not provided, would 

endanger public health or safety of the environment. 
 

In consideration of the year under review, as well as the legislative interpretations detailed above, the 

municipality asserts that no service delivery agreements were entered into with service providers who 

provided a municipal service to or for the benefit of the local community on behalf of the municipality. 

However, in the table below we provide an overview of the number of SCM awards made throughout 

the year.  
 

Relevant Department/Division 
Number of contracts 

2021/2022 2022/2023 

Community Development Services 60 86 

Financial and Strategic Support Services 87 88 

Technical Services 143 148 

Office of the Municipal Manager 10 5 

Grand total 300 327 
 

It is also necessary to ensure that quality assessment mechanisms are established and in place during 

the supply chain management process, as this is underscored by contract management practices. It is 

during this process that the municipality establishes or confirms that all contractual obligations have been 

met.  
 

3.5.1 Quality of performance 

Contract Managers evaluate the performance of contractors/service providers objectively on a monthly 

basis, whereby a supplier’s actual performance is measured against the identified KPIs linked to the 

contract. 

In the event that the supplier is rated lower than 3 out of a possible 5 (60%) on one or all of the KPIs, 

he/she must be consulted and mutually agreed upon corrective measures must be identified and 

implemented by the supplier.   

3.5 SUPPLIER PERFORMANCE 
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3.5.2 National Treasury Supplier restrictions  

The Municipality has during the 2022/2023 requested National Treasury to restrict one (1) service 

provider, its shareholders and directors from obtaining business with the public sector due to breach of 

their contract and poor performance.
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This component includes the following services:  

• The provision of potable water 

• Wastewater (sanitation) 

• The supply of electricity 

• Waste management 

 

A. INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICES 

The CWDM does not provide any basic services to consumers as it is the function of the local 

municipalities in the district but does assist with the provision of services and certain infrastructure 

in the rural areas.  

a) THE PROVISION OF WATER AND SANITATION SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION TO WATER PROVISION 

Rural schools battle with the upkeep of water and sanitation infrastructure due to the increase in 

learners as well as the cost of proper maintenance. Council assists some of these schools with the 

provision of potable water as well as sanitation services. Farm workers are also assisted by Council 

with the provision of water and sanitation services inside their homes. This is accomplished by 

granting landowners subsidies to install these services.  

 

COMMENT ON WATER SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL 

The set target was achieved. 

 

b) WASTEWATER (SANITATION) PROVISION 

INTRODUCTION TO SANITATION PROVISION 

As indicated above, the municipality grants subsidies that 

assist landowners to provide sanitation within the farm 

laborer cottages. Rural schools expand due to additional 

classes and grades and the existing facilities sometimes 

cannot cope with the number of learners. In these cases, the 

municipality assists with the construction of additional 

infrastructure to provide effective and clean sanitation 

services at these schools. 

COMMENT ON SANITATION SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL 

The set target was achieved. 
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c) ELECTRICITY 

INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY 

The CWDM does not provide electrical services but assists landowners in the rural areas to improve 

the lives of the farm workers by providing a subsidy for solar warm water systems as part of Council’s 

contribution towards renewable energy.  

 

COMMENT ON ELECTRICITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL 

The target of 150 units for the 2022/2023 financial year was not met and 

only 87 units were installed during the year. The reasons why 

landowners did not install the subsidized units is because of the cost for 

the landowners who currently experience difficult economic times. In the 

future we will attempt to do reallocation earlier to landowners who will 

be in a position to install additional units. 

 

d) WASTE MANAGEMENT  

INTRODUCTION TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 

The CWDM does not render any refuse collection service but is in the process of establishing a 

regional waste disposal site near the town of Worcester. 

 

COMMENT ON WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICE PERFORMANCE OVERALL 

The rezoning and subdivision of the proposed site were approved while the transfer of the subject 

erf from Breede Valley Municipality to Cape Winelands DM is currently underway. The compilation 

of tender documents for the construction and operation of the regional landfill site was advertised at 

the end of the 2022/2023 financial year and it is anticipated that construction will start during the 

2023/2024 financial year.  

A Provincial target was set by the Provincial Department of Forestry, Fisheries and the Environment 

to divert all Organic Waste from landfills by the end of 2027. To achieve this, the Cape Winelands 

District Municipality financed the compilation of Organic Waste Diversion Plans for the local 

municipalities to assist them in diverting organic waste from the landfill site.  
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B.   INTRODUCTION TO ROAD TRANSPORT 

Ownership of public roads in the CWDM’s area vests with the national or provincial government or 

with the local municipalities. The five district municipalities within the Western Cape perform a roads 

agency service for the Western Cape Government: Department of Transport and Public Works 

(WCG: DT&PW). The main function of the CWDM Roads Division is to perform various maintenance 

activities on the allocated provincial roads under the technical guidance of the Provincial District 

Roads Engineer’s office.  

 

a) ROADS SERVICES  

CWDM Roads activities is 100% funded and funding transfers are governed by a Memorandum of 

Agreement (MOA) with WCG: DT&PW. It is expected that CWDM Roads perform this function with 

its own road staff. All plant and equipment (commonly known as the yellow fleet) are provided by the 

WCG: DT&PW.  

COMPONENT B: ROADS SERVICES 
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Extent of the provincial road network in CWDM’s jurisdiction: 

• Provincial roads allocated to CWDM to maintain: 3 127 gravel roads and 1 232 km surfaced  

• Provincial roads maintained by the Provincial District Roads Engineer’s office: 566,7 km 

surfaced under contracts and 99,8 km by their own staff  

The Agency Agreement with the WCG: DT&PW stipulates what is expected of the CWDM. The 

emphasis of CWDM Roads is on road maintenance activities to assist the WCG with their important 

task of preserving their existing upgraded 6 485 km of surfaced provincial road network asset in the 

Province. The biggest challenge is the shortfall in allocated funding versus funding required to attend 

to all the identified technical maintenance, resealing, re-gravelling, rehabilitation and reconstruction 

needs as reflected on the annually updated road and bridge infrastructure management systems.  

Provincial gravel roads: Most of the complaints received from the rural communities pertain to the 

poor condition of the provincial gravel road network. The majority of the 3 127 km provincial gravel 

road network in the CWDM area needs re-gravelling/reworking/reshaping. Wet weather has a 

negative impact on the riding quality of these roads, as they urgently require reshaping (to improve 

drainage) and re-gravelling (to improve riding quality) that cannot be achieved with the current 

resources and huge backlogs.  

Taking the above into account, the reality is that funding allocated by the national government to the 

provincial government is insufficient to address all the requests from communities to upgrade or to 

attend to the technical re-gravelling needs of the approximately 25 245 km provincial gravel roads in 

the province – the need thus outweighs the resource and it is therefore imperative that the available 

resources be utilized optimally. 

The main performance targets set by the WCG: DT&PW can be summarized as follows:  

• To assist in reinstating scarce road construction skills by performing (on a limited scale) road 

construction work with own staff. 

• All funding allocated for road maintenance and limited construction activities must be spent 

within the financial year and linked to performance indicators. 

• Costs relating to the different maintenance and limited construction activities must be 

economically sound. 

The measurement of the main performance targets by the WCG: DT&PW is done by:  

• the use of a computerized management system (IMMS) where all CWDM’s roads staff are 

registered against total cost per road maintenance activity per road; 

• road projects re-gravel, reseal and upgrade per km per allocated budget per project; and 

• regular quarterly meetings between senior technical officials from the five district 

municipalities and WCG: DT&PW to evaluate total spending and compare each district 

municipality’s cost per road maintenance activity per road.  
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The performance of the CWDM in this financial year for the budgeted items was as follows: 

 

 

b) PUBLIC TRANSPORT 
 
The mandate for transport at district municipal level is derived as follows: The Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa stipulates in respect of local government matters listed under Part B of 

Schedule 4 that ‘Municipal Public Transport’ is to be the responsibility of a municipality. Furthermore, 

in section 84 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998), the 

division of functions and powers between district and local municipalities, section 84(1)(g), lists the 

function ‘regulation of passenger transport services’ as a district municipal competency.  
 

In fulfilling its statutory mandate the CWDM established a unit on its organizational organogram, 

namely Regulation of Passenger Transport Services. The approach adopted by the sub directorate 

was the development of a District Integrated Transport Plan as well as Local Integrated Transport 

Plans for the B-municipalities in its district. The District Integrated Transport Plan provides guidance 

for an implementation strategy to achieve the various service delivery goals in public transport. 
 

The table below indicates the critical areas identified to achieve the service delivery goals, with their 

respective projects. 

Outcome Projects Targets Achievement 2022/2023 

Improved 

mobility of 

citizens in 

the district 

Review of the 

CWDM District 

Integrated 

Transport Plan 

Improve public transport level 

of service rendered by the 

unregulated and privately 

funded minibus taxi industry 

DITP completed, adopted by 
Council Committee on 27 
October 2022 and submitted to 
the Provincial MEC for approval. 
  

Improved 

road safety 

Planning for 

improved road 

safety 

infrastructure at 

urban schools in 

Breede Valley LM 

Reduce the number of learner 

traffic-related incidents. 

Reduce the speed of vehicles 

passing urban schools through 

traffic calming infrastructure. 

Improved road signage. 

Completed upgrading of 

sidewalks at Esselen Park High 

school and Worcester 

Secondary school.  

Distribution of 

promotional items 

within the district. 

Distribute promotional items to 

improve the safety of the 

public. 

Successfully handed out to five 

municipalities within the district: 

• 3 758 learner peak caps 
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i. Transport Month event 
 
The theme for the Cape Winelands Transport Month event was taken from the National Road Safety 

Strategy 2016-2030 Pillar 4, Safer Road Users, and shall be known as ‘ROAD SAFETY – 365 DAYS 

A YEAR’. 

ii. Aim of Transport Month  

To raise awareness on road safety, focusing on pedestrians’, learners’ and commuters’ safety, public 

transport operators and the business sector in increasing the usage levels and quality of service 

rendered by public transport operators and increasing the awareness of the commuter on personal 

road safety. 

The event was attended and given full support by the Portfolio Holder for Technical Services, 

Councilor GJ Carinus.  

   

Transport Month group photo - Tulbagh                Distributed branded learner peak caps. 

  

• 720 eco-friendly shopper 

bags 

• 240 lunch bags 

Transport Month 

event 

Host a Transport Month event 

during October 2022 in 

Witzenberg Local Municipality. 

Transport month events were 

successfully hosted in the 

following towns within 

Witzenberg Local Municipality: 

• Ceres - 1 October 2022 

• Tulbagh - 8 October 2022 
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Road safety awareness to commuters  Councilor Carinus with taxi operators                        

       

Improved Pedestrian Safety  

Upgraded road infrastructure at Esselen Park High and Worcester Secondary school  
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COMMENT ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF TRANSPORT  

The National Public Transport Strategy excludes the CWDM from accessing the major sources of 

funding for public transport, namely the Public Transport Infrastructure Grant (PTIG) and Public 

Transport Network Operations Grant (PTNOG).  

By excluding district municipalities from accessing the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) the 

funding for public transport at the CWDM is reliant on Council’s equitable share and irregular grants 

from the WCG: Mobility Department. The impact and performance on the mandatory transport 

function are thus determined by funding which can be made available via Council budget.  

However, despite funding challenges, planning for improved citizen mobility and implementation of 

various public transport-related projects continued such as the Transport Month event that was 

hosted in Witzenberg Local Municipality as evidenced by commuters during the distribution of road 

safety pamphlets, branded water bottles and promotional bags. 

 

ICT Annual report 2022/2023 

ICT is an essential part of the CWDM and is constantly evolving in response to the latest 

technological threats and opportunities. The CWDM's capacity for rapid adaptation positions it 

favourably amidst these changes. 

ICT security threats have also increased in recent years with ransomware and hacking attempts 

becoming more common. The CWDM has taken steps to mitigate these risks including implementing 

a virtual private network (VPN) and firewall. 

The CWDM network covers 16 sites and has over 50 connections from home office users. All 

applications are available at the municipality's disaster management site which provides a backup 

in case of a system failure. 

The following is an overview of the achievements and challenges experienced by the ICT division 

during the financial year. 

Achievements: 

• Provided a reliable network for all electronic communication including internet and telephony. 

• Successfully implemented a VPN and firewall to improve security. 

• Transitioned to a Software Defined Wide Area Network. 

• Refurbished much of the ICT equipment, keeping costs down and ensuring that the network 
remained operational. 

• Increased the number of home office users, providing greater flexibility for employees. 

Challenges: 
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• COVID-19 pandemic disrupted global supply chains, making it difficult to obtain new ICT 
equipment. While the restrictions have been lifted the changes caused by the pandemic were 
still felt. 

• Increased ICT security threats, requiring the municipality to take additional measures to 
protect its systems. 

• Increased demand for ICT support as more employees use technology in new ways. 

 

Overall, the ICT division at the CWDM has faced a number of challenges during the past year. 

However, the division has also made significant progress and is well-positioned to continue providing 

an effective and reliable service to the municipality. 
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Departmental Introduction 
 
The Community Development and Planning Services Department comprises the following divisions: 

• Spatial Planning and Environmental Management; 

• Socio-Economic Development; 

• Municipal Health Services; 

• Disaster Management Services; and 

• Firefighting Service. 
 
 

a) Spatial Planning and Environmental Management 

This division’s town and regional planning is limited to spatial planning and planning coordination. 

Land use management is a function of the five local municipalities within the Cape Winelands district 

although the CWDM’s involvement in land use planning is through participation in local municipal 

planning tribunals established in terms of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act 

No. 16 of 2013) (SPLUMA). The division’s environmental management function focuses mainly on 

natural resource management, biodiversity and water through the implementation of an invasive 

alien vegetation management and river rehabilitation programmes. The division is also responsible 

for Geographic Information Systems (GIS). This is a newly acquired support function. The purpose 

of this function is to: 

• Support all departments/divisions within the CWDM organisation with spatial data analysis 

and maps; 

• Project management and oversight pertaining to GIS related data management/usage; and 

• Managing GIS software and contractual agreements. 

The CWDM’s involvement in terms of planning in general is as follows: 

• Compiling, reviewing and amending a Spatial Development Framework for the Cape 
Winelands district municipal area. 

• Member of the Western Cape Municipal Heads Planning Forum. 

• Active participation in provincial and local municipal spatial development framework 
processes. 

• Participation in environmental planning policy processes that are facilitated/implemented by 
other spheres of government. 

• Participation in the new law reform process pertaining to the Western Cape Land Use 
Planning Act (Act No. 3 of 2014) and SPLUMA. 

• Member of the Cape Winelands Biosphere Reserve Technical Committee and fulfilling a 
secretariat role to the board of directors of the biosphere reserve non-profit company. 

• Participation in environmental conservation landscape initiatives throughout the district. 

• The CWDM Deputy Director: Spatial Planning and Environmental Management is a member 
of the Witzenberg and Langeberg Municipal Planning Tribunals established in terms of 
SPLUMA. 

• Planning Lead of the (a) Urbanisation Challenges and (b) Resource Resilience projects, 
which are subprojects of the Joint District and Metro Approach Project. 
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b) Socio-Economic Development 

 In 2018/2019, the divisions Local Economic Development and Tourism amalgamated with the 

division Rural and Social Development to form a new division called Socio-Economic Development. 

One of the first tasks of the new division was to take the draft Cape Winelands Regional Socio-

Economic Development Strategy (CW-RSEDS) through its final internal and external round of 

gathering comments and submit it to Council for adoption. The CW-RSEDS was adopted by Council 

on 27 May 2019. 

The core focus of the CW-RSEDS is to outline how the CWDM will invest in its people and how it 

will create an enabling environment in which business can develop, grow and thrive by fostering 

greater investment that will increase job growth and alleviate poverty in the district. The CW-RSEDS 

is intended to provide an achievable, evidence-based plan for the future, while responding to the 

challenges and opportunities presented by the local economic and social context. The following five 

strategies combined form the CW-RSEDS:  

• Local Economic Development Strategy; 

• Investment Attraction, Retention and Opportunities Strategy; 

• Tourism Development and Marketing Strategy; 

• Rural Economic Development Strategy; and 

• Social Development Strategy. 

The CW-RSEDS together with the District Economic Recovery Plans guides the facilitation of 

economic growth and development in the Cape Winelands District. 

 

c) Disaster Management Services 

The Cape Winelands Disaster Management Centre (CWDMC) consists of a Disaster Management 

Centre and four permanent staff members assisted by an intern. The purpose of the CWDMC is to 

ensure the coordination of multidisciplinary and multisectoral risk reduction through integrated 

institutional capacity for disaster risk management, disaster risk assessment, response and 

recovery. The CWDMC is fully functional and compliant with the Disaster Management Act, 2002 

(Act No. 57 of 2002) as amended by the Disaster Management Amendment Act, 2015 (Act No. 16 

of 2015).  

The functions of Disaster Management include:  

• Risk Assessment: A process to determine the nature and extent of risk by analysing potential 

hazards and evaluating existing conditions of vulnerability that could pose a potential threat or 

harm to people, property, livelihoods and the environment on which they depend. 

• Planning: This includes the development of Disaster Management Plans, Standard Operating 

Procedures, Seasonal Preparedness Plans, and Contingency Plans. 

• Risk Reduction, which includes:  

o prevention – how to avoid the adverse impacts of a hazard, which includes awareness 

and education programmes. 

o mitigation – this can include structural or non-structural measures undertaken to limit the 

adverse impacts of a hazard, including policies or physical structures. 

o preparedness – activities and measures taken in advance to ensure effective response 

to the impacts of hazards, such as issuing early warnings and evacuating people.  

• Response: The provision of assistance during or immediately after a disaster. This can be short-



                                                             
                                        2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

                                         
 

67 | P a g e  

term such as the provision of relief items, e.g. food parcels, blankets, or of a protracted duration 

such as setting up temporary shelters. 

• Recovery: Decisions and actions taken after a disaster with a view to restoring the situation to 

normality or improving the pre-disaster conditions. 

 

In terms of section 51 of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002), the CWDMC 

established a Disaster Management Advisory Forum that consists of representatives from the five 

local municipalities, provincial and national departments and other disaster management role-

players. This forum meets on a bi-annual basis. The forum meetings provide the CWDMC with an 

opportunity to engage role-players on the disaster management-related activities taking place in the 

district. This is an important platform in order to provide members with vital information such as 

seasonal forecasts and reports on significant incidents or disasters that have occurred in the district.  

  

d) Firefighting Service 
 
 In terms of section 84(1)(j) of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 
1998), the functions of the Firefighting Services are: 

• Firefighting services serving the area of the district municipality as a whole, which include the 
planning, coordination and regulation of fire services. 

• Specialised firefighting services such as mountain, veld and chemical fire services. 

• Coordination of the standardisation of infrastructure, vehicles, equipment and procedures. 

• Training of fire officers. 
 

e) Municipal Health Services 

In terms of section 156(1)(a), Part B of Schedule 4 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 

1996, municipal health services had been entrusted to local authorities. According to section 84(1)(i) 

of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998), municipal health 

services were consequently declared the responsibility of a district municipality (Category C) and/or 

metropolitan area (Category A). Section 32(1) of the National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003) 

tasks every metropolitan and district municipality to ensure the provision/rendering of municipal 

health services. In terms of section 1 of the National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003), Municipal 

Health Services were declared to be: 

• water quality monitoring; 

• food control; 

• solid waste management; 

• health surveillance of premises; 

• surveillance and prevention of contagious diseases, excluding immunisation; 

• vector control; 

• environmental pollution control; 

• disposal of the dead; and 

• safe handling of chemical substances, but excludes port health, malaria control and control 

of hazardous substances. 
 

Air quality management resorts under Municipal Health Services (MHS) in the municipality. The 

CWDM’s 2nd Generation Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) review was completed in 2018, 
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approved by Council and included as a sector plan in the IDP. The CWDM continues to strive 

towards the implementation of the objectives within the 2nd Generation AQMP. The identified goals 

and targets within the plan were presented and discussed at a Council Policy Workshop on 25 

October 2018 to ensure a good understanding of the action plan, with allocated timeframes for 

implementation and the implementation indicators. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING SERVICES  

IN NUMBERS 

Our REACH in communities 

• 310 people through the 16 days of activism 
 

• 834 Vulnerable children participated in 
Victim Empowerment programmes.  
 

• 1860 Elderly persons the opportunity to 
participate in this Health and Wellness 
sports event 
 

• 29 community organisations were supported 
 

• 360 More living Active Age programmes 
were implemented 
 

• 10 537 Sanitary ware provided to school 
leaners across the district 
 

• 995 Diapers were provided to Elderly 
 

• 450 people participated in the international 
day for people with disabilities 
 

• Annually 2290 Youth from across the district 
participated in Youth Month programmes 

 

 

Helping to TRAIN and SKILL 
our communities 
 
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT  

• 34: Early Childhood Development Centres 
were supported 

 

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES 

• 7480 rural school learners were afforded 
opportunities to embark on educational 
excursions 

• 2800 Children were kept safe during holiday 
programmes 

 

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

• 24 Interns were afforded opportunity driver 
license training 

 
BUSINESS TRAINING AND MENTORSHIP 
28 SMME and 7 small farmers/ groupings had 
access to be trained in various financial and 
business management practices. 
 
TOURISM TRAINING 

• 30 Culinary Training 

• 14 Site guide Training 

• 135 Customer Care Training 

• 75 Events Management Training 

• 45 First Aid Training 

• 14 Introduction to Wine Training 
 

CAPE WINELANDS FIRE AND RESCUE ACADEMY TRAINING 

• The Academy has trained 201 Fire Officers, which includes our own and those from our partners and 
neighbouring municipalities. 
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•  

Our reach in communities in 
SUPPORT of Tourism 

Local Tourism Association Development 
Projects 

• 15 people received training in the housekeeping/ 
cleaning field in Breedekloof, Breede Valley 
Municipality. 

• 10 Wineries were evaluated on standard of 
services in Breedekloof, Breede Valley 
Municipality in the form of an in-loco visit to 
establishments by a mystery guest who did the 
assessment. 

• 10 people received training in Front Office duties, 
hospitality, and customer relations in the 
Franschhoek area. 

• 8 people received training in Hospitality in 
McGregor, Langeberg Municipality. 

• Support was provided for to local crafters in the 
form of printing of a tourism map for Nqubela 
township, Robertson, Langeberg Municipality. 

Our REACH in 
communities through 
sports and recreation 
 
•  31 sports and recreation clubs were 

supported, including Boland Cricket 
and SAFA Cape Winelands 
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• 20 Tourism SMMES was supported with 
payment of their Membership fees, Basic Fire 
Fighter and First Aid level 1 training in Montagu, 
Langeberg Municipality. 

• 15 Petrol attendants and Front office staff 
received training through educationals in 
Tulbagh, Witzenberg Municipality. 

• 10 petrol attendants trained in Tourism 
Awareness, Ceres, Witzenberg Municipality. 

• Cleaning and marking of Hiking trail, Ceres, 
Witzenberg Municiplaity. 

• Touwsriver LTA was upgraded and personnel 
received training working in the Front Office, 
Touwsriver, Breede Valley Municipality. 

• Primary school tourism educational and Front 
Office training was rolled out in Wolseley, 
Witzenberg Municipality. 

• Tourism SMME information sessions were held 
in Worcester, Breede Valley Municipality. 

• Development of a new local tourism route and 
new tourism products was supported in 
Jamestown, Stellenbosch Municipality. 

 
Township Tourism and Route Development 
TOWNSHIP TOURISM & ROUTE DEVELOPMENT 
• 15 Arts & Crafters were supported with marketing 

collateral. 
• Tourism route development funding was 

provided for to Drakenstein Municipality for this 
project. 

• Funding was also provided for to Worcester 
Tourism LTA for SMME workshops. 

 
MEDIA EDUCATIONALS  
12 Media Educationals were supported collaboration 
with the local tourism associations around CWDM 
region. 
 
EXHIBITIONS 
5 Tourism exhibitions were attended as follows: 
Meeting Africa, Beeld Holiday Makers, 
Johannesburg, Gauteng, ITB, Berlin, Germany, 
Indaba Tourism Exhibition, Chief Albert Luthuli 
International Convention Centre, Durban, KwaZulu-
Natal and World Tourism Market Africa, International 
Conversion Centre, Cape Town, Western Cape.  

 
TOURISM EVENTS  
23 Tourism were supported across the region.  
 
TOURISM CAMPAIGN 
The tourism campaign was rolled out in the form of a 
radio campaign to retain existing visitors and to 

 
CARING for our environment 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 

Natural resource management 
programmes 

Two projects: Cape Winelands Invasive 
Alien Vegetation Management 
Programme; and River Rehabilitation 
Programme 

 

Thirty Nine (39) 
sites/contracts were awarded and 

cleared. 

• Work opportunities created: ± 390 

 
 

• Hectares cleared: ± 2 496 
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attract new visitors in the low tourism season. The 
radio campaign was reaching local tourists on their 
favourite radio stations and promoting the region to a 
broader audience. 
 
TOURISM MONTH 
This project is rolled out annually during the month of 
September. The focus is on enabling local tourists to 
enjoy the offerings of tourism in their own region, 
province, and country. 
 
Other local economic interventions in the Tourism 
Sector: 

• 1 Tourism Radio Media Campaign focusing on 
bringing domestic tourists to the Cape Winelands 

• 22 Business Retention and Expansion projects 
supported in the tourism sector 

• 1 Digital Tourism project supported 
• 1 Wine tourism project supported 

 

PROTECTING our communities 

TRAINING PROVIDED 
NUMBER 

OF 
SESSIONS 

NUMBER OF 
PEOPLE 

TRAINED/ 
REACHED 

RELATED EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL 
DISSEMINATED 

Duties of the Food Handler 27 430 96 posters & pamphlets. 

Standards & Requirements 
for Formal Food Premises 5 40 

 

16 posters & pamphlets. 

Cleaning and Disinfection of 
Food Premises and 
Equipment 3 40 

 

55 posters & pamphlets. 
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Health Certification of 
Foodstuffs Destined for 
Export – MHS Protocol, 
Documentation and 
Procedures 1 2 

 

Transport, storage and 
display of foodstuffs 1 11 

 

Analysis of the scope of 
functions of MHS (food 
safety practices in food 
premises) 1 

51 1st year 
Nursing 

Students of 
the Western 

Cape College 
of Nursing- 

Boland/Overb
erg Campus 

 

Information Session: Food 
Hygiene, Food Poisoning 
and General Premises 
Hygiene. 1 

40 Grade 11 
hospitality 
learners. 

 

 

19 posters & pamphlets. 

Informal Food Traders 3 32 76 posters & pamphlets. 

Paediatric Surge Season 
(Diarrhoea Educational 
Awareness)   

100 posters & pamphlets. 

Personal Hygiene   
8 669 

75 posters & pamphlets. 

Health Standards for Early 

Childhood Development 

Centres 
7 176 

 

Handwashing 
22 1995 

260 posters & pamphlets. 

Be Waterwise  
2 201 

34 posters & pamphlets. 

Interactive Health Education 

Live Theatre Performances 
54 13868 

 

Health & Hygiene: Water & 

Sanitation Subsidy Program. 
30 2960 

 

Cleaning Campaign 1 

51 Grade 4 
school 

learners 

90 posters & pamphlets. 

Stop Flies   130 posters & pamphlets. 

World Environmental Health 
Day awareness activities 2 147 
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Air pollution class workbook 
launch X 5 books 

Cholera   150 posters and pamphlets  

Toilet Hygiene    213 posters & pamphlets. 

    
TOTAL 168 20713 1319 

FIREFIGHTING 

Operational response and fire risk reduction 

• The Fire Services attended to a total of 1 120 calls from 1 July 2021 to the period ending June 

2022. 
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NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

The CWDM invasive alien vegetation management and river rehabilitation programmes are 

implemented on municipal/state-owned land. Local municipal supply catchments and nature 

reserves are targeted within the greater Berg and Breede River Catchments to ensure that water 

security and biodiversity conservation are prioritised and acted upon. 

Sites cleared: 

Thirty-nine (39) project sites were cleared = ± 2496,54 hectares were cleared = ± 390 work 

opportunities were created (39 sites X 10 member contracting team). 

Breede Valley Municipality Tender 
(T2022/063) 

 

SITE NAME: 

1. BVM 1_2022 
2. BVM 2_2022 
3. BVM 3_2022 
4. BVM 4_2022 

HECTARES CLEARED: 
164. 2482 
 

Drakenstein Municipality Tender 
(T2022/064) 

SITE NAME: 

5. DM 1_2022 
6. DM 2_2022 
7. DM 3_2022 
8. DM 4_2022 
9. DM 5_2022 
10. DM 6_2022 
11. DM 7_2022 
12. DM 8_2022 
13. DM 9_2022 
14. DM 10_2022 
15. DM 11_2022 
16. DM 12_2022 
17. DM 13_2022 
18. DM 14_2022 
19. DM 15_2022 
20. DM 16_2022 
21. DM 17_2022 
22. DM 18_2022 
23. DM 19_2022 
24. DM 20_2022 
25. DM 21_2022 
26. DM 22_2022 
27. DM 23_2022 

28. DM 24_2022 

HECTARES CLEARED: 
1587.5037 

Langeberg Municipality Tender 
(T2022/065) 

SITE NAME: 

29. LM 1_2022 
30. LM 3_2022 
31. LM 4_2022 
32. LM 5_2022 
33. Dassieshoek 3_2022 

HECTARES CLEARED: 
452.2630 

Witzenberg Municipality Tender 
(T2022/062) 

SITE NAME: 

34. WM 1_2022 
35. WM 2_2022 
36. WM 4_2022  
37. WM 5_2022 
38. WM 6_2022 

HECTARES CLEARED: 
292.5263 
(Note: WM 4 was cleared during the 
first week of July due to heavy 
rains/road closure.) 
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39. WM 7_2022 

LED PROJECTS 

 

ENTREPRENEURIAL SEED FUND PROGRAMME 

During the 2022/2023 financial year, 28 beneficiaries were supported with equipment for 

their businesses. A variety of businesses were supported including: 

• Woman Contractor for eradication of invasive plants; 

• Laundry Services; 

• Guest House; 

• Architecture; 

• Catering; 

• Clothing manufacturing;  

• Engineering; 

• Hairstyling; 

• Construction & Maintenance; 

• Accounting; 

• Funeral services; 

• Recycling; 

• Wood making; 

• Flower decorating; and 

• Wellness. 

 

 

CTC Engineering Supplies is from Paarl and owned 

by Chantel Syfers since 2019. She started the 

business by buying a router and then a Lazer cutter. 

She added leather upholstery to her business during 

Covid and she moved from her initial premise to 

where she joined her husband. Chantel supplies 

engineering consumables for a niche market. She 

makes use of materials such as wood, HTP, acrylic 

and aluminium daily. She expanded her business 

when she decided to make use of the leftover 

cuttings from the products that she makes. These 

products include earrings, wooden toys, leather 

wallets, cake toppers etc. She loves being creative 

and to work with her hands. She has recently done 

work for local business in Paarl who wanted wooden 

boxes, built in cupboards and machine parts. She has recently received her import and 

export certificate. CTC Engineering Services were supported with funding, and it was 

utilized for subliming printing equipment to be used on the wood projects. 
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SMALL SCALE FARMERS SUPPORT PROGRAMME 

 

In total seven beneficiaries were supported. The farming operations included:  

 

• Vegetable farming 

• Beekeeping 

• Cattle farming 

• Alfalfa farming 

• Wine vines production 

• Grape and wine production 

 

Bonnievale Workers Empowerment Trust was supported under the 

Small-Scale Farmers Support Programme. Elethu Wines, which is 

produced by Bonnievale Workers Empowerment Trust, was established 

in 2007 and comprises of black-owned land; black-owned and managed 

vineyards; and black-managed winemaking. There are thirty-three 

beneficiaries including staff of Bonnievale Wines and four permanent 

farm employees. The name Elethu means “it is ours” in isiXhosa and 

was chosen by the beneficiaries. A total of 25 hectares of vineyards 

have been established since 2011. Cultivars include Cabernet 

Sauvignon, Merlot, Chenin Blanc, Chardonnay, Sauvignon Blanc, and 

Nouvelle. Farming activities such as - planting, pruning, harvesting and 

general management of the vines are done by the beneficiaries. 

 

 

MENTORSHIP DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

NLT Investments have been awarded the three-year contract for the training & mentorship 

programme which is compulsory for all beneficiaries of the Entrepreneurial Seed Fund Programme 

and the Small-Scale Farmers Support Programme. Apart from the Training & Mentorship 

Programme, the service provider is also responsible to purchase the equipment of the beneficiaries 

as agreed upon.  

 

The training conducted at the five different CWDM offices included the following subject matters: 

 

• Development of Company Business Values/Business Plan 

• Loan and funding module knowledge 

• Communication skills 

• Marketing Tools 

• Human Resources Policy training 

• Bookkeeping systems / Finance 
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 The training session of the Witzenberg group. 

 

 

BUSINESS RETENTION & EXPANSION PROGRAMME (BR & E) 

 

A total amount of R635 000 was spend in the 2022/2023 financial year. Twenty-two projects were 

supported. One such project is The Bottelary Hills Renosterveld Conservancy. 

 

The Bottelary Hills Renosterveld 

Conservancy (BHRC) Youth Stewardship 

Programme, Stellenbosch was supported with 

R30 000 funding towards establishing a local 

mobile marshal maintenance programme. The 

funding enabled two local youths to be 

employed. Their tasks include hosting guided 

hikes, running snare patrols as well as marking 

trail running routes. They are tasked to spend 

four days per month on trail monitoring duties.  

In addition, they work as part of the TrailBlazers 

trail maintenance team, maintain the hiking trails on Koopmanskloof and Mooiplaas.  The funding 

has enabled the BHRC to launch the Youth Stewardship programme and provide a platform for 

further tourism development initiatives linked to the mountain bike trails, hiking trails and food and 

wine offering of member farms.   

 

INVESTMENT ATTRACTION PROGRAMME: DIGITAL TOURISM 

The budget of 2022/2023 has enabled the Local Tourism Associations (LTAs) to have their Town 

Mobile Applications redeveloped and to have business on boarding sessions for their members. The 

purpose of the redevelopment of the town apps is to add additional functionality to the mobile 

application platform and to make the mobile application more user-friendly, to promote tourism 

products in the region and to market the region as a tourism destination and to increase national and 

international tourists to the region. After the redevelopment phase, the crucial business on-boarding 

training takes place. This is to equip and empower the tourism office staff and members to take 

ownership of their own listings and to update the listings. This will ultimately contribute to the success 

of the Town’s Mobile App. 
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INVESTMENT ATTRACTION PROGRAMME: WINE TOURISM 

The 2022/2023 project with VINPRO was the Wine Tourism Wi-Fi Analytics Visitor Research. A 

Service Level Agreement (SLA) was entered into between Flow Networks and Vinpro. The CWDM 

paid the funding amount of R250,000 which covered the cost of the Presence Analytics and Wi-Fi 

Enterprise Analytics licenses (negotiated at R4800 each) for approximately 50 wineries in the Cape 

Winelands district area. A further 43 wineries in the Cape Winelands region have been earmarked 

to subscribe to Purple Presence Analytics and Purple Wi-Fi Analytics for a year at a subsidised rate. 

The project is open to all wineries beyond the Cape Winelands as well, who also qualify for a 

discounted rate. 

 

During the month of April 2023, an article was published on Tourism Update which highlighted the 

project and the milestones achieved: 

 

Smart tech boosts wine tourism growth 
19 Apr 2023 

 

A new wine tourism research pilot programme, aimed at generating tourism intelligence and 
helping wineries use this intelligence to grow their Direct-to-Consumer (DTC) business, is 
currently being funded by Vinpro and the Cape Winelands District Municipality. 

Vinpro is a non-profit company that represents close to 2 600 South African wine producers, 
cellars and industry stakeholders. 

Launched in March with an initial 16 wineries, this new pilot programme is a continuation of 
one of Vinpro and the SA Wine Routes Forum’s strategic objectives to conduct research 
focused on industry needs and knowledge gaps. 

The wine routes, Vinpro, and Vintelligence (consumer intelligence solutions for SA wine 
producers), collaborated last year to release the SA Wine Tourism Visitor Research Report 
2022. This year the goal is smarter use of technology. 
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“We are extremely excited to have kicked off this amazing pilot programme and we want 
cellars to get involved now,” said Marisah Nieuwoudt, Wine Tourism Manager at Vinpro. 

“The pilot programme was launched tin conjunction with Flow Networks, specialists in 
location analytics, proximity marketing and Guest Wi-Fi. This year we want to use the 
technology to our advantage to count our visitors and note where they come from, to 
understand the size and make-up of the total market. We want to help our wineries stay 
connected to wine tourists between visits, making consumer engagement in the DTC wine 
space possible,” Nieuwoudt added. 

How it will work 

Flow Networks will work with the cellars involved in its marketing strategy to assist on cross-
channel sales, manage their online reputation, build a loyalty and rewards programme, or 
send offers via e-mail. Flow Networks is a reputable service provider, used by some of the 
largest brands in the world including Radisson Blu, McDonald’s, Tsogo Sun, Harrods, and 
Walmart. 

Presence Analytics is a software module that counts the number of mobile devices (users) 
in range of a producer or cellar’s WiFi router using a built-in location sensor. Visitors do not 
need to be connected to the farm’s WiFi to be counted. Purple, a cloud-based Wi-Fi platform, 
then measures the time spent in the venue and frequency of visits. 

WiFi Analytics records the information of visitors that connect to a guest WiFi service. A 
CRM record is created for each guest when they connect and is updated every time they 
return. This is done by linking up one or more of the farm’s existing WiFi routers to the Purple 
WiFi platform. 

Purple is installed on top of the existing WiFi infrastructure, and set-up takes less than an 
hour. The system can be managed via an online portal accessible to wineries. Purple 
instantly starts building a database via its user-friendly, custom-branded WiFi landing pages 
once the winery goes live. 

An online dashboard will display the visitor data collected. Selected, aggregated information 
such as visitor numbers, country of origin, dwell time, gender and age will be shared with 
the respective wine route. 

This means the wine route manager will have sight of cross-pollination (when a wine tourist 
visits more than one winery) to help inform their marketing and development planning. 
Vinpro will have sight of the same information at a national level. All processes comply with 
POPIA locally and GDPR regulations abroad. 

“As a region, we believe that wine tourism is not only about enjoying exquisite wines and 
breath-taking landscapes, but also about harnessing the power of data and intelligence to 
support the growth of wineries and enhance our visitors’ experiences,” said Melody Botha, 
CEO of Breedekloof Wine Valley. 
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“We see this pilot programme as an opportunity to pool our collective knowledge and 
expertise, so we can elevate our wine tourism offerings and position our region as a premier 
wine destination. We envisage a future where wineries in our region can thrive in the DTC 
market, and where visitors can have truly exceptional wine tourism experiences,” Botha 
concluded. 

A further 43 wineries in the Cape Winelands region have been earmarked to subscribe to 
Purple Presence Analytics and Purple Wi-Fi Analytics for a year at a subsidised rate. The 
project is open to all wineries beyond the Cape Winelands as well, who also qualify for a 
discounted rate. 

“The tourism sector is one of the largest economic contributors in the Cape Winelands 
District. This exciting and technologically advanced project ticks all the right boxes for the 
Cape Winelands District Municipality. The information gathered will help us apply our 
resources to effective campaigns that expand our global market, attract visitors to our 
beautiful district and, ultimately, allow its people to flourish,” said Dr Elna von Schlicht, 
Executive Mayor of the Cape Winelands District Municipality. 

 

INVESTMENT ATTRACTION PROGRAMME: TRADE SHOWS 

CWDM  have attended the Namibia Tourism Expo in November 2022 & April 2023. 

The 24th Annual Namibia Tourism Expo was organised by Namibia Media Holdings. The Expo was 

held from 3 - 5 November 2022 at SKW Fields, Windhoek, Namibia. The participating SMEs were:  

- Laharna Farm Products (Breede Valley); and 

- M’hudi Wines (Stellenbosch) 

Also in attendance was Breede Valley & Langeberg Municipality. The CWDM won two GOLD awards 

at the Namibia Tourism Expo: 

- Gold from the Event Organisers for the best stand; and 

- Gold from Namibia TV Holdings for best stand. 
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A total of R15000 in prize money was won and this was used as the discount for the 2023 space 

booking. In addition to the prize money, CWDM received a free advertorial and editorial coverage of 

a half page advertisement in the Tourismus Namibia, 2023 Edition as well as 20 DSTV  (30 second) 

slots to market the Cape Winelands region. 

 

From 26-28 April 2023,the 25th Namibia Tourism Expo 2023 was held at the Windhoek Country Club 

& Resort. This was attended by CWDM (including CWDM Mayor Dr Alderman Von Schlicht), Breede 

Valley Municipality, Robertson Tourism and Laharna Farm Products. The theme for the event was 

Beyond Borders. CWDM won a gold award once again for the stand and a “What’s Cooking Award”.  

 

 

 

 

The Division Rural and Social Development of the Cape Winelands District Municipality focuses on 

building and maintaining social capital through access to programmes and services. Related 

programmes aim to increase physical activity, enhance education, improve skills levels, enhance 

employability, and provide funding for community-based organisations and promote the rights of 

vulnerable groups. The success of these programmes is based on the strong and vibrant 

partnerships with national and provincial government, B-municipalities, civil society organisations, 

communities across the Cape Winelands municipal district and training institutions. The following 

projects were implemented to address the service delivery priorities for the 2022/2023 financial year: 

 

A. COMMUNITY SUPPORT PROGRAMME 

Non-profit organisations and community-based organisations are facing various challenges and 

financial constraints. The CWDM provides funding to support civil society organisations in rendering 

services that have a direct and immediate impact on the well-being of disadvantaged communities 

at a grass-root level. The funding maximised the poverty alleviation impact of thirty-one (31) 

community organisations across the Cape Winelands municipal district. This programme also 

enhances the capacity of beneficiary organisations to render services that will contribute to the 

achievement of the strategic objectives of the CWDM.  

 

B. DISABILITY PROGRAMME  

The CWDM aims to improve the livelihoods of people with disabilities and to address social barriers 

that exclude them from the various systems of society. Accessibility is important to achieve the 

principles of full inclusion, equality and participation in mainstream society.  

I. International Day for Persons with Disabilities Project 

On 3 December 2022 Cape Winelands District Municipality in partnership with Government 

Departments and NGOs in the Disability Sector, commemorated the International Day for 

Persons with Disabilities. Events were  implemented in five B, Municipalities of the Cape 

Winelands District municipality to observe and promote the rights of persons with disabilities. 

These events covered the spectrum of disabilities and created an awareness amongst citizens 

COMPONENT D: RURAL AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 
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of the district. 450 Persons with disabilities and their families were reached through these 

programmes. 

II. Disabled Grant in Aid  

Cape Winelands District Municipality provide funding to support civil society organisations in 

rendering services which have a direct and immediate impact on the well-being of people 

with disabilities across the district. The funding maximised the poverty alleviation impact of 

nine beneficiaries (9) community organisations across the Cape Winelands municipal district. 

This programme also enhances the capacity of beneficiary organisations to render service 

that will contribute to the achievement of the strategic objectives of Cape Winelands District 

Municipality.  

 

III. Adult diapers 

Cape Winelands District Municipality focussing on building and maintaining social capital 

through access to programmes and services. Our partners at Department of Health, 

Community Base Services, social workers and NGO’s, indicated some of the challenges are 

the need for diapers. No adult, regardless of their level of physical or mental disability, should 

be treated different because aging and age- related conditions already rob our loved ones of 

much of their independence.   

 

C. ELDERLY PROGRAMME   

The Cape Winelands District Municipality strives to maintain and protect the status, wellbeing, safety 

and rights of older persons. This project also aims to promote and create an enabling environment 

for the elderly to participate actively in a healthy lifestyle, wellness and cultural activities. The CWDM 

acknowledge the valuable contributions that elderly persons have made in communities across the 

district.  

More Living Active Age Project 

Recreational and cultural tours were undertaken as part of the More Living Active Age Programme for 

the elderly in our district. These tours provided the elderly with opportunities to research on the socio-

economic, cultural and historical developments that have taken place, as well as the significant impact 

the history and developments had on the underprivileged communities and the elderly. The support of 

Cape Winelands District Municipality created opportunities for elderly persons to visit recreational and 

historical landmarks. Some elderly persons have never been out of their residential areas due to 

financial constraints and the municipality provided them with the opportunity. Approximately 1 860 

elderly persons from across the district were the beneficiaries of the district golden games and 

educational excursions. 

 

D. SANITARYWARE  

The CWDM, in partnership with the Department of Education in our district, encourages citizens to 

acknowledge education as a tool for a better future. Both the CWDM and the DOE ensure that the 

education of young girls is not hindered due to a lack of the basic necessity of feminine hygiene 

products, and rural schools across the district were thus visited to hand over sanitary towel packs.  
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The Rural and Social Development Division of the CWDM focuses on building and maintaining social 

capital through access to programmes and services. The Department of Health conducts Health and 

Hygiene awareness programmes at centers across the district. One of the challenges identified was 

the need for sanitaryware for school leaners across the district. The success of this programme is 

based on the strong and vibrant partnership with the Department of Education in our district.  

Through Rural and Social division programmes, CWDM portfolio councillor Wilhemina Petersen 

visited 34 schools across the district to handover approximately 995 packets of sanitary ware during 

the period of February 2023.                     

Young people are the heart of the future of South Africa and of our district. CWDM want to break the 

cycle of poverty and education plays an integral role in doing this, thus this initiative will continue to 

ensure that not one girl miss a single day of her education. 

 

E.  ECD SUPPORT 

The Cape Winelands District Municipality has invested in various programmes to better the education 

provided in early childhood development, as not only are the care and protection of young children 

essential, but also their development. The programmes also ensure that these babies and toddlers 

attend creches that have adequate facilities to give children a good start in life. The building of human 

capital places a specific focus on opening doors of learning and culture by providing grant in aid to 34 

ECD centres.   

 

F. HIV AND AIDS PROGRAMME 

HIV and Aids impact on the sustainability of communities and their development conditions. The 

implementation of interventions is crucial in ensuring that the vulnerability of infected and affected 

persons is decreased. Campaigns regarding HIV/Aids awareness, World Aids Day, HIV/Aids and 

male circumcision; HIV and breastfeeding and 16 Days of Activism Against the Abuse of Women 

and Children are implemented in partnership with the multisectoral action team structures in each B-

municipal area. These programmes focus on reversing the effects of the HIV/Aids pandemic and 

providing support to infected and affected families in the district. 

16 Days of Activism  

The municipality facilitates joint planning and collates the inputs of all partners to produce a district 

calendar of events implemented across the district. The calendar provides a 16-day window (25 

November to 10 December) of opportunity in communities for intense awareness raising and education 

to reduce levels of women and child abuse. Catalytic events include the launch of the 16 Days of 

Activism campaign, World Aids Day and the International Day for People with Disabilities. The 

objectives of the 16 days of Activism Against Women and Child Abuse campaign are to change 

behaviour through public awareness and education on the rights of people living with HIV/Aids and 

those who are HIV positive; to generate awareness of the incidence of violence against women and 

children; to highlight the stories of survivors of gender-based violence and the impact that the campaign 

has had on their lives; and to create awareness of the link between HIV/Aids and gender-based 

violence. Approximately, 310 persons are reached through the 16 Days of Activism programmes. 
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G. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

Skills development is identified as one of the priority needs for sustainable development in rural 

communities within the Cape Winelands District Municipality. Violence, social isolation and low 

education levels make young, unemployed women more vulnerable and increase their risk of sexual 

exploitation. Economic empowerment opportunities reduce conditions of vulnerability and improve 

the resilience of young women. Young people are the important focus and a priority because the 

lack of skills development contributes to increasing unemployment rates amongst youth in rural 

areas. The skills development programme, which also forms part of the EPWP programmes of the 

municipality, enhances employability and SMME development amongst women and youth.  

Driver’s License Training Project 

Cape Winelands District Municipality in partnership with department of Health, Education, Social 

Development and Breede Valley Municipality embarked on an Integrated Governmental Relations 

programme trained 24 interns to obtain driver’s license in the Witzenberg area. The programme 

afforded the participants the opportunity to obtain a Driver’s License. Training consisted out of 10 

(ten) Practical driving lessons and a Driver’s License test. The lack of skills development effects 

sustainable development in the rural communities of the Cape Winelands District. Violence, social 

isolation and low education levels make young, unemployed youth more vulnerable and increase 

their risks of sexual exploitation and drug abuse. The Municipality has identified the need to empower 

young people by providing access to K53 Driver’s License Training. The project was implemented 

by RABE Driving Training Centre, and it was completed in June 2023.   

H. YOUTH PROGRAMME 

Young people are at the heart of the future of South Africa, and they face many challenges in modern-

day society. There is great benefit in investing in young people by creating pathways for accelerated 

development. When young people can claim their right to health, education and decent working 

conditions, they become a powerful force for economic development and positive change. Initiatives 

for youth are crucial in terms of the economy and the prevention of social crimes. Youth development 

programmes were implemented in partnership with various youth sector organisations. These 

programmes focused on equipping the youth with life skills, job readiness, entrepreneurial skills and 

career guidance.  

Grade 12 Top Achievers  

The Grade 12 Top Achievers annually event was held on the 6th of February 2023 in Witzenberg. 

The Cape Winelands District Municipality host this event in partnership with the Department of 

Education. Learners and parents from across the district took part in the event. The programme 

director was Mr Pietie Williams, Executive Director at the CWDM and the CWDM Executive Mayor, 

Ald (Dr) Elna von Schlicht was the guest speaker.   
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Sports, recreational and cultural programmes provide opportunities for vulnerable groups to 

participate in mass participation events. These programmes enhance social cohesion amongst 

communities and allow children, families, senior citizens, the disabled, men and women to participate 

in and attend numerous events that would otherwise have been in accessible to them. 

Sports and Cultural Events Funding Programme 

Funding was provided to support sports and cultural organisations in implementing mass 

participation events in order to maximise the impact of healthy lifestyles promoted by community 

organisations across the Cape Winelands Municipal district. This programme also enhances the 

capacity of beneficiary organisations to render services that will contribute to the achievement of our 

strategic objectives. The programme provides opportunities to vulnerable groups to advance to local, 

provincial and national level competitions. During the 2022/2023 financial year, 33 organisations 

benefited by this programme.   

Clubs supported  

A number of clubs and organisations were supported to honour their league games across the 
district. 10 357 people from rugby clubs, soccer clubs and NPOs were reached via various sporting 
codes across the district. 
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LEGAL FRAMEWORK  
 
In terms of Section 156(1)(a) in Part B of Schedule 4 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, 

municipal health services (MHS) are entrusted to local authorities. According to Section 84(1)(i) of the Local 

Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998), MHS was consequently declared the 

responsibility of a district municipality (Category C) and/or metropolitan area (Category A). 

 

The National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003) in Section 32(1) tasks every metropolitan and district 

municipality to ensure the provision/rendering of MHS. 

 

Therefore, the Minister of Local Government and Housing in Government Notice No. 826, dated 

13 June 2003, with effect from 1 July 2004 entrusted the delivery of MHS to district and metropolitan 

municipalities. 

 

In terms of Section 1 of the National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003), municipal health services were 

declared to consist of: 

• water quality monitoring; 

• food control; 

• solid waste management; 

• health surveillance of premises; 

• surveillance and prevention of contagious diseases, excluding immunisation; 

• vector control; 

• environmental pollution control; 

• disposal of the dead; and 

• safe handling of chemical substances, excluding port health, malaria control and control of hazardous 
substances. 

 
MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES MISSION AND VISION  
 
MISSION  
 
To ensure a well-managed, accessible, quality, comprehensive and equitable municipal health service 

throughout the Cape Winelands District. 

 
VISION  
 
A safe and healthy environment for all communities within the Cape Winelands district. 
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PROJECTS 
 

MHS – WATER AND SANITATION PROJECT 
 
The Cape Winelands District Municipality recognises the plight of poor rural communities 

and the health consequences that result from unsafe drinking water and inadequate 

sanitation services. These conditions have a direct bearing on the health status of 

communities and negatively impacts productivity and the local economy.  

Through the Water and Sanitation Project, the municipality has once again shown its 

commitment to improving the health and wellbeing of rural communities. This is achieved 

through the provision of subsidies to landowners for the provision or upgrading of water and 

sanitation services to farm workers and rural dwellers.  

Despite the current difficult economic circumstances, farmers still made use of these 

subsidies and improved water and sanitation services. In this financial year subsidies were 

paid for the following services: 

• 36 Farm households received access to safe drinking water inside the house. 

• 43 Farm households were provided with Bathroom Facilities which consist of an 

Handwash basin, Shower and Toilet facility. 

 

Supporting sustainability of these 

projects and aimed at improving the 

general hygiene amongst rural 

communities. The project appointed a 

service provider (Keep the Dream) to 

provide Health Education sessions to 

beneficiary communities and rural 

dwellers.  

These health education sessions 

were also rolled out at Rural Schools 

with the focus on addressing the importance of water conservation, basic hygiene habits 

and how to use the school's ablution facilities correctly. 

These Health Education sessions 

were provided to a total of 2960 

persons on farms and in the Rural 

schools. 
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ANNUAL ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH EDUCATION  

 
A as part of our Annual Environmental Health Education Programme, Municipal Health Services 
presented live theatre performances throughout the Cape Winelands. 
 
The project was aimed at creating environmental awareness amongst grade 1-3 primary school 
learners about environmental issues and to change 
negative behavioural patterns. 
 
The performances, took on the format of live puppet 
show using interactive theatre techniques. 
  
Performances were available in Afrikaans; English and 
Xhosa depending upon the preferred language of the 
school. 
 
A total of 70 schools were visited and reached a total of 
18 684 learners. 
 
The performance content included education on:  
personal hygiene (including oral hygiene and 
handwashing), sanitation (the impact of unhygienic 
conditions/behaviour on human health e.g., the 
spreading of germ), illnesses caused by bad sanitation and 
hygiene, water conservation, littering, and recycling. 
These performances were well received by both 
learners and educators alike. 
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EDUCATION AND TRAINING 2022/23 
 

PROTECTING OUR COMMUNITIES 

TRAINING PROVIDED  

NUMBER 
OF 
SESSIONS 

NUMBER OF 
PEOPLE 
TRAINED/REACHED 

RELATED 
EDUCATIONAL 
MATERIAL 
DISSEMINATED 

Duties of the Food Handler 27 430 
96 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Standards & Requirements 
for Formal Food Premises 5 40 

 

16 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Cleaning and Disinfection 
of Food Premises and 
Equipment 3 40 

 

55 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Health Certification of 
Foodstuffs Destined for 
Export – MHS Protocol, 
Documentation and 
Procedures 1 2 

 

Transport, storage and 
display of foodstuffs 1 11 

 

Analysis of the scope of 
functions of MHS (food 
safety practices in food 
premises) 1 

51 1st year Nursing 
Students of the 
Western Cape 
College of Nursing- 
Boland/Overberg 
Campus 

 

Information Session: Food 
Hygiene, Food Poisoning 
and General Premises 
Hygiene. 1 

40 Grade 11 
hospitality learners. 

 

 

19 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Informal Food Traders 3 32 
76 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Paediatric Surge Season 
(Diarrhoea Educational 
Awareness)   

100 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Personal Hygiene   8 669 
75 posters & 
pamphlets. 
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Health Standards for Early 
Childhood Development 
Centres 7 176 

 

Handwashing 22 1995 
260 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Be Waterwise  2 201 
34 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Interactive Health 
Education Live Theatre 
Performances 54 13868 

 

Health & Hygiene: Water & 
Sanitation Subsidy 
Program. 30 2960 

 

Cleaning Campaign 1 
51 Grade 4 school 
learners 

90 posters & 
pamphlets. 

Stop Flies   
130 posters & 
pamphlets. 

World Environmental 
Health Day awareness 
activities 2 147 

 

Air pollution 
class workbook 
launch X 5 
books 

Cholera   

150 posters and 
pamphlets  

Toilet Hygiene    

213 posters & 
pamphlets. 

TOTAL 168 20713 1319 

                 
FUNCTIONS 

WATER QUALITY MONITORING  
 
DEFINITION 
 
Monitoring and surveillance of water safety, quality and availability intended for human consumption, 

recreational and industrial use. 

 
This function includes the following: 

• Monitoring of water reticulation systems in terms of health-related issues; 

• Monitoring of quality and availability of water intended for human consumption, recreation or industrial 
use; 

• Regular sampling and analysis of water; 
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• Identify and control sources of water pollution; 

• Protection of water sources and resources through the enforcement of laws and regulations relating to 
water quality; 

• Ensure water supply that is safe for human consumption and that complies with the Water Services Act, 
1997 (Act No. 108 of 1997) and SANS Code 241; 

• Implementation of health and hygiene awareness actions and education relating to water quality, water 
supply and sanitation. 

 
This function excludes water supply and purification. 
 

WATER QUALITY SAMPLING 2022-2023  

 Number of 
samples taken 

Number of 
samples 
compliant 

Percentage 
Compliance 

General limit for wastewater discharged 
into a water resource 

124 78 63% 

Moore pads 4 4 100% 

SANS 241 Farms Non-Water Services 
Authority: Specifications for Drinking 
Water 

194 121 62% 

SANS 241 Rural Schools Non-Water 
Services Authority: Specifications for 
Drinking Water 

153 74 48% 

SANS 241 Water Services Authority: 
Specifications for Drinking Water 

616 497 81% 

Special limit for wastewater discharged 
into a water resource 

47 13 28% 

Standard for rivers, dams, canals 178 119 68% 

Standard for swimming pool water 87 78 90% 

Water used in milking sheds 6 5 71% 

TOTAL 1 409   

 
The provision of water services is the responsibility of Local (B) municipalities. Non-complying results are 
brought to the attention of local municipalities. Intergovernmental structures are in place and the portfolio 
councillor for MHS has also entered into bilateral talks with local municipalities. Municipal Health Services 
provide education to affected communities and where necessary issue warnings to communities.  
Areas of concern remains the release of treated waste water into our natural water resources that does not 
conform with water quality standards as prescribed by permits applicable to these waste water treatment 
sites. The enforcement of these permit conditions and standards remains the responsibility of the 
Department of Water Affairs.    
 
The quality of drinking water in rural areas remain an area of concern. Water Services have not stepped up 
to take responsibility for the quality and quantity of drinking water supplied to rural dwellers outside their 
water supply networks. Water supplied in rural areas are mostly untreated and from unprotected sources 
and is done by private landowners. According to the Water Services Act responsibility for the provision of 
water services remains the responsibility of Water Services Authorities. This Act does allow for Water Services 
Authorities to make use of water services intermediaries, however, it is very clear that contracts should be 
in place and should address issues such as quantities, quality and compensation. Currently no such contracts 
are in place.    
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FOOD CONTROL 
 
DEFINITION 
 
Food control is described by the World Health Organisation (WHO) as a mandatory regulatory activity of 

enforcement by national or local authorities to provide consumer protection and ensure that all foods are 

safe, wholesome and fit for human consumption during production, handling, storage, processing and 

distribution; conform to quality and safety requirements and are honestly and accurately labelled as 

prescribed by law. 

 
The function ensures consumer protection through the following actions: 

• Routine inspections of food at the point of production, storage, distribution and consumption. 

• Regulate food premises regarding hygiene and the prevention of nuisances through certification, regular 
inspections and the enforcement of the Regulations governing General Hygiene requirements for Food 
Premises, the Transport of Food and Related Matters, R638 of 23 June 2018; 

• Regulate milking sheds and issue Certificates of Acceptability for Milking Sheds in terms of Regulations 
relating to Hygiene Requirements for Milking Sheds and the Transport of Milk and Related Matters, 
R961 of 23 November 2012; 

• Regulate the informal food industry by means of R638 of 23 June 2018; 

• Control of food premises by issuing Certificates of Acceptability for Food Premises in terms of Regulation 
R638 of 23 June 2018; 

• Ensure that food is safe and healthy for human consumption through enforcement of the Foodstuffs, 
Cosmetics and Disinfectants Act, 1972 (Act No. 54 of 1972); 

• The detention, seizure, condemnation and sampling of foodstuffs in terms of Regulations relating to the 
Powers and Duties of Inspectors and Analysts conducting Inspections and Analyses on Foodstuffs and 
at Food Premises, R328 of 20 April 2007; 

•  Monitor labelling of foodstuffs as prescribed by the Foodstuffs, Cosmetics and Disinfectants Act, 1972 
(Act No. 54 of 1972); 

• Provide education and training on food safety to the food industry; and 

• Issue Export Certificates at the request of industries. 
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FOOD SAFETY SAMPLING 2022 – 2023 

 Number 
of 
samples 
taken 

Number 
of 
samples 
compliant 

Percentage 
Compliance 

Surface swabs analysed 60 34 57% 

Cooked poultry 103 88 85% 

Cooked seawater and freshwater foods 57 49 86% 

Dairy products or composite dairy products with the 
exception of ripened cheese 

118 103 87% 

Desiccated coconut 2 2 100% 

Dried spices and aromatic plants 73 50 68% 

Edible Ices 31 25 81% 

Egg product after pasteurization or irradiation 6 6 100% 

Fruit juice for consumption 48 36 75% 

General micro analyses of foodstuffs 148 115 78% 

Honeybush tea at the point of sale 1 1 100% 

Ripened cheese 22 21 95% 

Natural mineral water or bottled water 77 43 56% 

Partly cooked or uncooked seawater and freshwater foods 16 12 75% 

Pasteurised milk, pasteurised reconstituted (prepared) 
milk, pasteurised skimmed milk, pasteurised reconstituted 
(prepared) skimmed milk or pasteurised cream 

176 142 81% 

Raw milk intended for further processing 17 7 41% 

raw milk that has become sour for consumption 1 1 100% 

Raw milk, raw cream, raw skimmed milk, raw reconstituted 
(prepared) milk or raw reconstituted (prepared) skimmed 
milk for consumption 

1 0 0% 

Rooibos tea packed in retail packaging at the point of sale 2 2 100% 

Sterilised cream, sterilised milk, sterilised reconstituted 
(prepared) milk or UHT cream or UHT milk 

1 1 100% 

TOTAL 960   

ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN RELATION TO FOOD CONTROL  

Number of inspections conducted at food 
premises 

7595 

Applications for Certificates of Acceptability 
inspections conducted  

792 
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Food control is and remains a focus area for MHS. Serious incidents of non-compliance will result in the 
issuing of noncompliance notices or withdrawal of a certificate of acceptability and may result in a summons 
to appear in court or often in the temporary or permanent closure of a business. 
 
In relation to food sampling, suspect products may be detained and or seized and destroyed. Foodstuffs may 
be removed from shelves at a local, provincial or nation level. Food Control is a function that cannot be 
limited to geographical borders and subsequently intergovernmental relations are important in food control.  
 
Provincial structures such as the Western Cape Food Control Committee exists where Local, provincial and 
National government along with private sector industries gather to discuss areas of concern and collate 
uniform actions to address areas of concern. The MHS the Division of the CWDM has been an active member 
of this committee for many years.     
 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 
DEFINITION 
 
Monitoring of waste management systems, refuse, healthcare waste, hazardous waste and sewage. 

 
This function refers to: 

• the monitoring of waste management systems, including healthcare waste (SANS 10248: 2004), 
hazardous waste, sewage and waste water; 

• monitoring for the occurrence of health nuisances during the storage, treatment, collection, handling 
and disposal of the various categories of waste; 

• taking samples of any waste product and the analysis thereof in order to determine possible health risks; 

• the identification of needs and motivation for the promotion of sanitation; 

• the enforcement of municipal by-laws and the National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003) where 
health nuisances arise as a result of waste; 

• excludes the operation of a waste management system as rendered by B-municipalities; and 

• educating communities within the Cape Winelands on issues of waste management and pollution 
control. 
 

MHS have been actively involved in several ongoing cases involving major industries in the district. Several 
statements have been taken from aggrieved members of the public relating to inadequate handling and 
disposal of waste resulting in odour nuisances. Notices have been served on these industries and appeals 
have been heard by the Mayor. As a direct result of these interventions by the MHS Division these companies 
will be spending millions towards the upgrade of waste treatment systems and also projects that involve 
turning waste into energy over the coming years. A turnaround strategy and timeframes have been agreed 
upon. It is trusted that these interventions will address the complaints of community members. Company 
details and names may and will not be disclosed for legal reasons.   
 
HEALTH SURVEILLANCE OF PREMISES 
 

Number of Certificates of Acceptability issued 763 

Number of orders and notices issued to food 
premises 

85 

Health Certificates issued for exports 1791 
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DEFINITION 
 
The identification, monitoring and evaluation of health risks, nuisances and hazards and instituting remedial 

and preventative measures. This function includes: 

• the identification, monitoring and evaluation of health risks, nuisances and hazards; 

• acting in terms of the National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003) and the municipal health by-laws to 
ensure that corrective and preventative measures are implemented; 

• registering and certifying funeral undertakers’ premises and mortuaries in terms of R363 of 22 May 2013, 
regulations relating to the management of human remains; 

• monitoring premises on an ongoing basis for compliance with health regulations relating to smoking in 
public places; 

• providing inputs towards environmental impact assessments on health-related issues; 

• the prevention or reduction of any condition on any premises that may be hazardous to the health or 
welfare of people; 

• law enforcement; and 

• educating communities of the Cape Winelands on communicable diseases. 
 
SURVEILLANCE AND PREVENTION OF COMMUNICABLE DISEASES EXCLUDING IMMUNISATIONS  
 
DEFINITION 
 
The identification, monitoring and prevention of any disease that can be communicated directly or indirectly 

from any animal or through any agent to any person or from any person suffering therefrom or who is a 

carrier to any other person. 

 
This function entails: 

• the identification, investigation and monitoring of outbreaks of listed notifiable medical conditions; 

• the introduction of the required corrective and preventative measures; 

• deployment of the required response teams in respect of municipal health; 

• the promotion of health and hygiene aimed at preventing the incidence of environmental conditions that 
could result in contagious diseases; 

• the drafting of contingency plans for certain diseases and giving inputs and participating in disaster 
management plans; and 

• the collection, analysis and dissemination of epidemiological data and information. 
 

No. of cases of notifiable medical conditions investigated 51 

 
 

VECTOR CONTROL  
 
A vector is any organism (insect or rodent) that can transmit a disease from one organism to another. 

 
DEFINITION 
 
Monitoring, identification, evaluation and prevention of vectors. 
 
The function refers to: 
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• the elimination or correction of conditions promoting the habits and breeding habits of vectors; 
and 

• developing awareness in communities of zoonotic diseases by means of vectors and the control 
thereof through education and training. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTION CONTROL  
 
DEFINITION 
 
The identification, evaluation, monitoring and prevention of land, soil, noise, water and air pollution. 
 
The National Health Act, 2003 (Act No. 61 of 2003) refers to pollution as per definition in Section 1 of the 

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998), which defines pollution as any change 

in the environment caused by: • substances • radioactive or other waves or • noise, odours, dust or heat; 

emitted from any activity, including the storage or treatment of waste or substances, construction and the 

provision of services, whether engaged in by any person or an organ of state, where the change has an 

adverse effect on human health or wellbeing or on the composition, resilience and productivity of natural or 

managed ecosystems, or on materials useful to people, or will have such an effect in the future. 

 

The function relates to the identification, evaluation, monitoring and prevention of the pollution of soil, 

water, air and noise in so as far as it relates to health: 

• Promote living areas safe for your health;  

• Identify pollution agents and sources;  

• Provide health-related inputs regarding new developments;  

• Evaluate and give input regarding environmental impact studies; and 

• Educate and train communities regarding environmental pollution.  
 
 
 
DISPOSAL OF THE DEAD  
 
DEFINITION 
 
Compliance monitoring of funeral undertakers, mortuaries, embalmers, crematoria, graves and cemeteries 

and to manage, control and monitor exhumations and reburial or disposal of human remains. 

 
This function refers to the monitoring and certification of: 

• undertakers and embalmers; 

• mortuaries and other places involved in the handling of human remains; 

• facilities for storing corpses/ human remains; 

• treatment, removal or transport of corpses; 

• monitoring of cemeteries, crematoriums and other facilities for the disposal of corpses; and 

• monitoring and supervision of exhumations and re-interments. 
 
There are currently two crematoria and 36 certified undertakers operating within the boundaries of the 

CWDM. 
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No of pauper burials concluded. 12 

 
 
SAFE HANDLING OF CHEMICAL SUBSTANCES  
 
DEFINITION 
 
The monitoring, identification, evaluation and prevention of risks relating to chemicals hazardous to humans 

(e.g. storage and use of agricultural substances). 

 
This function refers to: 

• the education and training of high-risk groups and communities in the safe use and handling of 
chemicals; and 

• investigating incidences of pesticide poisoning. 
 
 

 

 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT  

The responsibility and accountability for the implementation of the National Environmental 

Management: Air Quality Act (NEM: AQA) in the CWDM resorts in the Municipal Health Services 

and Air Quality Management division within the Department Community Development and Planning 

Services.  

CWDM Air Quality Management Plan 

To ensure the effective execution of the assigned roles and legislative responsibilities of air quality 

management under NEM: AQA, the approved 2nd Generation CWDM district specific AQMP in 

terms of Section 15 (2) of NEM: AQA, was included as a sector plan in the CWDM Integrated 

Development Plan. The CWDM has a designated air quality officer (AQO) in terms of Section 14(3) 

of the NEM: AQA to co-ordinate matters pertaining to air quality management within the district. 

For proactive, effective air quality management and planning within the CWDM and to give effect to 

Section 24 of the Constitution, the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No 107 of 

1998) (NEMA) and NEM: AQA, the CWDM has an approved district specific air quality management 

plan (AQMP) and designated air quality officer. 

The 2nd Generation CWDM is reflected in the CWDM IDP and outline air quality management goals 

and objectives for effective management of air quality within the district. 

The 2nd Generation CWDM AQMP are being reviewed and the 3rd Generation CWDM AQMP will aim 

to meet the objectives and framework fundamentals of the 3rd Generation Western Cape AQMP. The 

CWDM 3rd Generation AQMP will be finalised in the first quarter of the CWDM 2023-2024 financial 

year.  
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Air Quality Training 

The CWDM Air Quality Officer (AQO) and/or CWDM officials attended the following 

training/workshops over the reporting period: - 

• Department of Forestry, Fisheries and Environment (DFFE) – NAEIS Audit Training – 13 July 

2022 

• DFFE – Emission Management Training  – 22-26 August 2022 

• DFFE – Multi Stakeholder Workshop on proposed amendments to National Dust Regulations – 

24 August 2022 

• DFFE – National Dust Control Regulations Implementation – 1 September 2022 

• DFFE – Multi Stakeholder Workshop on proposed Section 21 amendments – 7 September 2022 

• DFFE – Workshop on Stack Monitoring – 12 October 2022 

• DFFE – Tank Emission Model Training – 2 November 2022 

• Department Environmental Affairs and Development Planning (DEA&DP) – Workshop on Air  

Quality Management and Urban Sprawl – 30 November 2022 

 

 

 

Air Quality Monitoring 

During this reporting period DEA&DP Directorate Air Quality Management (D:AQM) operated three 

ambient air quality monitoring stations within the CWDM as part of the Western Cape Ambient Air 

Quality Monitoring Network, respectively in Stellenbosch, Worcester and Paarl. The stations report 

real time air quality measurements from each monitoring station and provide an indication of the 

possible causes of air pollution in an area. The Worcester ambient air quality monitoring station are 

reporting real time to the South African Air Quality Information System (SAAQIS) system as part of 

the DEFF National Air Quality Indicator project. 

All Section 21 listed activities and Section 23 controlled emitters perform annual compliance 

emission monitoring in 2022 and report their monitored data to the CWDM. 

Intergovernmental Cooperation / Industry Working Groups 

An intergovernmental co-operation with the five local municipalities and DEA&DP Directorate: Air 

Quality Management ensured integrated air quality management across the district .The CWDM 

engaged with different spheres of government in mutually addressing air quality matters within the 

district. 

During this reporting period, the CWDM assisted with the following air quality related matters within 

the municipalities: 

 

Drakenstein Municipality 

• Intergovernmental engagement between CWDM, Drakenstein Municipality and DEA&DP to 

address public complaints on offensive odorous emissions. 

• Assist Drakenstein Municipality on input towards organic solvents used at printing company 

in Paarl. 

• Input towards a smoke/odour complaint related to the operation of a coffee roaster in Paarl. 
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• Input towards complaints from residential properties wrt emissions and noise from an 

adjacent shop’s standby generator. 

• Assist Drakenstein Municipality on complaints on burning of domestic waste on farms in the 

Windmeul area.  

• Input to Basic Assessment on proposed residential development in Paarl in the close 

proximity of operational brick manufacture utilizing clamp kilns. Development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stellenbosch Municipality 

• Combined site visit and addressing complaints on odour from a free-range pig farm in 

Stellenbosch.  

• Combined site visit wrt noise emanating from farm operating as wedding venue in Devon 

Valley. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

        Image: Illegal burning plastic 
 

 

 

• Input to emissions complaints from standby 

generators at security residential estate. 

• CWDM input and attendance to biodiversity 

control burn in the Jan Marais Park in 

Stellenbosch. 

• Site visit and input to a proposed project to 

erect a pilot Zig-zag kiln at Cabrica Bricks 

in Koelenhof. 

• Intergovernmental investigation into 

complaint burning of plastic on farm next to 

R44. 

• Provide input to Stellenbosch Municipality 

on a proposed bio-char plant in 

Jonkershoek. 

 

• ek. 

 

• Input to emissions complaints from standby 
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Assist and provide input to Stellenbosch Municipality with the drafting of the Stellenbosch 

Municipality 3rd Generation Air Quality Management Plan 

 

Witzenberg Municipality 

• Intergovernmental discussions with Witzenberg Municipality and DEA&DP (Air Quality & 

Waste Management) on complaints of smoke emanating from Prince Alfred Hamlet dump 

site 

• Site visit and discussions on boiler smoke complaint from Ceres Fruit Processors in Ceres. 

• Input to emissions emitted from small boilers at Bear Nibbles factory in Wolseley. 

 

 

 

 

Breede Valley Municipality 

 

 

 

 

 

 

stockpiling of sand on a municipal site premises in Fairbairn Street, Worcester. 

• Intergovernmental engagement with Breede Valley Municipality, DEA&DP and relevant 

industries wrt public complaints of possible offensive odours from the Vinaqua wastewater 

treatment plant in Worcester. 

 

 

 

 

• Odour emanating from drains adjacent 

RCL Foods in Worcester addressed with 

Breede Valley Municipality and the CWDM 

Municipal Health Services. 

• AQO input to burning to recycle material at 

scrap dealer in Worcester. 

• Engagement with Breede Valley Municipal 

AQO on a dust complaint wrt  

 

• Odour emanating from drains adjacent 

RCL Foods in Worcester addressed with 

Breede Valley Municipality and the CWDM 

Municipal Health Services. 

• AQO input to burning to recycle material at 

scrap dealer in Worcester. 

• Engagement with Breede Valley Municipal 

AQO on a dust complaint wrt  

 

• Odour emanating from drains adjacent 

RCL Foods in Worcester addressed with 

 

        Image: Dust from handling of sand 

 

 

        Image: Dust from handling of sand 
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Langeberg Municipality 

• AQO’s input to the Langeberg Town Planning Department wrt a rezoning application from 

Agricultural Zone I To Industrial Zone III for a proposed Manganese Mine. 

• Intergovernmental discussions with DEA&DP on public complaints from biomass burning of 

invasive plant clearing on the Bree River by Working for Water.  

• Assist Langeberg Municipality on setting requirements for installation of wood- and gas fired 

pottery kilns in McGregor. 

The CWDM worked closely with industry with specific reference to Section 21 listed activities and 

Section 23 controlled emitters addressing matters to ensure compliance under NEM:AQA and 

offered support to matters over and above NEM: AQA. 

The CWDM AQO attended and provided feedback on air quality management on National, 

Provincial, local municipal wrt the implementation of the NEM: AQA, as well amendments to 

legislation related to air quality management at the following: 

• New or amended legislation under NEMA and its SEMA’s as well as other air quality 

management related strategies such as – 

- Draft Section 23 temporary asphalt plants amendment 

- Draft Section 23 small boiler amendment 

- Draft National Dust Regulations amendment 

- Proposed Section 21 Listed Activities amendments. 

• Distribution and sharing of air quality related articles  

• Quarterly DEA&DP Technical Meetings on AEL’s and Controlled Emitters 

• Quarterly and Special Western Cape Air Quality Officer and Noise Forum Meetings 

- Attendance quarterly Provincial Air Quality Officers and Noise Forums 

- Attendance quarterly Provincial Western Cape AQMP Working Groups for implement the 

Provincial Western Cape AQMP 

- Input into the Western Cape Air Quality Officer’s report 2021 

• Provincial EMI Forum Meeting 

• Mintech Meeting on Monitoring Network Redesign Discussions 

• DEA&DP Technical Meeting on Section 24H. 

• Engagement with different DEA&DP directorates and local municipalities on:- 

o NEMA Section 30 incidents (air quality related) 

o NEMA Environmental Authorisations 

o Re-zoning and/or departure applications 
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Image: CWDM assist Stellenbosch Municipality on formulating 3rd Generation AQMP 

 

 

 

 

Managing Industry – Listed Activities and Controlled Emitters  

Fourteen Section 21 Listed activities in operation within the CWDM during the reporting period. 

Meetings conducted with these AEL Holders and assistance provided with proposed changes to 

processes for cleaner emissions and installation of more advance abatement equipment. Guidance 

offered by the CWDM on mitigation measures at some industries and assisted these industries to 

capacitate their employees involved with administering the AQM function. 

The CWDM followed an intergovernmental approach in addressing matter within AEL’s with 

interaction with DFFE, DEA&DP and the local air quality officers. 

AEL holders and operators of controlled emitters attended a DEADP NAEIS refresher training to 

enable industries to submit their annual submit their emission inventory reports in terms of the 

National Atmospheric Emission Reporting Regulations. All operators timeously submitted the 

required annual reports to NAEIS for auditing. 

 

With the decline of the South Africa amid the unprecedented energy crisis, two listed activities, 

operating clay brick production facilities, ceased operations during 2022.  

All Section 21 listed activities and Section 23 controlled emitters in operation during this reporting 

period was included in Table 1.  

Table 1: Section 21 Listed Activities & Section 23 Controlled Emitters 
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ACTIVITY TYPE OF ACTIVITY ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION 

Boland Bricks Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

Cabrico Brickfields  Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

Cape Lime Section 21 Lime production 

De Hoop Brickfields Section 21 Brick production 

Drakenstein Crematorium Section 21 Crematorium 

IC-SA Crematorium Section 21 Crematorium 

Naude Bakstene Bk Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

Twohil Company t/a 

Tulbagh Bricks 
Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

RCL Foods Section 21 Animal Rendering Plant 

Rheinmetall Denel 

Munition 
Section 21 Ammunition Production 

Worcester Bakstene  Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

Western Cape Provincial 

Veterinary Laboratory 
Section 21 Veterinary Waste Incinerator 

# McMillan Bricks Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

# Nuwejaarsrivier Landgoed 

t/a Paarl Brickfields 
Section 21 Clamp kilns for brick production 

Ashton & Langeberg 

Foods 
Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

Ceres Fruit Juices Section 23 
Small Boiler - Coal & HFO fired 

boilers 

Ceres Fruit Processors Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

Distell Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

ACTIVITY TYPE OF ACTIVITY ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION 

KWV Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

Ashton & Langeberg 

Foods 
Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

Ceres Fruit Juices Section 23 
Small Boiler - Coal & HFO fired 

boilers 
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Rhodes Foods Pniel Section 23 Small Boiler - Coal fired boilers 

# Listed Activities ceased operations during reporting period. 

Upon receipt of annual sampling reports and compliance inspections conducted at the listed 

activities, the CWDM accessed the compliance to the requirements set within the atmospheric 

emission licenses (AEL) for these facilities.  

Non-compliance to set minimum emission standards and some AEL requirements resulted in the 

CWDM requesting a listed facility to halt production pending compliance to set air quality standards 

and AEL requirements. The facility adhered to the CWDM request and stopped production. The 

facility stopping production had a knock-on effect on the rendering of this service within the province, 

accentuated attention from the public and media in the non-operation of this facility.  

Air Quality-related Complaints 

The CWDM acted and investigated complaints, with the more complex complaints addressed 

through intergovernmental interaction between DEA&DP, local AQO’s and the CWDM AQO.  

The CWDM complaints report include complaints as received by the district municipality or 

complaints related to Section 21 listed activities or Section 23 controlled emitters within the CWDM. 

Not all complaints attended to by the local municipalities are captured within the CWDM statistics 

therefor the number of complaints towards air quality management within the district is most likely 

under-reported. 

Offensive odours remain the main contributor to complaints within the CWDM. The CWDM interacted 

with the local municipal AQO’s to solve odour complaints and to find solutions on identification of the 

sources of odour for non-listed activities. NEM: AQA require facilities to prevent emissions 

considered malodorous or a nuisance to any reasonable person but do not have minimum emission 

limits for odorous emissions. No legislated standards for odour causing pollutants for authorities to 

measure against for the management of facilities possibly emitting emissions considered 

malodorous and to assess compliance.    

Table 2: Air Quality Complaints 

 

COMPLAINTS July - Sept Oct - Dec Jan - March April - June 

Fumes 3 1 0 1 

Smoke 4 3 4 2 

Dust 0 2 3 1 

Burning waste/Tyres 2 3 1 1 

Farm land burning 3 2 2 3 

Crop spraying 0 2 0 0 

Offensive odours 6 5 6 6 



                                                             
                                        2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

                                         
 

105 | P a g e  

TOTAL 18 18 16 14 

 

 

Way forward – Recommendations 

The CWDM identified the following actions as a priority to ensure proactive and effective air quality 

management and planning within the CWDM: 

 

• Review 2nd Generation CWDM AQMP. Develop 3rd Generation CWDM AQMP for Council 

approval and inclusion in CWDM IDP. 

• Formulation and promulgation of an Air Quality bylaw for the CWDM. 

 

Successes 

 

• 100% NAEIS submission and audits on all Section 21 listed activities and Section 23 controlled 

emitters within the CWDM. 

• Good working relationship between CWDM air quality officer and other spheres of government 

to manage air quality within the district and minimize impacts on the receptor community and 

the environment. 

For additional information on Air Quality Management, refer to Appendix 2 
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DIVISION: DISASTER MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
The Cape Winelands Disaster Management Centre (CWDMC) consists of a Disaster Management 

Centre and four permanent staff members assisted by an intern. The purpose of the CWDMC is to 

ensure the coordination of multidisciplinary and multisectoral risk reduction through integrated 

institutional capacity for disaster risk management, disaster risk assessment, response and 

recovery.  

 

The CWDMC is fully functional and compliant with the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 

of 2002) as amended by the Disaster Management Amendment Act, 2015 (Act No. 16 of 2015).  

 

The functions of Disaster Management include:  

• Risk assessment: A process to determine the nature and extent of risk by analysing potential 

hazards and evaluating existing conditions of vulnerability that could pose a potential threat or 

harm to people, property, livelihoods and the environment on which they depend. 

• Planning: This includes the development of disaster management plans, standard operating 

procedures, seasonal preparedness plans, and contingency plans. 

• Risk reduction: This includes:  

o prevention – how to avoid the adverse impacts of a hazard, which includes awareness 

and education programmes. 

o mitigation – this can include structural or non-structural measures undertaken to limit the 

adverse impacts of a hazard, including policies or physical structures. 

o preparedness – activities and measures taken in advance to ensure effective response 

to the impacts of hazards, including the issuing of early warnings, evacuation of people, 

etc.  

• Response: The provision of assistance during or immediately after a disaster. This can be short-

term such as the provision of relief items, e.g. food parcels and blankets, or of a protracted 

duration such as setting up of temporary shelters. 

• Recovery: Decisions and actions taken after a disaster with a view to restoring the situation to 

normality or improving the pre-disaster conditions. 

 

During the financial year, the Disaster Management Division’s activities included: 

 

Disaster Management Advisory Forum: 

In terms of Section 51 of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002), the CWDMC 

established a Disaster Management Advisory Forum that consists of representatives from the five 

local municipalities, provincial and national departments and other disaster management role-

players. This forum meets on a bi-annual basis. The forum meetings provide the CWDMC with an 

opportunity to engage role-players on the disaster management-related activities taking place in the 

district. This is an important platform in order to provide members with important information such 

as seasonal forecasts and reports on significant incidents or disasters that have occurred in the 

district. The meetings for 2022/23 took place in November 2022 and May 2023. 

 

Coordination of Disaster Management function in the district:  

COMPONENT H: DISASTER MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
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The Division held quarterly Disaster Management meetings with the local municipalities. The 

purpose of these meetings is to coordinate the function of disaster management in the district. The 

signed service level agreement with local municipalities still exists. This agreement enables the 

district to assist the municipalities with the disaster management function.  

 

Capacity at the local municipalities: The division has continued to support municipalities with 

capacity for the function of disaster management. Interns were provided to Breede Valley, 

Drakenstein and Langeberg Municipalities. The provision of an intern is the first step to build capacity 

within these municipalities. In many municipalities, the function of disaster management is the 

responsibility of the Chief Fire Officer and they do not have a designated Disaster Management 

Officer to perform the function of disaster management.  

 

Early warnings: The division provides early warnings to all Disaster Management Advisory Forum 

members, local municipalities and internal departments. During the 2022/23 financial year, the 

following information was distributed regularly: 

• Weekly dam level reports;  

• Weather alerts disseminated. These weather alerts included flooding, damaging winds, heavy 

rain, snow, veld fires, extreme heat, high discomfort values, heat waves and severe weather;  

• Bi-weekly weather forecasts for the five major towns in our district; 

• Impact-based severe weather warnings sent to local municipalities; and 

• Various health communications, situation reports, etc..  

 

Relief activities: The division provided relief assistance to a number of community members 

affected by fires or flooding. The division works closely with the local municipalities to ensure that 

there is no duplication of assistance. 

 

Coordination of Flooding Incidents: The inclement weather conditions caused severe damages 

and disruptions in most parts of the CWDM in June 2023. The heavy rains and strong winds resulted 

in flooding and damages across the district, causing displacement of communities, extensive 

damages to infrastructure, road closures and inaccessible towns/areas. People that were affected 

by floods were evacuated and accommodated to temporary shelters especially in the Stellenbosch, 

Breede Valley and Drakenstein Municipal areas. 

 

Humanitarian aid in the form of food, blankets, mattresses, hygiene packs were provided by various 

organisations such as by the CWDM, Gift of the Givers and Al-Imdaad foundation to the victims 

which were accommodated at various shelters.   

CWDM also donated blankets, food parcels, warm meals and bottled water to the affected 

municipalities.  

The District Joint Operations Centre (JOC) was activated and daily meetings were held for the 

purpose of the coordination of response and relief effort for the flooding Incidents.   

 
Partnership for risk and resilience: Santam procured R1.26m of equipment for the district and 
local municipalities.  

The handover of this equipment took place in November 2022 at Grande Roche hotel in Paarl. In 
this event all local municipalities officially received their equipment. 
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Disaster Management Launch of the Mascot “Lenny the Leopard”: The launch of the Mascot 

“Lenny the Leopard” took place in May 2023 at Groendal Primary School in Franschhoek. It was 

attended by the CWDM Deputy Mayor, the Portfolio Councillor: Disaster Management, 

Representatives of SANTAM, Stellenbosch Municipal officials, Disaster Management officials and 

the Department of Education.  

 

Following the launch, nine (9) other schools were visited across the district to roll out Flood and Fire 

awareness campaign in a form of an interactive play. The focus was on foundation phase learners 

of the primary schools, aiming to introduce the mascot “Lenny the Leopard” and to ensure that the 

learners are aware of floods, fire and load shedding risks. Along with the play, activity sheets were 

developed for this project which were distributed to reinforce the key messages.  The intention of the 

division was to select lucky winners from each school and the winners receive a gift. 

In total 10 schools were visited across the district and 2372 foundation phase learners were reached. 

This campaign was funded by SANTAM as part of their 3-year partnership that came to an end on 

30 June 2023. 

 

Disaster Management month in celebration of the International Day for Disaster Risk 

Reduction (IDDRR): 

CWDM in collaboration with local municipalities launched Disaster Management month in 

celebration of the International Day for Disaster Risk Reduction (IDDRR) during October 2022 to 

promote a culture of disaster risk reduction within the Cape Winelands District Municipality. The 

events took place over 5 weeks and each week had a different theme which was held in each local 

municipality. 

 

 

Community Safety:  

The Cape Winelands Community Safety Forum (CSF) was established and launched in November 

2022. This launch was attended by the MEC for Community Safety and Police Oversight, Mr Reagan 

Allen, who made a keynote address.  

 

The first Community Safety Forum workshop was held in 14 March 2023 in Worcester Council 

Chambers. 

 

Four (4) quarterly Community Safety Steering Committee meetings were held with the local 

municipalities. The purpose for these steering committee meetings were held to share the latest 

safety concerns and challenges to identify hotspots and focus areas. These meetings are attended 

by all local municipalities within our district where deadlines to submit business plans, quarterly 

reports and progress reports are discussed. In the last meeting, a request was made that the 

municipalities must report back on their festive readiness plans and joint operations. It is unfortunate 

that these meetings are not always well attended as some municipalities’ attendance is very poor, 

however, feedback is received from some municipalities on hotspot areas, which enables the district 

to deploy its resources accordingly. 

Achievements:  

• Identifying hotspots and deploying resources effectively 

• In process of establishing Community Safety Forums in Langeberg and Breede Valley 
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Challenges:  

Poor attendance of the Steering Committee meetings by stakeholders. 
 

The Rural Safety Summit for the Cape Winelands District Municipality also took place in November 

2022. This was a key engagement to review and develop our safety plan in the near future. This 

summit was a two-day engagement where the Minister for Agriculture, Dr Ivan Meyer, and the 

Minister for Community Safety and Police Oversight, Mr Reagan Allen, made keynote addresses to 

the safety stakeholders.  

 

Pepper sprays and awareness caps procured for the safety of women and Gender Based Violence. 

 
 
 
DIVISION: FIRE SERVICES   

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 
 
The Fire Brigade Services Act, 1987 (Act No. 99 of 1987) is the primary piece of legislation regulating 

fire services and provides for the establishment, maintenance, employment, coordination and 

standardisation of fire brigade services. The Cape Winelands District Municipality has established 

and endeavours to maintain a service in accordance with the prescribed requirements. It employs 

its service for: 

• preventing the outbreak or spread of a fire; 

• fighting or extinguishing a fire; 

• the protection of life or property against a fire or other threatening danger; 

• the rescue of life or property from a fire or other danger; 

• the performance of any other function connected with any of the matters referred to above. 
 
The Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998) further mandates the 

CWDM to provide firefighting services serving the area of the district municipality as a whole, which 

includes: 

• planning, coordination and regulation of fire services; 

• specialised firefighting services such as mountain, veld and chemical fire services; 

• co-ordination of the standardisation of infrastructure, vehicles, equipment and procedures; 

• training of fire officers. 
 
VELD FIRE SEASON 
Fire calls per annum within the Cape Winelands District remains above the 1000 mark, which places 
the Fire Service under severe operational difficulty. This season in particular was completely different 
to any other season experienced before, in the sense that huge fires (referred to as extensive area 
with and extended operational period) were experienced from the beginning of the season.  The Fire 
Service was put under constant pressure to balance our resources and to always maintain a state 
of readiness and operational presents. The Fire Services responded and attended to 1130 fires 
reported from 1 July 2022 to 30 April 2023. 
 
Although the numbers are not extraordinary on their own and consistent with previous years, the 
biggest problem has been the number of simultaneous large fires occurring which resulted in the 
resources of various agencies being stretched beyond the limits.  Apart from the number of 
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simultaneous fires, the extreme weather conditions over extended periods such as high 
temperatures and strong winds also contributed to making suppression operations very difficult. 
 
Regular feedback was provided to our Executive Mayor and Portfolio Councillor, Senior 
Management and the Media through our Communications Division regarding major incidents within 
our area of jurisdiction. 
 
STATISTICS 
Veld Fire data for our area of jurisdiction have been collected from our FireWeb system and the 
analyses thereof greatly assist with our strategies, tactics and operational plans going forward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The pie chart above reflects the number and percentage of veld fire incidents from 1 July 2022 to 
30 April 2023.  Therefore, it must be noted that the highest number of veld fire incidents that we have 
attended to are within the boundaries of Stellenbosch and Drakenstein making up a combined 
percentage of 65% of the total calls. 

STELLENBOSCH 
500, 45%

DRAKENSTEIN 
230, 20%

WITZENBERG
140, 12%

BREEDE VALLEY
120, 11%

LANGEBERG
130, 12%

Calls per Local Municipal
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The bar graph above 
depicts the number of calls per month from July 2022 to the period ending April 2023.  It is found 
that the highest frequency of veld fires occurred from October 2022 to March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CAPE WINELANDS FIRE & RESCUE TRAINING ACADEMY 
The Academy was under severe pressure during the past year, mainly due to the shortage of training 

personnel and, despite this challenge, the academy still managed to train 201 Fire Officers, which 

includes our own and those from our partners and neighbouring municipalities. 

 

INTER-AGENCY INVOLVEMENT 
Cape Winelands District Veld Fire Workgroup 
The Fire Services of the CWDM, Cape Nature and Winelands Fire Protection Association entered 

into a memorandum of agreement to cooperate in the optimisation of their organisations and 

resources for systematically and expeditiously managing veld fires within the Cape Winelands 

District municipal area. 

 

It must be noted that this partnership is working well and resulted in fires being secured in their initial 

stages or the spread and impact of the fires being drastically reduced. 

 

Local Municipal Fire Services 
The CWDM has mutual aid agreements with all the local municipalities in the district. They assisted 

our Fire Services at major fires, and when we experienced a high number of fires and our resources 

were stretched to the limit. 

 
Fire Protection Association 
The Winelands Fire Protection Association is functioning very well, and this organisation is maturing, 

as envisaged by the National Veld and Forest Fire Act. It is also the intention to ensure that there is 
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a coordinated and standardised approach to the management of fire risk within the district, such as 

the specifications and siting of firebreaks, equipment and training of members, etc. 

 

MAJOR CAPITAL INVESTMENT 

The Cape Winelands District Municipality’s Fire Services has taken delivery of their state-of-the-art, 
custom-designed mobile Incident Command Bus.  

The simplistic design with a modernised workspace will allow for all partners of CWDM and role-
players to gather within an easily accessible vehicle, to predict, plan and initiate mitigation actions 
in response to major incidents that poses a threat to community and property. 
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International Firefighters Day 
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EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 
 
This component consists of the executive office (Executive Mayor, Councillors and Municipal 
Manager). 
 
Introduction to Executive and Council 
 
Vision 
 

A unified Cape Winelands of excellence for sustainable development 
 
Mission 
 

All structures of the Cape Winelands working together towards effective, efficient and economically 

sustainable development. 

 
Core values 
 

The core values of the CWDM are largely shaped by the moral fiber of the administrative and political 

leadership of the district municipality, guided by the Batho Pele service delivery principles and the 

strategic compass provided by the Western Cape Government (WCG) through its Strategic Plan, 

which reflects the core values of the WCG. 

 
The following core values reflect the character and organisational culture of the CWDM: 
 

• Commitment to the development of people; 

• Integrity in the performance of our duty; 

• Respect for our natural resources; 

• Transparency in accounting for our actions; 

• Regular consultation with customers on the level and quality of services; 

• Higher levels of courtesy and professionalism in the workplace; 

• Efficient spending and responsible utilisation of municipal assets; and 

• Celebrating diversity. 
 
 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AND LEGAL SERVICES  
 
Introduction: Legal Services 
 
The CWDM makes many decisions that affect the residents in its area of jurisdiction. In order to 

ensure that everything is above board and falls within the ambit of the law, Legal Services provide a 

dedicated and quality support and advisory service in order to strengthen the CWDM to fulfil its 

constitutional and other legislative mandates in a professional manner and to maintain a workforce 

that is both well-disciplined and satisfied in order to render service delivery at an acceptable level. 

 
Legal priorities  
 

• Legal compliance; 

• Legal support to the Executive Mayor, Speaker and Municipal Manager, Heads of Department, 
Council, committees, departments and divisions; 

COMPONENT I: FINANCIAL AND STRATEGIC SUPPORT SERVICES 
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• Legal advice pertaining to draft policies and contracts; 

• Written and/or oral opinions; 

• Finalisation of legal documents; and 

• Labour relations matters. 
 
Legal impact 
 
Through the provision of legal support and advice to the Office of the Executive Mayor, the Speaker, 

the Municipal Manager, Heads of Department, Council as well as all the various 

departments/divisions of the CWDM, many targets have been achieved, thereby strengthening the 

work relationship and effective teamwork between the various parties. Legal implications and 

opinions are provided on a continuous basis on all Council, Mayoral Committee and other committee 

agenda items. 

 
Introduction: Property Management 
 
Property management is the process of managing the property of the CWDM by maintaining and 

handling activities incidental to the property in order to maximise the use of all the properties as 

contained in the property register and to provide optimal financial, social, economic and operational 

benefits to the CWDM. 

 

The MSA specifically highlights the duty of municipalities to provide services in a manner that is 

sustainable. The MFMA requires municipalities to utilise and maintain their assets in an effective, 

efficient, economical and transparent manner.  

 

The MFMA specifically places responsibility for the management of municipal immovable property 

with the Municipal Manager. Furthermore, the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 

(Act No. 85 of 1993) requires municipalities to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working 

environment, and in particular to keep its immovable property safe. 

 
Property Management priorities 
 

The Municipal Manager is also the principal custodian of the district municipality’s immovable assets, 

including the safeguarding and the maintenance of those assets. The Municipal Manager ensures 

that the district municipality maintains a management, accounting and information system that 

accounts for the immovable assets of the CWDM and ensures that property management is applied 

in a consistent manner and in accordance with legal requirements and recognised good practice. 

The district municipality’s immovable property is valued in accordance with the standard of generally 

recognised accounting practice (GRAP). Furthermore, the district municipality has and maintains a 

system of internal control for the immovable assets, including an asset register. 

 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible to ensure, in exercising her financial responsibilities, that: 
 

• appropriate systems of financial management and internal control are established and carried 
out diligently; 

• the financial and other resources of the district municipality are utilised effectively, efficiently, 
economically and transparently; 

• any unauthorised, irregular, fruitless or wasteful expenditure and losses resulting from criminal 
or negligent conduct are prevented; 

• all revenue due to the district municipality is collected, for example rental income, relating to 
immovable assets; 

http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/process.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/management.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/property.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/handling.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/activity.html
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• the systems, procedures and registers required to validate the financial values of the district 
municipality’s immovable assets are maintained to standards sufficient to satisfy the 
requirements of the Auditor-General; 

• financial processes are established and maintained in order to ensure the district municipality’s 
financial resources are effectively utilised through appropriate asset plans, budgeting, 
purchasing, maintenance and disposal decisions; and 

• the Municipal Manager is appropriately advised on the exercise of powers and duties relating 
to the financial administration of immovable assets.  

 
Property Management impact 
 

The CWDM exhibits good governance and customer care through an efficient and sustainable 

process of property management. Councillors and officials are custodians on behalf of the public of 

immovable municipal assets. Key themes pertaining to municipal property management include: 

• long-term sustainability and risk management; 

• efficient service delivery and improvement; 

• performance monitoring and accountability; 

• community interaction and transparent processes; 

• priority development of minimum basic services for all; and 

• the delivery of support in addressing the needs of the poor. 
 

A municipality has the right to do anything reasonably necessary for, or incidental to, the effective 

performance of its functions and the exercise of its powers in terms of section 156(5) of the 

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and section 8(2) of the MSA. Furthermore, a 

municipal council, within the municipality’s financial and administrative capacity, and having regard 

to practical considerations, has the duty to use the resources of the municipality in the best interests 

of the local community in terms of section 4(2)(a) of the MSA. 

 

Property management at the CWDM incorporates best practice methodologies and is aligned to the 

latest national and provincial legislation such as the MFMA and the Municipal Asset Transfer 

Regulations, 2008 as published in the Government Gazette No. 31346 of 22 August 2008, which 

applies to the transfer and disposal of certain immovable property owned by municipalities and the 

granting by municipalities of rights to use, control or manage certain immovable property. 

 

Comprehensive property management maximises the district municipality’s property assets by 

procuring strategically, managing and maintaining assets throughout their useful lifecycle and 

providing asset visibility through data capturing during the use and disposition phases. 

 
Comment on the performance of Property Services overall 
 
No capital projects. 
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Section 38 of the MSA, determines that a municipality must establish a Performance Management 
System that promotes a culture of performance among office-bearers and its administration and 
oversee its affairs in an economical, effective, efficient and accountable manner. Regulation 7 of the 
Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations further sets out 
the components of a performance management system. 
 
Selected statutory guidelines and regulatory frameworks related to local government institutions 
regulate performance management within the government framework. The following legislation and 
policies reinforce, impact and inform the CWDM Performance Management Policy Framework. 
 

(a) Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996; 
(b) Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (Chapters 5 & 6); 
(c) Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003); 
(d) Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information, 2007; 
(e) Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations (No. 796, Aug 2001); 
(f) White Paper on Transforming Public Service Delivery (Batho Pele), 1997; 
(g) The White Paper on Local Government, 1998; 
(h) Municipal Staff Regulations, GN 890, 2021; 
(i) Municipal Staff Regulations Guideline for Implementation, GN 891, 2021. 

 
Organisational development within the CWDM continuously focuses on the increase of the district 
municipality’s effectiveness and efficiency, in order to develop the CWDM to its full potential and 
seeks to increase effectiveness in terms of the strategic objectives as defined in the IDP within an 
approved budget. 
 
Furthermore, the objective of organisational development is to improve the district municipality’s 
capacity to handle its internal and external functioning and relationships, inclusive of effective 
communication, enhanced ability to cope with organisational challenges, effective decision-making 
processes, appropriate leadership styles, improved skills and higher levels of trust and cooperation 
among employees. 
 
Performance management indicates how well a municipality is meeting its goals and objectives, and 
which policies and processes are working. Therefore, it is a dynamic process of a municipality. It is 
imperative that performance management principles are integrated into the organisational processes 
and aligned within the district municipality’s IDP. Performance management is key to effective 
management that includes planning, budgeting, implementing, monitoring and reporting and that 
aligns with departmental and employee performance in order to ensure improved community 
services and improved quality of life for all living within the Cape Winelands district borders. To 
achieve the aforementioned, the measurements of individual performances within the municipality 
are important. Organisational KPIs` are continuously developed, updated and aligned to 
organisational objectives.  
 
In terms of section 41 of the MSA, the core components of a Performance Management System are 
to: 

▪ Set key performance indicators (KPIs);  

▪ Set measurable performance targets (PTs); 

▪ Monitor, measure and review performance annually;  

CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE 
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▪ Take steps to improve performance, and 

▪ Establish a process of regular reporting. 

 
The CWDM always attempts to ensure that these KPIs are specific, measurable, achievable and 
realistic and linked to a specific timeframe (SMART). A complete institutional performance 
management system must integrate a comprehensive employee performance management system. 
The Individual Performance Management Policy has been designed to assist with performance 
management of employees appointed in terms of section 55(1) (e) of the MSA, within the Cape 
Winelands District Municipality. 
 
In terms of the 2016 IPM Project Plan, the implementation of individual performance management 
is divided into the following stages: 
 
Year 1 – Year 3: From 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019 
Include only managers reporting directly to the Municipal Manager and Section 56 Managers 
 
Year 4:  From 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 
Cascading down to T13  
 
Year 5  From 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 
Cascading down from T12 – T6 
 
Year 6  From 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 
Cascading down from T5 – T3 
In June 2020, the IPM Project Plan was further extended to allow for the following organisational and 
operational challenges. Thus, the extensions per the indicated years are as follows: 
 
Year 4 (from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2021) – Cascading down to T13  
Year 5 (from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024) – Cascading down from T12 – T6 
Year 6 (from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2025) – Cascading down from T5 – T3 
 
In addition to the aforementioned reasons, a number of challenges needed to be resolved in order 
to implement individual performance management up to post level T13 and subsequently T12 – T6. 
This would include the mentioned electronic system challenges, as well as improving the alignment 
of the functions of organisational performance management with individual performance 
management. 
 
In addition, the approved 4th generation IDP formed the foundation of new KPIs` for the 2020/2021 
and outer financial years. A number of new KPIs` were therefore included in the Organisational, 
Municipal Manager and Section 56 Managers’ scorecards. 
 
On 20 September 2021, the Municipal Staff Regulations (MSR) were promulgated in Government 
Gazette 890 (GN 890). This, together with its implementation guideline (GN 891), came with an 
implementation date of 1 July 2022. In terms of the MSR, every municipality must adopt a 
performance management and development system that complies with these regulations.  
 
According to the MSR, the performance management and development system applies to all staff 
members of the municipality and must be integrated with other human resource policies and 
practices, as well as any other organisational development initiatives of the municipality. 
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The introduction of the MSR necessitated the CWDM to immediately halt all performance-related 
practices and compelled the municipality back to the drawing board as all relevant strategies, policies 
and procedures had to be reanalysed in order to ensure compliance with the MSR by 1 July 2022. 
 
Chapter 4 – Performance Management and Development System, coupled with the relevant 
Guidelines, ensures the implementation of a comprehensive performance management and 
development system throughout the entire municipality, covering all levels and aspects (policies, 
procedures and strategies). Furthermore, the MSR ensures full integration of performance 
management with all other HR-related functions including the staff establishment, recruitment and 
selection and skills development. 
 
The Revised Individual Performance Management Policy was amended and consulted with all 
stakeholders and adopted by Council at item C.15.1 on 26 May 2022. In addition, the CWDM 
embarked on procuring a comprehensive Performance Management Development System inclusive 
of an effective electronic Performance Management Application, in order to ensure effective process 
flows and to create an enabling environment to plan, monitor and measure performance against set 
targets and outputs.  
 
On 19 July 2022, Circular No. 12 of 2022 was issued by COGTA, stating that the implementation 
date of Chapter 4: Performance Management and Development System was extended to 
1 July 2023. This provided adequate operational time for the full implementation of Chapter 4. 
Subsequently, Council approved at Item C.15.7 on 26 January 2023 the deferment date for 
implementation of the Revised Individual Performance Management Policy to 01 July 2023. 
 
During May 2023, the CWDM procured the services of a specialized service provider, to: 
 
▪ provide a web-based performance management and development system to address a 

detailed process of reporting, monitoring and evaluating performance on an 
organizational and individual level; and 

▪ cascade individual performance management to all levels in the Municipality. 
 
During June 2023, the service provider, assisted and supported the CWDM to: 

▪ Performed a high-level overview to determine the Municipality’s readiness to implement 

Regulations 890 and 891 and reported on the findings and recommended way forward; 

▪ Conducted awareness sessions and training for all staff of Cape Winelands District 

Municipality on the requirements of Regulations 890 and 891; 

▪ Developed Performance Agreements linked to job descriptions for all permanent employed 

staff compliant with the requirements of Regulation 890; 

▪ Conducted training to all staff on the web-based performance system; 

▪ Drafted the Human Resource Strategy and Plan with regards to the role-out of the 

Performance Management and Development System (PMDS) in the Municipality. 

 

For the 2023/24 year the CWDM will focus on the following: 

▪ Develop a comprehensive Performance Management and Development Framework, aligned 

to the MSR and the CWDM IDP; 

▪ Review the Performance Management Policy to be aligned with Regulation 890; 

▪ Conduct awareness sessions to all staff on the evaluation of staff performance; 

▪ Update the Personal Development Plans of all staff in terms of the requirements of Regulation 

890; 

▪ Review the performance plans during the mid-year evaluations and amend where applicable; 
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▪ Conduct continuous IPM training sessions, to ensure skills transference to all staff; 

▪ Develop and implement an effective Change Management strategy to ensure the 

establishment of a Performance Culture within the CWDM. 

 

In conclusion, PMDS within the CWDM, will be utilised as the monitoring and evaluation vehicle, in 

order to ensure the necessary transformation and change within the CWDM, in establishing an 

effective and efficient municipal workforce, in attaining the goals and objectives, as set out in the 

CWDM IDP. 

 
 
 
 
 
4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, VACANCIES AND TERMINATIONS 

 
EMPLOYEE TOTALS  

EMPLOYEES 

Description 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 

2022 
YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
approved 

posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 

Vacancies 
% 

Water 0 0 0 0 0% 

Wastewater (Sanitation) 0 0 0 0 0% 

Electricity 0 0 0 0 0% 

Waste Management 0 1 0 1 100% 

Housing 0 0 0 0 0% 

Wastewater (Stormwater Drainage) 0 0 0 0 0% 

Roads 168 211 168 43 20% 

Transport 1 3 1 2 66.66% 

Planning 1 1 1 0 0% 

Local Economic Development 4 4 4 0 0% 

Community and Social Services 13 11 9 2 18.18% 

Environmental Protection 0 0 0 0 0% 

Health 46 52 46 6 11.5% 

Public Safety 60 77 58 19 24.67% 

Sport and Recreation 0 0 0 0 0% 

Corporate Policy Offices and other 109 129 106 23 17.82% 

TOTALS 402 489 393 96 19.63% 
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EMPLOYEES: THE EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL  

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total 
posts) 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 6 6 6 0 0% 

T9 – T13 1 3 2 1 33.33% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

MM & Section 56 employees 4 4 4 0 0% 

Councillors 41 41 41 0 0% 

TOTAL 53 55 54 1 1.8% 

 
 
 

EMPLOYEES: FINANCIAL SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1:  
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 6 7 4 3 42.86% 

T9 – T13 16 8 7 1 12.5% 

T14 – T17 6 4 4 0 0% 

T18 – T19 1 1 1 0 0% 

TOTAL 29 20 16 4 20% 

 
 
 

EMPLOYEES: HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1:  
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 0 0 0 0 0% 

T9 – T13 5 7 5 2 28.57% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 1 1 1 0 0% 

TOTAL 7 9 7 2 22.22% 
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EMPLOYEES: ROAD SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies  
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of total 

posts) 

T1 – T3 52 54 52 2 3.7% 

T4 – T8 92 125 91 34 27.2% 

T9 – T13 19 27 20 7 25.9% 

T14 – T17 4 4 4 0 0% 

T18 – T19 1 1 1 0 0% 

TOTAL 168 211 168 43 20.37% 

 
 
 

EMPLOYEES: ICT SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as 
a % of total 

posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 1 1 1 0 0% 

T9 – T13 3 4 3 1 25% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 5 6 5 1 16.66% 
 

 

 

EMPLOYEES: PLANNING SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 

2022 
YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of total 

posts) 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 0 0 0 0 0% 

T9 – T13 0 0 0 0 0% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 1 1 1 0 0% 
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EMPLOYEES: LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies  
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies  
(as a % of total 

posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 1 1 1 0 0% 

T9 – T13 2 2 2 0 0% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 4 4 4 0 0% 

 
 

EMPLOYEES: HEALTH INSPECTION, ETC. 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 0 0 0 0 0% 

T9 – T13 38 44 38 6 13.63% 

T14 – T17 8 8 8 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 46 52 46 6 11.53% 
 

 

EMPLOYEES: DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL LICENSING AND CONTROL, CONTROL OF 
PUBLIC NUISANCES, ETC. 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as 
a % of total 

posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 0 0 0 0 0% 

T9 – T13 4 4 3 1 25% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 5 5 4 1 25% 
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EMPLOYEES: FIRE SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 

2022 
YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

Chief Fire Officer and Deputy 1 2 1 1 50% 

Other Fire Officers 0 0 0 0 0% 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 18 20 18 2 10% 

T9 – T13 40 54 38 16 29.62% 

T14 – T17 1 1 1 0 0% 

T18 – T19 0 0 0 0 0% 

TOTAL 60 77 58 19 24.67% 

 
 

EMPLOYEES: PROPERTY, LEGAL, IDP, PERFORMANCE & RISK MANAGEMENT AND 
PROCUREMENT SERVICES 

JOB LEVEL 

YEAR -1: 
30 JUNE 2022 

YEAR 0: 30 JUNE 2023 

Number of 
employees 

Number 
of posts 

Number of 
employees 

Number of 
vacancies 
(full-time 

equivalents) 

Vacancies as 
a % of total 

posts) 

T1 – T3 0 0 0 0 0% 

T4 – T8 3 4 3 1 25% 

T9 – T13 11 16 11 5 31.25% 

T14 – T17 6 8 5 3 37.5% 

T18 – T19 1 1 1 0 0% 

TOTAL 21 29 20 9 31.03% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                             
                                        2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

                                         
 

125 | P a g e  

VACANCIES  
 

VACANCY RATE: 2022/2023 

Designation 

Total 
approved 

posts 

Vacancies 
(Total time that 
vacancies exist 
using full-time 
equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a 

proportion of 
total posts in 

each 
category) 

No. No. % 

Municipal Manager 1 0 0% 

Chief Financial Officer 1 0 0% 

Other S56 Managers (excluding finance posts) 2 0 0% 

Other S56 Managers (finance posts) 0 0 0% 

Police Officers 0 0 0% 

Firefighters 77 19 24.67% 

Senior Management levels T18 – T19 (excluding 
finance posts) 

5 0 0% 

Senior Management levels T18 – T19 (finance posts) 1 0 0% 

Professionally qualified levels T14 – T17 (excluding 
finance posts) 

32 4 12.5% 

Professionally qualified levels T14 – T17 (finance 
posts) 

8 2 25% 

 
 
COMMENT ON VACANCIES AND TURNOVER 
 
The post of Municipal Manager and all Section 56 posts were filled during the 2022/2023 financial 

year. 

On 30 June 2023, the approved staff establishment of the CWDM consisted of a total of four hundred 

and eighty-nine (489) posts of which three hundred and ninety three (393) were filled and ninety six 

(96) were vacant. Of the total of ninety six (96) vacancies, only twenty-eight (28) were budgeted 

during the 2022/2023 financial year, resulting in a vacancy rate of 5.7%. The vacancy rate over the 

past two financial years calculated on budgeted vacancies is best reflected as follows: 

 
 

 
 
TERMINATIONS  
 
A total of twenty-three (23) employees terminated services at the CWDM during this period for the 

following reasons: 
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TURNOVER RATE 

Details 
Total number of 

employees as at beginning 
of financial year 

Total number of 
terminations for the 

financial year 
No. 

2021/2022 414 35 8.45% 

2022/2023 402 23 5.74% 
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4.3 INJURIES 
 
 

Number and cost of injuries on duty 

Type of injury 

Injury 
leave 
taken 

Employees using 
injury leave 

Proportion of 
employees using 

sick leave 

Average injury 
leave per 
employee 

Total 
estimated 

cost 

Days No. % Days R 

Required basic 
medical attention 
only 

228 16 87.28% 14 157 087.31 

Fatal 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 228 16 87.28% 14 157 087.31 

 
 
 

NUMBER OF DAYS AND COST OF SICK LEAVE (EXCLUDING INJURIES ON DUTY) 

JOB LEVELS 

Total 
sick 

leave 

Proportion of 
sick leave 

without medical 
certification 

Employees 
using sick 

leave 

Total 
employees in 

post* 

Average 
sick leave 

per 
employees 

Days % No. No. Days 

Top Management 
(MM & Section 56) 

7 42.85% 2 4 3.50 

Senior Management 
(T18 – T19) 

28 46.42% 4 6 7 

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (T14 – 
T17) 

380 15.52% 28 34 13.57 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen and 
superintendents (T9 – T13) 

1,084 21.12% 112 127 9.68 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making (T4 – T8) 

2,027 27.92% 135 159 15.01 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (T1 – T3) 

1,017 3372% 62 63 16.40 

Total 4,543 26.70% 343 393 65 
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COMMENT ON INJURY AND SICK LEAVE 
 
Eighty (80) days’ sick leave is granted to employees in a three-year (3-year) leave cycle in terms of 

Clause 8.2.1 of section B of the Main Collective Agreement. However, during the 2015/2016 financial 

year, an amendment was made in terms of which new appointees may not take more than 30 days 

sick leave in the first year of employment. In terms of the Main Collective Agreement, the CWDM 

requires a medical certificate from a registered medical practitioner if more than two (2) consecutive 

days are taken as sick leave by an employee. The employer is further not required to pay an 

employee if an employee is absent on more than two occasions during an eight-week period and, 

on request by the employer, does not produce a medical certificate stating that the employee was 

unable to work for the duration of the employee’s absence on account of sickness or injury. 

 
In an attempt to motivate employees not to abuse sick leave, amendments to the Collective 

Agreement on Conditions of Service for the Western Cape Division of the SALGBC now provide that 

employees who have not taken more than 20 days’ sick leave at the end of a three-year cycle shall 

receive an additional 10 working days’ paid sick leave to which they will be entitled in the ensuing 

cycle, provided that in respect of any sick leave cycle no employee shall become entitled to more 

than 120 working days’ sick leave on full pay in a sick leave cycle. 

 
The CWDM also adopted an Employee Assistance Programme to offer confidential assistance to 

employees who have the potential to be adversely affected by personal and work-related problems, 

which might result in absence from the workplace because of sick leave. Through the Employee 

Assistance Programme, employees are assisted to resolve personal problems that affect job 

performance, motivated to seek help and directed to the best assistance possible. 

 

Injury on duty leave is granted to an employee who suffers an illness or injury in the course of his/her 

duties for the periods corroborated by a medical certificate and is restricted to 24 months in respect 

of any one illness or injury. All injuries on duty that result in accident leave are investigated by the 

relevant supervisors, in collaboration with the Occupational Health and Safety Officer in order to 

establish whether there was any negligent behaviour and to impose measures to avoid future 

incidents/injuries that may result in accident leave. All incidents and injuries are reported on a 

monthly basis to the Local Labour Forum. 

3.50 

7.00 
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INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
The 2022/2023 training year continued to be earmarked by the consequences of the Covid-19 

pandemic, as the backlog from postponed training programmes hampered specifically regulated 

training prescripts. Regulated training programmes like Municipal Minimum Competency Levels and 

Occupational Health and Safety related programmes were negatively impacted, in terms of the 

related timeframes connected to the mentioned training programmes. In addressing the latter, the 

2022/23 training year focused mainly on ensuring compliance, resulting in affected divisions having 

to juggle operational outputs when needed.  

 
Skills development in South Africa is going through big changes as the Quality Council for Trades 
and Occupations (QCTO) prepares to take over management of quality assurance for accredited 
qualifications and skills programmes from the SETAs. The QCTO was set up because there was a 
need for an overarching institution with national capacity for quality assurance of trades and 
professional qualifications, rather than the system which placed quality assurance for these with the 
Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) which are, by definition, concerned with sectors. 
 
The QCTO will register occupational qualifications and part qualifications on the NQF framework. It 
will also govern the quality assurance processes for these qualifications, which are namely to; 
appoint and evaluate Development Quality Partners; appoint Assessment Quality Partners (AQPs); 
monitor and evaluate AQPs’ performance; register (and deregister) training providers on 
recommendation of AQPs, and to issue the qualification certificates to trainees. The QCTO Is 
gradually taking its delegated functions from SAQA, as it builds capacity. As described above, there 
is a transition period during which SETAs retain their QA functions in respect of existing 
qualifications. Each qualification has an expiry date, which cannot be longer than 5 years from 
registration of renewal, so all existing qualifications will have expired by 2024. 
 
In September 2021, the Municipal Staff Regulations and its guidelines were promulgated for 

implementation from 1 July 2022. These regulations specifically highlighted and prioritised skills 

development. This new legislative landscape will undoubtedly change all municipal capacity-building 

processes. The CWDM is on the forefront of this challenging landscape in our effort to transform and 

ensure internal compliance, as well as advising and coordinating our local municipalities within the 

districtIn terms of the above-mentioned Staffing Regulations, the Municipality was required to update 

their current skills and in terms of what is required as stated by the Regulations. The Municipality 

appointed a specialist Service Provider to assist with the implementation of these Regulations. After 

a thorough analysis and a Readiness Review was done the following were suggested: 

The Municipality to update the required skills as per Chapter 5 of the MSR. 

▪ Conduct a gap analysis between their own information and the skills for each post and post 

level in terms of the Regulation; 

▪ The Municipality furthermore must ensure alignment between the Skills Audit and the 

Workplace Skills Plan and therefore this plan will have to be reviewed after the Skills Audit 

has been finalized.; 

▪ The information then subsequently must relay back to the individual’s PDP’s as well as Core 

Competencies; 

▪ The progress in terms of the PDP’s, the skills development and the development return on 

investment must be assessed together with the performance assessments;  

COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 
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▪ The performance assessments will then inform the skills development process and progress. 

An implementation plan was drafted, and to date, the following progress were made: 

▪ Awareness program was conducted, and all staff were granted opportunity to submit training 

needs; 

▪ The WSP was completed and submitted to the LGSETA in April; 

▪ Training was given to HR staff on how to implement the Staff Regulations where skills 

Development was concerned on the 18th of May 2023; 

▪ Further training was given to HR Staff in June on how to add the new competencies to the Job 

Descriptions in terms of annexure A during June 2023; 

▪ The Job Profiles and Competencies were then added to the Job Descriptions of all Staff; 

▪ Training was given to all Staff in June on the Competency Framework. 

 

Current ongoing plans for the 2023/2024 financial year are: 

▪ Finalization of the HR Strategy which includes a 5-year plan on Skills Development at the Cape 

Winelands District Municipality; 

▪ Completion of Personal Development Plans for all Staff Members; 

▪ Drafting of a Mentoring and Coaching Policy; 

▪ Identification of Workplace Mentors and Coaches; 

▪ Drafting of a 5-year Talent Management Framework; 

▪ Concluding of a thorough GAP Skills analysis with regard to the competencies; 

▪ Preparing the conduct of a Skills Audit and Skills needs Analysis; 

▪ Drafting a 5-year Succession Planning Implementation Plan.  

 

Evidently, the legislative transformation of Skills Development will have a far reaching and overall 

interlinked impact stretching across the municipality. Integration and alignment to all internal spheres 

and functions have become essential and the broadening of the Human Resource Development 

function into its various specialisations function have become imperative. 

 
INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 
 

In terms of section 67(1)(a) of the MSA, the CWDM, in accordance with the Employment Equity Act, 

1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998) continuously develops and adopts appropriate systems and procedures 

to ensure fair, efficient, effective and transparent personnel administration, including the recruitment, 

selection and appointment of persons as staff members. 

 

In terms of section 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998) the CWDM is a 

designated employer and must prepare and implement a plan to achieve employment equity, which 

must have objectives for each year of the plan, including affirmative action measures, have numerical 

goals for achieving equitable representation and have internal monitoring and evaluation 

procedures. 

 

The CWDM approved a new Employment Equity plan during the 2020/2021 financial year and during 

the 2022/2023 financial year, the CWDM gave continuous effect to the implementation of the plan 

as the Employment Equity Committee recommended that the approved planned be extended for 

another year. 
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As per the requirements of the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998), the CWDM 

submitted an employment equity report in the prescribed format to the Department of Employment 

and Labour. Consultation with all relevant parties takes place monthly at the Local Labour Forum, 

where parties are offered an opportunity to continuously assess and monitor progress. 

 
 
EMPLOYMENT EQUITY FORUM 
 

Bi-quarterly meetings were held on 14 November 2022, 16 March 2023 and on 20 June 2023 by the 

Employment Equity Forum where discussions were held on appointments, terminations and 

promotions in respect of a previous quarter, in comparison to the goals and targets set out in the 

approved CWDM Employment Equity Plan. The Employment Equity Committee monitors and 

reviews the progress of the implementation of the Employment Equity Plan and ensures that the 

employer complies with the requirements as set out in the plan. Challenges experienced during 

recruitment and selection processes are highlighted and the committee also jointly strives to find 

amicable solutions to address these challenges within the workplace. 

 

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 
 

ICAS, the CWDM’s new Wellness Service Provider was appointed during December 2022 and the 

service will be rendered until 30 June 2025 to deliver a holistic wellness service to CWDM employees 

and their immediate family members. The main purpose of the wellness service delivery is to assist 

employees in managing the competing time demands and stress of today’s world, The programme 

is managed by a multidisciplinary, multilingual team of professionals, including psychologists, social 

workers, registered counsellors, dieticians, legal advisors, financial advisors, debt counsellors, 

physiotherapist, biokinetics, chiropractors, etc. 
 

Problems are a part of life. Everyone is faced with problems from time to time. Normally, we would 

be able to handle it on our own without the assistance of external resources. In certain instances, it 

makes more sense to reach out for help. The aforementioned is the reason that the CWDM provides 

a confidential Employee Wellness Programme to its employees and their immediate families, a 

benefit that provides resources and solutions for the personal and work-related problems 

encountered. 

 
To make the programme accessible for all employees, the support service can be reached through 

the following platforms: 24 hours a day, 7 days a week: 
 

(i)          Toll free number                0800 119 333 
(ii) Call back                           *134*905# 
(iii) LiveChat                                Download the ICAS HUB App, register with the code – CWM001 
  
The following video link can also be viewed; https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a9SYEn3NGBM 
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL STAFF REGULATIONS NO. 890 AND LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT: GUIDELINES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MUNICIPAL STAFF 
REGULATIONS NO. 891 
 
A diagnostic report on the performance of municipalities conducted in 2014 revealed that some 
municipalities are still experiencing governance and institutional challenges in meeting their 
obligations, despite evidence of progress.   
 

Some of the challenges include: 
(i) Induced municipalities to adopt disparate HR systems resulting in excessive disparities that 

impede mobility of staff in the sector; 
(ii) Bloating of municipal administration in non-core functions of municipalities; 
(iii) Incoherent HR practices resulting in the concentration of critical skills in affluent municipalities; 
(iv) High incidence of irregular and inappropriate appointments; 
(v) Poor skills development programmes negatively impacting the capacity of municipalities to 

fulfil their constitutional obligations; 
(vi) Ineffective performance management and lack of accountability; 
(vii) Poor planning, under-expenditure by municipalities on capital budgets and ineffective revenue 

collection strategies; and 
(viii) Incoherent disciplinary and grievance procedures. 
 

In terms of Chapter 7 (Local Public Administration and Human Resources) of the Local Government: 
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000), the Minister for Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs promulgated regulations and issued guidelines setting uniform standards for 
municipal staff systems and procedures for all municipal staff and senior managers. These 
Regulations and Guidelines took effect from 1 July 2022. 
 

All municipalities are required to develop human resources policies consistent with the regulations. 
The human resources policies had to be developed/reviewed and adopted by municipal councils 
before 1 July 2022. 
 

The aforementioned is also supported by Chapter 13 of the National Development Plan in terms of 
the Building of a Capable and Developmental State, and clause 154(1) of the Constitution of the 
Republic of South Africa, 1996 that, inter alia, stipulate that national and provincial governments, by 
legislative and other measures, must support and strengthen the capacity of municipalities to 
manage their own affairs, to exercise their powers and to perform their functions. 
 

The Local Government: Municipal Staff Regulations No. 890 are organised in nine chapters:  
 
Chapter 1: Interpretation and application 
Chapter 2: Staff establishment, job description and job evaluation 
Chapter 3: Recruitment, selection and appointment of staff 
Chapter 4: Performance management and development system 
Chapter 5: Skills development 
Chapter 6: Dispute resolution 
Chapter 7: Disciplinary code and procedures 
Chapter 8: Remuneration related matters 
Chapter 9: General (transitional arrangements, repeal and short title) 
  
The objectives of the regulations are to: 

(a) create a career local public administration that is fair, efficient, effective and transparent; 
(b) create a development-oriented local public administration governed by good human resource 

management and career development practices; 
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(c) ensure an accountable local public administration that is responsive to the needs of local 
communities; 

(d) ensure that high standards of professional ethics are fostered within local government; 
(e) strengthen the capacity of municipalities to perform their functions through recruitment and 

appointment of suitably qualified and competent persons; and 
(f) establish a coherent HR governance regime that will ensure adequate checks and balances, 

including enforcement of compliance with the legislation. 
 

The new prescribed templates in respect of Chapter 3: Recruitment and Selection was implemented 
from 01 July 2022 in respect of the implementation of the new Local Government: Municipal Staff 
Regulations No. 890 and Local Government: Guidelines for the implementation of the Municipal Staff 
Regulations No. 891 issued in Government Gazette No. 45181, dated 20 September 2021 in terms 
of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000). 
 
The CWDM procured the services of Ignite Advisory Services until 30 June 2025 to assist the CWDM 
with the implementation of the new Local Government: Municipal Staff Regulations No. 890 and 
Local Government: Guidelines for the implementation of the Municipal Staff Regulations No. 891 
issued in Government Gazette No. 45181, dated 20 September 2021 in terms of the Local 
Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000).
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4.2 POLICIES 
 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S POLICIES AND PLANS 

No. Name of Policy 
Completed 

% 
Reviewed 

Date adopted by 
Council or 

comment on failure 
to adopt 

1. 
Anti-Corruption Policy 
Revised CWDM Anti-Corruption and Fraud 
Prevention Policy and Strategy 

100 
 
27 August 2020 

 
27 August 2020 

2. 
Enterprise Risk Management Policy 
CWDM Risk Management Policy, Strategy and 
Risk & Fraud Implementation Plan 

100 
 
27 August 2020 
 

 
27 August 2020 
 

3. International Relations Policy 100  27 August 2009 

4. 
Performance Management System Policy and 
Framework Guide 

100 
4 December 2014 
20 August 2015 

25 March 2004 

5. Public Participation Policy 100  20 August 2015 

6 
Policy for Municipal Councillors Acting in their 
capacity as Commissioner of Oath 

100  25 February 2021 

7. Branding Policy 100  28 May 2015 

8. Communication Policy and Strategy 2008-2011 100 20 August 2015 6 November 2008 

9. Staff Statements to the Media Policy 100  24 May 2005 

10. Corporate Identity and Branding Policy 100  28 May 2015 

FINANCIAL AND STRATEGIC SUPPORT SERVICES POLICIES AND PLANS 

11. 
Determination of Policy for Internal Appeal Procedure 
in terms of section 62 of Local Government: 
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) 

100  24 March 2003 

12. Grievance Procedure 100  SALGBC 

13. Legal Aid Policy for Councilors and Employees 100  24 May 2005 

14. Mayoral Bursary Fund Policy 100  25 October 2012 

15. Official Vehicles and Fleet Management Policy 100 04 December 2014 25 March 2004 

16. 
Policy for the Investigation of Allegations of 
Contraventions of Code of Conduct for Councillors 

100  25 March 2004 

17. Telephone Policy for Councillors 100  30 June 2006 

18. Uniforms and Protective Clothing: Support Personnel 100  24 May 2005 

19. Official Vehicles and Fleet Management Policy 100  4 December 2014 

20. Appointment of Consultants Policy 100  28 May 2015 

21. Accounting Policy 100  23 May 2013 

22. Allowances and Benefits for Councillors Policy 100  31 January 2019 

23. Asset Management Policy 100 
22 May 2014 
28 May 2015 
25 May 2017 

23 May 2013 

24. Benevolent Fund Policy 100 25 November 2010 27 August 2009 

25. Budget Policy 100  25 July 2013 

26. Cash Management Policy and Investment Policy 100 28 May 2015 26 August 2010 

27. 
Combating Abuse of Supply Chain Management 
System Policy 

100  28 May 2015 

28. Contract Management Policy 100  28 May 2015 

29. Corporate Gifts Policy 100  28 May 2015 

30. Credit Control, Debt Collection and Indigent Policies 100 28 May 2015 30 September 2009 

31. Expenditure Management Policy 100  28 May 2015 
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32. Funding and Reserves Policy 100 28 May 2015 14 April 2011 

33. GRAP Policy and Procedural Guide 100  31 January 2005 

34. Inventory and Stock Management Policy 100  28 May 2015 

35. Long-term Financial Policy 100  28 May 2015 

36. Petty Cash Policy 100  26 March 2015 

37. Preferential Procurement Policy 100  28 May 2015 

38. Property Rates Policy 100  23 May 2006 

39. Revenue Management Policy 100  20 May 2015 

40. Subsistence and Travel Policy 100 
25 November 2010 
30 March 2012 
25 July 2013 

28 January 2010 

41. Supply Chain Management Policy 100 
31 July 2014 
25 May 2017 

27 March 2008 

42. Tariff Policy and Tariff By-Law 100  13 November 2003 

43. Telecoms and Cellular Phone Allowance Policy 100  31 January 2019 

44. Transport Allowance Scheme 100 29 January 2015 26 April 2007 

45. Transport Allowance Scheme for Essential Users 100  22 June 2007 

46. Travel and Removal Expenses Policy 100  24 May 2005 

47. Unauthorised Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 100  28 May 2015 

48. Unforeseen and Unavoidable Expenditure Policy 100  28 May 2015 

49. Virement Policy 100 
28 May 2015 
25 May 2017 

14 May 2010 

HUMAN RESOURCE POLICIES AND PLANS 

50. Chronic Illness Policy 100  24 May 2005 

51. Code of Conduct for Employees 100  LG: Systems Act 

52. Confidentiality Policy 100  24 May 2005 

53. CWDM Sponsored Work Related Functions Policy 100  24 May 2005 

54. Delegations, Authorisation and Responsibility 100 Under review 15 July 2011 

55. Determination of Policy: Dress Code for Councilors 100  19 February 2004 

56. Employee Assistance Programme Policy 100 21 October 2021 25 April 2012 

57. Employee Driving Licence Assistance Policy 100 27 June 2014 17 February 2011 

58. Employee Study Aid and Leave Policy 100 

03 December 2013 
21 October 2021 
26 May 2022 
25 April 2023 

24 May 2005 

59. Employment Equity Policy 100  25 May 2023 

60. Education, Training and Development Policy 100 
04 December 2014 
21 October 2021 

24 May 2005 

61.  Exit Management Policy 100  26 May 2022 

62. HIV and AIDS Policy 100 25 November 2010 24 May 2005 

63. Individual Performance Management Policy 100 
21 October 2021 
26 May 2022 

28 June 2016 

64. Induction Policy 100 26 May 2022 24 May 2005 

65. Internship Policy 100  28 May 2015 

66. Medical Funds Administration Policy 100  21 October 2021 

67. Mentoring and Coaching Policy 100 26 May 2022 21 October 2021 

68. Nepotism Policy 100  24 May 2005 

69. Occupational Health and Safety Policy 100 21 October 2021 24 May 2005 

70. Post Retirement Medical Aid Benefits Policy   21 October 2021 

71. Probation Period Policy 100  26 May 2022 

72. Private Work Policy 100 Under review 24 May 2005 

73. Recruitment and Selection Policy 100 
25 November 2010 
13 January 2022 
26 May 2022 

24 May 2005 
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25 May 2023 

74. Scarce Skills & Retention Policy 100 25 May 2023  

75. Sexual Harassment Policy 100  24 May 2005 

76. Smoking Policy 100  25 November 2010 

77. Sponsorship Policy 100  28 May 2015 

78. Time and Work Attendance Management Policy 100  27 October 2011 

79. Unpaid Leave Policy 100  24 May 2005 

80. Whistleblowing Policy 100  24 May 2005 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING SERVICES POLICIES AND PLANS 

81. Community Support Policy 100 28 May 2015 29 September 2005 

82. Emergency Nutrition Provision Policy 100  31 January 2013 

83. Fire and Rescue Training Academy Policy 100  4 December 2014 

84. 
Identifiable and Protective Clothing Policy: Disaster 
Management 

100  24 October 2006 

85. 
Protective Clothing for Environmental Health 
Practitioners 

100  25 July 2006 

86. Uniform Schedule for the Division: Fire Service 100  25 July 2006 

87. Social Relief of Distress Policy 100  
C.15.1 of 25 January 
2018 

TECHNICAL SERVICES POLICIES AND PLANS 

89. 
Electrification of Rural Housing Policy, Consolidate 
with Water and Sanitation Policy 

100 25 February 2015 
25 October 2012 
 

90. Expanded Public Works Policy 100  31 January 2013 

91. 
Financial Support for the Replacement and 
Construction of Fencing along the Provincial Roads 
Network in the jurisdiction area of CWDM 

100  3 December 2013 

92. Maintenance Management Policy 100  28 May 2015 

93. 
Personal Protective Equipment Policy for the Roads 
Agency Function 

100  26 March 2015 

94. 
Policy for the Provision of Basic Services to Rural 
Dwellings 

100  25 February 2016 

95. PPE Policy for Roads and Mechanical Workshop 100  26 March 2015 

96. Protective Clothing Policy for Personnel: Roads 100  25 July 2006 

97. 
Baseline Installation Procedures for Operating 
Systems 

100  25 July 2013 

98. Change Management Process 100  24 April 2014 

99. ICT Data Backup and Retention Policy 100  29 June 2017 

100. ICT Disaster Recovery Plan 100  30 March 2012 

101. ICT Operating System Security Controls Policy 100 
25 July 2013 
24 April 2014 

19 September 2016 

102. ICT Service Level Agreement Management 100  29 June 2017 

103. Information and Communication Backup Policy 100 24 April 2014 25 April 2012 

104. Information Technology Security Policy 100  24 May 2005 

105. Internet and E-mail Usage Policy 100  24 May 2005 

106. 
Municipal Corporate Governance of Information and 
Communication Technology (ICT) Policy 

100  31 May 2018 

107. Mobile Device Policy 100  4 December 2014 

108. Network Security Policy 100 
24 April 2014 
25 July 2013 

25 April 2017 

109. Physical Environmental Security Policy 100  25 July 2013 

110. Telecommunications Policy 100 4 December 2014 24 May 2005 

111. User Account Management Procedures 100  24 April 2014 

112. User Security Policy 100  27 October 2011 
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4.3 INJURIES 
 
 

Number and cost of injuries on duty 

Type of injury 

Injury 
leave 
taken 

Employees using 
injury leave 

Proportion of 
employees using 

sick leave 

Average injury 
leave per 
employee 

Total 
estimated 

cost 

Days No. % Days R 

Required basic 
medical attention 
only 

30 12 89.55% 2.5 R141,948.44 

Fatal 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 30 12 89.55% 2.5 R141,948.44 

 
NUMBER OF DAYS AND COST OF SICK LEAVE (EXCLUDING INJURIES ON DUTY) 

JOB LEVELS 

Total 
sick 

leave 

Proportion of 
sick leave 

without medical 
certification 

Employees 
using sick 

leave 

Total 
employees in 

post* 

Average 
sick leave 

per 
employees 

Days % No. No. Days 

Top Management 
(MM & Section 56) 

10 30% 3 4 3.33 

Senior Management 
(T18 – T19) 

33 48.48% 4 5 8.25 

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (T14 – 
T17) 

251 23.90% 24 34 10.45 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen and 
superintendents (T9 – T13) 

1046 20.07% 110 146 9.5 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision making 
(T4 – T8) 

2341 25.37% 148 148 15.81 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (T1 – T3) 

1035 31.78% 65 65 15.92 

Total 4716 25.69% 354 402 13.32 
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NUMBER AND PERIOD OF SUSPENSION 

Position 
Nature of 
alleged 

misconduct 

Date of 
suspension 

Details of disciplinary action 
taken, or status of case and 
reasons why not finalised 

Date finalised 

     

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION TAKEN IN CASES OF FINANCIAL MISCONDUCT 

Position 
Nature of alleged misconduct and rand value of any 

loss to the municipality 
Disciplinary 
action taken 

Date 
finalised 

None. 

 
4.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS  
 

PERFORMANCE REWARDS BY GENDER 

Designations 

Beneficiary profile 

Gender 

Total 
number of 
employees 

in group 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Expenditure on 
rewards 

2021/2022 

Proportion 
of 

beneficiaries 
within group 

R'000 % 

Top Management 
(MM & Section 56) 

Female 1 1 0 100% 

Male 3 3 0 100% 

Senior Management 
(T18 – T19) 

Female 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and mid-
management (T14 – T17) 

Female 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, 
junior management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents (T9 
– T13) 

Female 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 

3.33

8.25
10.46

9.51

15.82 15.92

TOP 
MANAGEMENT

SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT

PROFESSIONALLY 
QUALIFIED & 

MID 
MANAGEMENT

SKILLED, 
TECHNICAL, 

JUNIOR 
MANAGEMENT & 

SUPERVISORS

SEMI-SKILLED UNSKILLED

Average sick leave days per skill level
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Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (T4 – T8) 

Female 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled and defined decision 
making (T1 – T3) 

Female 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 100 

Has the statutory municipal calculator been used as part of the evaluation process? Yes 

 
*Payment expenditure in respect of performance rewards is based on 2021/2022 Annual Performance 
Report 
 
 
COMMENT ON PERFORMANCE REWARDS 
 

In terms of section 57(4B) of the MSA, bonuses based on performance may be awarded to a municipal 

manager or a manager directly accountable to the municipal manager after the end of the financial year and 

only after an evaluation of performance and approval of such evaluation by the municipal council concerned. 
 

Regulation 8 of the Local Government: Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and 

Managers Directly Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006 states that in accordance with Regulation 32, 

a performance bonus, based on affordability, may be paid to the employee, after – 

• the annual report for the financial year under review has been tabled and adopted by the municipal council; 
• an evaluation of performance in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 23; and 
• approval of such evaluation by the municipal council as a reward for outstanding performance. 
 

Regulation 23 of the Local Government: Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and 

Managers Directly Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006 states that the purpose of a performance 

agreement is to: 

• comply with the provisions of sections 57(1)(b), (4A), (4B) and (5) of the Act as well as the employment 
contract entered into between the parties; 

• specify objectives and targets defined and agreed with the employee and to communicate to the 
employee the employer’s expectations of the employee’s performance and accountabilities in alignment 
with the IDP, SDBIP and the budget of the municipality; 

• specify accountabilities as set out in a performance plan, which forms an annexure to the performance 
agreement; 

• monitor and measure performance against set targeted outputs; 
• use the performance agreement as the basis for assessing whether the employee has met the 

performance expectations applicable to his or her job; 
• in the event of outstanding performance, to appropriately reward the employee; and 
• give effect to the employer’s commitment to a performance-orientated relationship with its employees in 

attaining equitable and improved service delivery. 
 

Regulation 32 of the Local Government: Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and 

Managers Directly Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006 states that: 

• The evaluation of the employee’s performance will form the basis for rewarding outstanding performance 
or correcting unacceptable performance; and 

• A performance bonus ranging from 5% to 14% of the all-inclusive remuneration package may be paid to 
an employee in recognition of outstanding performance. In determining the performance bonus, the 
relevant percentage is based on the overall rating, calculated by using the applicable assessment-rating 
calculator.  
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On 29 June 2017, at Item C.15.1, the Council of the CWDM resolved that performance bonuses in respect 

of the Municipal Manager and Managers directly accountable to the Municipal Manager be reinstated with 

effect from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 and that the performance bonuses be considered annually based on 

financial affordability. It was further resolved that performance bonuses ranging from 5% to 9% based on a 

score of 130% to 149% and a maximum of 10% based on a score of 150% and above, in terms of Regulation 

32(2) of the Local Government: Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and Managers 

Directly Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006 be paid to the Municipal Manager and Managers directly 

accountable to the Municipal Manager and that addendums to the principal performance agreements be 

entered into between the Executive Mayor and the Municipal Manager and the Municipal Manager and the 

Managers directly accountable to the Municipal Manager. At a different  meeting – in April 2023, Council 

resolved to increase the maximum bonus % to 14%, as stated in the mentioned regulations.
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4.5 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 
 

SKILLS MATRIX 

Management 
Level 

Gender 

Employees 
in post as at  

30 June 
2022 

Number Of Skilled Employees Required and Actual as at 30 June 2022 

Learnerships 
Skills Programmes and other 

Short Courses 
Other Forms of Training Total 

No. 
Actual: 
End of 
Year 0 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 1 

Target 
Actual: 
End of 
Year 0 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 1 

Target 
Actual: 
End of 
Year 0 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 1 

Target 
Actual: 
End Of 
Year 0 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 1 

Target 

MM and S56 
Female 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Male 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Councilors, 
senior officials, 
and managers 

Female 24 0 0 0 6 6 16 0 0 0 0 6 16 

Male 37 0 0 0 17 17 18 0 0 0 0 17 18 

Technicians and 
associate 
professionals 

Female 3 2 2 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 2 4 

Male 7 5 4 7 0 0 6 0 0 0 5 4 13 

Professionals 
Female 21 0 0 0 21 20 33 0 0 0 21 20 33 

Male 29 0 0 0 27 25 24 0 0 0 27 25 24 

Sub-total 
Female 49 2 2 2 27 26 52 0 0 0 29 28 54 

Male 76 5 4 7 44 42 48 0 0 0 49 46 55 

Total   125 7 6 9 71 68 100 0 0 0 78 74 109 

*Registered with professional associate body, e.g. CA (SA)  73 

 
 
 
 

COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 
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FINANCIAL COMPETENCY DEVELOPMENT: PROGRESS REPORT 

Description 

A. 
Total Number of 

Officials Employed 
by Municipality 

(Regulation 
14(4)(A) and (C)) 

B. 
Total Number of 

Officials Employed by 
Municipal Entities 

(Regulation 14(4)(A) 
and (C)) 

Consolidated: Total of 
A and B 

Consolidated: 
Competency 
Assessments 

Completed for A and B 
(Regulation 14(4)(B) 

and (D)) 

Consolidated: Total 
Number of Officials 
Whose Performance 
Agreements Comply 
with Regulation 16 

(Regulation 14(4)(F)) 

Consolidated: Total 
Number of Officials 

that Meet Prescribed 
Competency Levels 
(Regulation 14(4)) 

Accounting Officer 1 
0 1 0 1 1 

Chief Financial Officer 
1 0 1 0 1 1 

Senior Managers 
2 0 2 0 2 2 

Any other Financial Officials 
26 0 26 0 0 26 

Heads Of Supply Chain 
Management Units 

1 
0 1 0 0 1 

Supply Chain Management 
Senior Managers 

1 
0 1 0 0 1 

TOTAL 
32 

0 32 0 4 32 

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE 

 
R 695 661.98 
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COMMENT ON SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND RELATED EXPENDITURE AND ON THE FINANCIAL 

COMPETENCY REGULATIONS 

The CWDM proactively kick-started our effort to ensure full compliance with the MSR regulations and to date, 

the municipality developed and amended all our relevant policies to ensure compliance to this effect. Training 

and Development is an essential exercise for both the municipality and its employees, as it helps the 

municipality to gain and retain top talent, increases employee job satisfaction and morale, as well as improve 

productivity. 

The main purpose of organisational capacitation is to ensure that all training initiatives implemented within 

the Cape Winelands District Municipality (CWDM), are directly linked to achieving the CWDM IDP objectives 

as well as to comply with the Municipal Staff Regulations in terms of Chapters 4 and 5, thus, the objectives 

of skills development include but are not limited to: 

▪ Support the achievement of the municipality's goals set out in the Integrated Development Plan by 

providing critical skills that ensure the delivery of quality services; 

▪ Promote the development and retention of competent municipal staff, including the development of 

technical, professional and specialist staff who have the required qualifications and skills; 

▪ Support the employment equity objectives of a municipality; 

▪ Be based on high-quality provision and effective workplace learning and development practices, 

including coaching, mentoring, on-the-job learning and opportunities for the practical application of 

skills in the workplace; 

▪ Seek to continuously improve its results and the returns on learning investments by defining measures 

of success, conducting regular evaluations and improving the impact of learning, training and 

development. 

The actual implementation of planned training within the Cape Winelands District Municipality is influenced 

by an array of internal and external factors. With regards to the implementation of planned training within the 

Municipality, there is an 80% to 90 % alignment with the training budget, correlation between what is planned 

and what is implemented. During the 2022/2023 financial year, the CWDM embarked on various formal and 

informal training interventions. The majority of skills programmes were conducted via the ‘blended learning 

approach’, combining both virtual/online training and the traditional classroom-led training. 

 

 

Training and Development 2022/2023 

Organisational Development 

To give full effect and to ensure full compliance with the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management 

Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) for the 2022/2023 financial year, the CWDM continued the prioritisation of 

training in Minimum Municipal Competency Levels (MMCL). The CWDM has taken all the reasonable steps 

towards compliance and to this effect for affected employees that were appointed as from 2021 to 2022 

respectively. These employees together with the affected Financial Interns commenced with MMCL 

programme  in April 2022 and this 18 month will be finalised by October 2023.  

A new MMCL Service Provider was appointed on a multi-year contract from July 2023 until June 2025. This 

programme will be conducted for newly appointed affected employees and financial Interns (affected by the 

MMCL) as from August 2023. 
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An Emotional Intelligence Programme was successfully rolled-out for a group of 30 employees across the 

organisation. The objective of this course was to the ensure that these employees have a basic understanding 

of Emotional Intelligence as to fulfil their job duties more effectively, in terms of the following aspects: 

▪ Understanding Emotional Intelligence; 

▪ How to Develop Emotional Intelligence; 

▪ Building emotional competence; 

▪ Emotional Quotient Inventory (EQ-i 2.0) Model of Emotional Intelligence. 

 

Department: Financial and Strategic Support Services 

The Human Resource Staff component attended Municipal Staff Regulations Capacity Building workshops, 

in order to equip and empower them, with the knowledge and skills as to ensure the successful 

implementation and roll-out of the Municipal Staff Regulations throughout the municipality. Various areas 

were covered, which will assist and support that the Human Resource team to have a thorough understanding 

to implement, roll-out, improve, monitor and evaluate the MSR process, in terms of the following: 

▪ Municipal Staffing Regulations; Status Quo Analysis and Implementation Challenges; 

▪ Organisational Design Challenges and Solutions; 

▪ Human Resources Management Strategy and Plan; 

▪ Talent Management: Retention of Key Personnel; 

▪ Human Resource Analytics Model to Improve the Management of Human Resources. 

▪ Municipal Staff Regulations Audit Pack; 

▪ A New Focus on Individual Performance Management – The Complete Development Cycle; 

▪ Performance Management Alignment and Reporting; 

▪ Monitoring and Evaluation – How to Improve Efficiencies. 

 

 

Department: Community Development and Planning Services 

The Professional Development Training (online) for Environmental Health Practitioners (EHPs) and 

Emergency Workers (Fire Fighters), as required by the Health Professions Council of South Africa (HPCSA), 

continued, thus ensuring compliance and highly trained, informed and professional officials. This online 

programme is imperative for enabling EHPs to stay informed in terms of any new legislation and the latest 

innovations in their field of expertise, in order to be competitive and to maintain high-quality services to 

communities. 

 

Department: Technical Services 

With the onset of the Fourth Industrial Revolution, the need for ICT related training became a priority. In 

2022/23 various training prorammes were attended by the ICT officials. This will ensure that the municipality 

keep abreast with this dynamic and ever-changing industry. The majority of these ICT courses were 

conducted via virtual learning which ensured operational convenience and all hands-on-deck.  

In 2021/22, the municipality highlighted the need for a strategic intervention within the Division: Roads. This 

was a result of our aged staff component specifically referring to qualified engineers and technicians. As part 

of our Succession Planning process, the municipality identified a pool of potential candidates to embark on 

two learnerships, in order to address this skills shortage and to ensure that a pool of qualified technicians 

and engineers are available. The National Certificate: Road Construction (NQF 4) and the National Diploma: 

Road Construction Supervisor (NQF 5) continued and successfully concluded in November 2022. Upon 
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conclusion, these learners become eligible for internal bursaries (via our Study Aid Programme) to complete 

their engineering degrees. 

 

Regulatory developments affecting machine operators, as determined by the Driven Machinery Regulations 
as per Occupational Health and Safety Act, gave effect to the implementation of various interdependent 
technical training programmes. The focus was and will continue to ensure full compliance with the 
mentioned regulations and associated occupational health and safety legislative requirements for 
Earthmoving and Lifting Equipment operators. These training programmes focused on the statutory skills 
required on how to operate various equipment and other heavy machinery, as well as to obtain the required 
Operators’ Cards. 

    

 

The Drivers Licence Training Programme was successfully 

implemented during the 2022/23 year, to ensure that officials 

within the Division: Roads, obtain their Code EC drivers` license. 

The small plant programme aimed to equip and empower 

officials with comprehensive knowledge, skills and safety 

measures related to Small Plant Equipment. This course also 

enabled officials to apply the following aspects within their 

working environment: 

▪ Identify and select small plant and equipment; 

▪ Prepare small plant and equipment for use; 

▪ Utilize small plant and equipment; 

▪ Maintain small plant and equipment. 
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INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Chapter 5 contains information regarding financial performance and highlights specific accomplishments. 
The chapter comprises four components:  
 
Component A: Statement of Financial Performance 
Component B: Spending Against Capital Budget 
Component C: Cash Flow Management and Investments 
Component D: Other Financial Matters 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCECHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCECHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
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5.1 INTRODUCTION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The CWDM maintained a sound financial position during the 2022/2023 financial year, despite the fact that 

its own revenue sources remain limited. Currently, being a district municipality unauthorised for water and 

sanitation, the RSC Levies Replacement Grant (DORA) increases by 1% a year.  

 

Consequently, the CWDM’s financial resources shrink constantly, but it still manages to render basic, 

dignified, fundamental services to the communities they have been entrusted with by the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa. 

 

 
 
  

2021/2022

 Actual  Approved Budget  Final Budget  Actual 
 Approved 

Budget 
 Final Budget 

Financial Performance

Investment Revenue 40.295.365 56.000.000            56.000.000        62.998.758       -12% -12%

Transfers recognised - operational 253.668.691 257.711.131          257.711.131     256.947.947    0% 0%

Other own revenue 117.639.656 145.669.372          145.669.372     130.344.783    11% 11%

Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers 

and contributions) 411.603.712       459.380.503         459.380.503     450.291.488    2% 2%

Employee costs 218.978.840       247.768.727          247.764.678     221.173.724    11% 11%

Remuneration of Councillors 12.744.506         13.872.761            13.872.761        13.606.890       2% 2%

Depreciation and amortisation 9.790.052            9.560.700              9.597.336          9.267.126         3% 3%

Other expenditure 135.446.350       188.178.315          188.145.728     156.493.514    17% 17%

Total Expenditure 376.959.748       459.380.503         459.380.503     400.541.254    13% 13%

Surplus/(Deficit) 34.643.965         -                               -                          49.750.234      #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Transfers recognised - capital 983.395               2.123.365              2.123.365          816.856            62% 62%

Surplus/(Deficit) after capital transfers and 

contributions 35.627.360 2.123.365 2.123.365 50.567.090 -2281% -2281%

Share of surplus/(deficit) of associate 0 -                               -                           

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 35.627.360 2.123.365 2.123.365 50.567.090 -2281% -2281%

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Description

2022/2023 2022/2023 Variance

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETCOMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 
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5.2 GRANTS 
 

  

Budget Final Budget

EPWP incentive 1.369.000 1.469.000 1.469.000 -7% 0

Local Government Financial Management Grant 1.000.000 1.000.000 1.000.000 0% 0%

Integrated Transport Plan 0 672.322 586.717 0% 13%

Rural Roads Asset Management System 2.877.000 72.000 71.925 98% 0%

Community Development Workers 75.000 151.000 136.885 -83% 9%

Joint District & Metro Approach Grant 0 1.000.000 1.000.000 0% 0%

Local Government Internship Grant 0 46.000 37.800 0% 18%

Safety Plan Implementation - WOSA 1.500.000 1.853.921 1.098.097 27% 41%

WESTERN CAPE MUNICIPAL INTERVENTIONS GRANT 0 100.000 1.518 0% 98%

EMERGENCY MUNICIPAL LOAD-SHEDDING RELIEF GRANT 0 950.000 0 0% 100%

Total 6.821.000 7.314.243 5.401.942 21% 26%

CONDITIONAL GRANTS: EXCLUDING MIG

R'000

Details Original Budget Final Budget Actual
% Variance
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5.3 INTRODUCTION TO ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
The CWDM does not provide basic services; hence it does not have major infrastructure assets. Assets 

mainly consist of land, buildings, vehicles and other property, plant and equipment.  

The GRAP-compliant Asset Management Policy of the CWDM sets out the procedures to be followed by the 

Accounting Officer, Executive Directors and their staff to whom functions are delegated for the management 

of the CWDM’s assets and for reporting to Council on such functions wherever applicable.  

 
5.4 FINANCIAL RATIOS BASED ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
COMMENT ON FINANCIAL RATIOS 
  
Refer to Annual Performance Report (Chapter 3 in this document) for more detail. 
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5.5 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget
Adjustments 

Budget

Admin Support Services 1.813.500.00     966.852.00               965.761.29      47% 0%

Property Management 20.000.00          4.400.00                  4.400.00          78% 0%

Transport Pool 4.440.000.00     -                          -                  100% 0%

Councillor Support -                    -                          -                  0% 0%

Human Resource Management 2.500.000.00     146.480.00               146.480.00      94% 0%

Management Financial Services -                    11.890.00                11.890.00        0% 0%

Disaster Management 11.845.000.00    1.030.520.00            -                  100% 100%

Fire Services 24.772.000.00    13.085.958.00          12.043.054.90  51% 8%

Municipal Health Services 180.000.00        184.525.00               184.524.50      -3% 0%

Management Rural and Social 5.000.00            6.000.00                  4.999.99          0% 17%

Building Maintenance 6.350.000.00     5.059.079.00            1.942.778.13   69% 62%

Projects 64.000.000.00    4.000.000.00            1.565.585.00   0% 61%

Management: Enginering -                    62.261.00                62.260.03        0% 0%

Public Relations 200.000.00        237.542.00               163.329.79      18% 31%

Information Technology 5.930.000.00     5.118.458.00            2.824.144.58   52% 45%

Roads 2.127.900.00     1.173.366.00            816.856.26      62% 30%

Total 124.183.400.00  31.087.331.00          20.736.064.47  83% 33%

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2022/23

Division Original Budget  Adjustment Budget  Actual 

% Variance

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTSCOMPONENT B: 

SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S FINDINGSCOMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL 

MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 
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5.6 REVENUE COLLECTION BY SOURCE  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/2022

Actual
Approved 

Budget
Final Budget Actual

Approved 

Budget
Final Budget

Property Rates - - - - - -

Property Rates - penalties and colection charges - - - - - -

Service charges - electicity revenue - - - - - -

Service charges - water revenue - - - - - -

Service charges - sanitation revenue - - - - - -

Service charges - refuse revenue  - - - - -

Rental of facil ities and equipment 229.048 240.000 240.000 91.087 62% 62%

Interest earmed  - extermal investments 40.295.365 56.000.000 56.000.000 62.998.758 -12% -12%

Licences and permits 739.566 653.000 653.000 693.504 - -

Agency services 106.979.783 129.831.218 129.831.218 117.789.784 9% 9%

Transfers recognised - operational 253.668.691 257.711.131 257.711.131 256.947.947 0% 0%

Other income 9.691.259 14.945.154 14.945.154 11.770.407 21% 21%

Total Revenue

(excluding capital transfers and contributions)

Transfers recognised - capital 983.395 2.127.900 2.123.365 816.856

Total Revenue 412.587.107 461.508.403 461.503.868 451.108.344

450.291.488 2% 2%

Revenue Collection Performance by Source

R' 000

Details

2022/2023 2022/2023 Variance

411.603.712 459.380.503 459.380.503
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5.7 CAPITAL SPENDING ON THREE LARGEST PROJECTS 
 

 
 
 
  

Name DC02_4*4 Double cab (Replacement)

Description 4*4 Double cab

Asset type Vehicle

Key staff involved

Staff responsibiliies

6.829.334

Capital implications

Future purpose of asset

Describe key issues

Policies in place to manage asset Asset Management Policy

Name DC02_Forward control vehicle (Replacement)

Description Forward control vehicle

Asset type Vehicle

Key staff involved

Staff responsibiliies

 

4.050.644

Capital implications

Future purpose of asset

Describe key issues

Policies in place to manage asset Asset Management Policy

Name DC02_Regional Landfill Site

Description Solid waste removal

Asset type Infrastructure

Key staff involved

Staff responsibiliies

 

1.565.585

Capital implications

Future purpose of asset

Describe key issues

Policies in place to manage asset Asset Management Policy

Asset value

TREATMENT OF THE THREE LARGEST ASSETS ACQUIRED 2022/2023

Asset value

Asset value

Asset 1

Asset 2

Asset 3
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5.8 INTRODUCTION TO CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The CWDM has no significant interest-bearing assets; hence income and operating cash flows are 

substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The CWDM deposits cash surpluses with 

financial institutions of high quality and standing. The Cash Management and Investment Policy of the 

municipality is aimed at gaining the optimal return on investments, without incurring undue risks, during those 

periods when cash revenues are not needed for capital or operational purposes.

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S FINDINGSCOMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL 

MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTS 
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AND INVESTMENTS 
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CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S FINDINGSCOMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL 

MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERSCOMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 

AND INVESTMENTS 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S FINDINGSCOMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL 

MATTERS 

 

CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S FINDINGS 

 

CHAPTER 7 – ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR-

GENERAL’S FINDINGSCOMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 
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5.9 CASH FLOW  

 

 
 
5.10 BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS  
 
The CWDM has no outstanding loans. 
  

2021/2022

Audited 

Outcome

Approved 

Budget
Final Budget Actual

Other Revenue 86.557.801 194.548.677 194.548.677 113.815.100        

Government - operating 253.284.230 256.462.888 256.462.888 256.507.299        

Government – capital 0 2.123.365.00       2.123.365.00       950.000              

Interest 34.764.396 62.000.000 62.000.000 50.459.745          

Suppliers and employees -328.274.530 -486.666.481 -486.666.481 365.559.313-        

Transfer and grants -16.988.386 -15.533.301 -15.533.301 12.400.174-          

-345.262.916 -502.199.782 -502.199.782 377.959.487-        

NET CASH FROM/(USED) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 29.343.511 12.935.148 12.935.148 43.772.657          

Proceeds on disposal of PPE -                     -                     -                     92.365                

Capital assets 5.168.369.00-       -31.087.331 -31.087.331 12.652.011-          

Decrease (increase) in non-current investments -                     -                     -                     178.000.000-        

NET CASH FROM/(USED) INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES -5.168.369 -31.087.331 -31.087.331 -190.559.646

Short-term Loans -                         -                         -                         -                         

Borrowing Long Term/Refinancing -                         -                         -                         -                         

Increase (Decrease) in Consumer Deposits -                         20.000.00-            20.000.00-            -                         

NET CASH FROM/(USED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES -                         20.000.00-            20.000.00-            -                     

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24.175.142 -18.172.183 -18.172.183 146.786.989.00-    

Cash/Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 766.153.639 790.328.779 790.328.779 790.328.779

Cash/Cash Equivalents at the Year-end 790.328.781 772.156.596 772.156.596 643.541.790

 Receipts

CASH FLOW OUTCOMES

R'000

Description

2022/2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments 

Cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts
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None. 

  

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 
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Refer to attached report. 
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COVERING LETTER FOR SUBMISSION OF AUDIT REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE 

 
The Municipal Manager 
Cape Winelands District Municipality  
46 Alexander Street 
7599 

30 November 2023 

Reference: 21419REG22-23  

Dear Sir 

Report of the Auditor-General on the financial statements, annual performance report, 
compliance with legislation and other legal and regulatory requirements of Cape 
Winelands District Municipality for the year ended June 2023 

1. The above-mentioned report of the Auditor-General is submitted herewith in terms of section 
21(1) of the Public Audit Act No. 25 of 2004 (PAA) read in conjunction with section 188 of 
the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and section 126(3) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA). 

2. We have not yet received the other information that will be included in the annual report with 
the audited financial statements and the annual performance report and have thus not been 
able to establish whether there are any inconsistencies between this information and the 
audited financial statements, the annual performance report or our report on compliance 
with legislation. You are requested to supply this information as soon as it is finalised. Once 
this information is received it will be read and should any inconsistencies be identified these 
will be communicated to you and you will be requested to make the necessary corrections. 
Should the corrections not be made we will amend and reissue the audit report. 

3. In terms of section 121(3) of the MFMA you are required to include the auditor’s report in the 
municipality’s annual report to be tabled. 

4. Prior to printing or copying the annual report which will include the auditor’s report you are 
required to do the following: 

 Submit the final printer’s proof of the annual report to the relevant senior manager of the 
Auditor-General of South Africa for verification of the audit-related references in the 
auditor’s report and for confirmation that the financial statements, annual performance 
report and other information are those documents that have been read and audited. 
Special care should be taken with the page references in your report, since an incorrect 
reference could have audit implications. 

 The signature Auditor-General in the handwriting of the auditor authorised to sign the 
audit report at the end of the hard copy of the audit report should be scanned in when 
preparing to print the report. This signature, as well as the place and date of signing and 
the Auditor-General of South Africa’s logo, should appear at the end of the report, as in 



the hard copy that is provided to you. The official logo will be made available to you in 
electronic format. 

5. Please notify the undersigned Senior Manager well in advance of the date on which the 
annual report containing this audit report will be tabled. 

6. The confidentiality of information obtained in an engagement must be observed at all times. 
In terms of section 50 of the PAA and the International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards), members of the staff of the Auditor General (AG), or 
an audit firm appointed in terms of section 25 of the PAA, may not disclose or make 
available any information obtained during an audit, other than the final auditor’s report, to 
any third party without the permission of the AG or her delegate, unless this is to a 
legislature or internal committee of a legislature or a court in a criminal matter. 

7. Until the steps described in paragraphs 2 and 4 of this document are completed and the 
annual report is tabled as required by section 127(2) of the MFMA, the audit report is not a 
final and public document and you are therefore requested to treat it as confidential.  

8. Your cooperation to ensure that all these requirements are met would be much appreciated. 

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this letter. 

Yours sincerely 

Signed 

…………………………… 
Senior Manager: Western Cape 

Enquiries:  Masixole Velem 
Telephone:  (021) 528 4105 / (067) 641 2587 
Email:  MasixoleV@agsa.co.za  
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To be included in final copy… 
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

General Information

Legal form of entity Municipality (MFMA)

The Cape Winelands District Municipality (Municipal code DC2) is a
district municipality located in the Boland region of the Western Cape
province of South Africa and includes the category B municipalities of
Witzenberg, Drakenstein, Stellenbosch, Breede Valley and Langeberg.

Nature of business and principal activities The municipality is a local authority that -
a) Ensures comprehensive and equitable Municipal Health Services
within the Cape Winelands;
b) Ensures co-ordination of multi-disciplinary and sectorial disaster risk
reduction through integrated institutional capacity for Disaster Risk
Management, Disaster Risk Assessment, Response and Recovery;
c) Provides effective planning and co-ordination of firefighting services,
prevention activities and training services throughout the Cape
Winelands;
d) Facilitates environmentally sustainable economic development and
investment attraction as well as retention through the development and
management of strategic partnerships;
e) Facilitates skills development within the Cape Winelands District
Municipality by means of knowledge management and social
infrastructure investment;
f) Facilitates the creation of sustainable jobs within the Cape Winelands
through the provision and maintenance of economic infrastructure;
g) Provides support and shared services to category B municipalities to
facilitate economic development planning within the Cape Winelands;
h) Increases access to safe and efficient public transport;
i) Integrates service delivery for maximum impact;
j) Creates opportunities for growth and development in rural areas;
k) Co-ordinate the provision of financial, technical and administrative
support services to category B municipalities within the Cape
Winelands;
l) Empowers vulnerable groups, build human capital and invest in
social capital and rural development programmes;
m) Enhances the planning of waste management services in the Cape
Winelands.
n) Facilitates planning co-ordination and spatial planning; and
o) Ensures environmental management through biodiversity, water and
natural resource management
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022

Restated*

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 643,541,787 790,328,779
Other receivables from exchange transactions 4 57,400,095 46,814,055
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 5 24,323 -
Inventories 6 2,603,433 1,978,517
VAT receivable 7 2,693,524 2,455,080
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8 84,892 122,441
Employee benefit asset 14 575,785 2,721,827

706,923,839 844,420,699

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 158,347,014 148,467,565
Intangible assets 10 491,935 566,615
Other receivables from exchange transactions 4 6,349,282 -
Employee benefit asset 14 - 5,212,822
Investments 11 178,000,000 -

343,188,231 154,247,002

Non-Current Assets 343,188,231 154,247,002
Current Assets 706,923,839 844,420,699
Total Assets 1,050,112,070 998,667,701

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 12 1,912,302 5,776,226
Payables from exchange transactions and Other 13 14,584,815 5,828,026
Employee benefit obligation 14 38,247,946 37,067,065
Provisions 16 57,000 43,276

54,802,063 48,714,593

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 14 144,626,130 149,836,320

Non-Current Liabilities 144,626,130 149,836,320
Current Liabilities 54,802,063 48,714,593
Total Liabilities 199,428,193 198,550,913

Assets 1,050,112,070 998,667,701
Liabilities (199,428,193) (198,550,913)
Net Assets 850,683,877 800,116,788

Accumulated surplus 15 850,683,877 800,116,788

* See Note  33
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022

Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 17 138,396 182,762
Rental of facilities and equipment 18 91,087 229,048
Roads services 19 117,033,414 105,635,889
Other income 20 1,256,063 1,311,127
Interest received - investment 21 62,998,758 40,295,365

Total revenue from exchange transactions 181,517,718 147,654,191

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 22 257,206,294 253,274,643
Public contributions and donations 23 251,005 938,667

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 257,457,299 254,213,310

Total revenue 438,975,017 401,867,501

Expenditure
Employee-related costs 24 (208,820,177) (206,152,202)
Remuneration of Councillors 25 (13,606,889) (12,744,505)
Depreciation and amortisation 26 (9,267,126) (9,787,961)
Finance costs 28 (13,454,000) (13,896,000)
Lease rentals on operating lease (298,157) (298,157)
Debt impairment 27 (102,220) (113,215)
Transfers and subsidies 29 (12,400,175) (16,988,386)
Contracted services 30 (40,569,376) (33,225,096)
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities (1,571,805) (132,468)
Inventory losses/write-downs (158,000) (49,320)
General expenses 31 (88,160,002) (73,765,878)

Total expenditure (388,407,927) (367,153,188)

Surplus for the year 50,567,090 34,714,313

* See Note  33
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated
surplus /
(deficit)

Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported 764,915,028 764,915,028
Correction of errors (33) 487,449 487,449

Balance at 30 June 2021 765,402,476 765,402,476
Changes in net assets
Prior period error (902,045) (902,045)
Surplus for the year 35,616,357 35,616,357

Total changes 34,714,312 34,714,312

Restated* Balance at 30 June 2022 800,116,787 800,116,787
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 50,567,090 50,567,090

Total changes 50,567,090 50,567,090

Balance at 30 June 2023 850,683,877 850,683,877

Note(s) 15 & 33

* See Note  33
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022

Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Sale of goods and services 113,815,100 86,557,801
Grants 257,457,299 253,284,230
Interest income 50,459,745 34,764,396

421,732,144 374,606,427

Payments

Employee costs (218,964,509) (210,868,541)
Suppliers (145,388,089) (121,649,870)
Other payments: Remuneration of Councillors (13,606,890) (12,744,505)

(377,959,488) (345,262,916)

Net cash flows from operating activities 34 43,772,656 29,343,511

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (12,508,011) (5,130,212)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9 92,365 -
Purchase of intangible assets 10 (144,000) (38,157)

Net cash flows from investing activities (12,559,646) (5,168,369)

Cash flows from financing activities

Investments 11 (178,000,000) -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (146,786,990) 24,175,142
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 790,328,779 766,153,639

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3 643,541,789 790,328,781

* See Note  33
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue 
Rental of facilities and equipment 240,000 - 240,000 91,087 (148,913) Note 46
Licences and permits 653,000 - 653,000 693,504 40,504 Note 45
Interest received - investment 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 62,998,758 6,998,758 Note 46
Agency services 129,831,218 - 129,831,218 117,789,784 (12,041,434) Note 45
Other revenue 14,945,154 - 14,945,154 11,770,408 (3,174,746) Note 45 & 46
Transfers and subsidies 257,711,131 - 257,711,131 256,947,947 (763,184) Note 45

Total Revenue (excluding
capital transfers and
contributions)

459,380,503 - 459,380,503 450,291,488 (9,089,015)

Expenditure
Employee related costs (247,768,727) 4,049 (247,764,678) (221,173,724) 26,590,954 Note 45 & 46
Remuneration of Councillors (13,872,761) - (13,872,761) (13,606,889) 265,872

Debt impairment (500,000) 397,779 (102,221) (102,220) 1

Depreciation and amortisation (9,560,700) (36,636) (9,597,336) (9,267,126) 330,210

Inventory consumed (33,956,853) (4,140,870) (38,097,723) (36,914,883) 1,182,840 Note 45
Contracted services (61,179,565) 5,853,777 (55,325,788) (40,641,300) 14,684,488 Note 45 & 46
Transfers and subsidies (15,533,301) (217,400) (15,750,701) (12,400,175) 3,350,526 Note 46
Other expenditure (76,996,596) (115,000) (77,111,596) (64,705,133) 12,406,463 Note 45 & 46
Losses (12,000) (1,745,699) (1,757,699) (1,729,804) 27,895 Note 45

Total expenditure (459,380,503) - (459,380,503) (400,541,254) 58,839,249

Surplus/ (Deficit) - - - 49,750,234 49,750,234

Transfers and subsidies - capital
(monetary allocations) (national /
provincial and district)

2,123,365 - 2,123,365 816,856 (1,306,509) Note 45 & 46

Surplus/ Deficit for the year 2,123,365 - 2,123,365 50,567,090 48,443,725
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current Assets
Cash 3,656,596 - 3,656,596 4,041,786 385,190 Note 45 & 46
Call investments deposits 768,500,000 - 768,500,000 639,500,000 (129,000,000) Note 45 & 46
Consumer debtors 26,190,056 - 26,190,056 31,197,252 5,007,196 Note 45 & 46
Other debtors 16,335,629 - 16,335,629 35,258,930 18,923,301 Note 45 & 46
Current portion of long term-
receivable

2,721,827 - 2,721,827 575,785 (2,146,042) Note 46

Inventory 1,663,327 - 1,663,327 2,603,433 940,106 Note 46

819,067,435 - 819,067,435 713,177,186 (105,890,249)

Non-Current Assets
Investment - - - 178,000,000 178,000,000 Note 46
Property, plant and equipment 169,643,354 - 169,643,354 158,347,015 (11,296,339)

Intangible assets 404,915 - 404,915 491,936 87,021 Note 46
Other non-current assets 5,212,822 - 5,212,822 - (5,212,822) Note 46

175,261,091 - 175,261,091 336,838,951 161,577,860

Current Assets 819,067,435 - 819,067,435 713,177,186 (105,890,249)

Non-Current Assets 175,261,091 - 175,261,091 336,838,951 161,577,860
Total Assets 994,328,526 - 994,328,526 1,050,016,137 55,687,611

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Consumer deposits - - - 22,500 22,500 Note 45 & 46
Trade and other payables 2,993,732 - 2,993,732 18,537,018 15,543,286 Note 45 & 46
Provisions 42,480,923 - 42,480,923 36,146,612 (6,334,311) Note 45 & 46

45,474,655 - 45,474,655 54,706,130 9,231,475

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 146,199,123 - 146,199,123 144,626,130 (1,572,993)

Total Liabilities 191,673,778 - 191,673,778 199,332,260 7,658,482

Net Assets 802,654,748 - 802,654,748 850,683,877 48,029,129

Reserves
Reserves 79,307,026 - 79,307,026 66,387,818 (12,919,208) Note 45 & 46
Accumulated surplus 723,347,722 - 723,347,722 784,296,059 60,948,337 Note 45

Total Net Assets 802,654,748 - 802,654,748 850,683,877 48,029,129
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Other Revenue 194,548,677 - 194,548,677 113,815,100 (80,733,577) Note 46
Transfers and subsidies -
Operational

256,462,888 - 256,462,888 256,507,299 44,411

Transfers and subsidies - Capital 2,123,365 - 2,123,365 950,000 (1,173,365) Note 46
Interest 62,000,000 - 62,000,000 50,459,745 (11,540,255) Note 46

515,134,930 - 515,134,930 421,732,144 (93,402,786)

Payments
Suppliers and employees (486,666,481) - (486,666,481) (365,559,313) 121,107,168 Note 45 & 46
Transfer and grants (15,533,301) - (15,533,301) (12,400,174) 3,133,127 Note 45 & 46

(502,199,782) - (502,199,782) (377,959,487) 124,240,295

Net cash flows from operating
activities

12,935,148 - 12,935,148 43,772,657 30,837,509

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital assets (31,087,331) - (31,087,331) (12,652,011) 18,435,320 Note 46
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment

- - - 92,365 92,365 Note 46

Purchase of intangible assets - - - - -  
Decrease (increase) in non-
current investments

- - - (178,000,000) (178,000,000) Note 46

Net cash flows from investing
activities

(31,087,331) - (31,087,331) (190,559,646) (159,472,315)

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase/ (decrease) in consumer
deposits

(20,000) - (20,000) - 20,000 Note 46

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

(18,172,183) - (18,172,183) (146,786,989) (128,634,806)

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

790,328,779 - 790,328,779 790,328,779 -

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

772,156,596 - 772,156,596 643,541,790 (128,634,806)
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The  annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP, issued by the ASB in accordance with
section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These  annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

All figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand.

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied with the previous reporting period in the
preparation of these  annual financial statements, is disclosed below.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the  annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application
of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may
be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Receivables 

The municipality assesses its receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the municipality makes judgements as to whether there are observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for receivables is calculated on an individual basis. For amounts due to the municipality, significant financial
difficulties of the receivable, probability that the receivable will enter bankruptcy, and default of payments are all considered
indicators of impairment.

Impairment testing

The recoverable (service) amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumptions may change, which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of  tangible assets.

Value in use of cash generating assets:

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in
use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by several
factors, including economic factors such as inflation and interest.

Value in use of non-cash generating assets:

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, the remaining service
potential of the asset is determined. The most appropriate approach selected to determine the remaining service potential is
dependent on the availability of data and the nature of the impairment.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other assets

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on historical data collected by the municipality. The estimate is based on the pattern in which
an asset's future economic benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality.
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post-retirement obligation depends on several factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a
number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in
these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the post-retirement  obligations.
The most appropriate discount rate that reflects the time value of money is with reference to market yields at the reporting date
on government bonds. Where there is no deep market in government bonds with a sufficiently long maturity to match the
estimated maturity of all benefit payments, the municipality uses current market rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter-
term payments and estimates the discount rate for longer maturities by extrapolating current market rates along the yield curve.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in
note 14.

Effective interest rate

The municipality used the prime lending rate to discount future cash flows.

Allowance for impairment

For receivables, an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory

An allowance has been made for inventory to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management has
made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in note 6.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions is included in note 16.

Impairment of statutory receivables

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable, may be impaired, the municipality recognises an impairment loss. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, is reduced,
either directly or using an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Accounting by principals and agents

The municipality makes assessments on whether it is the principal or agent in principal-agent relationships.

1.2 Reserves

Internal ring-fenced reserves

Capital replacement reserve (CRR)

To finance the provision of infrastructure and other items of property, plant and equipment from internal sources, amounts are
transferred from the accumulated surplus/(deficit) to the CRR. The amount transferred to the CRR is based on the municipality's
need to finance future capital projects included in the IDP. The CRR is reduced and the accumulated surplus/(deficit) is credited
by a corresponding amount when funds from the CRR are utilised.

 The cash is invested until it is utilised. The cash may only be invested in accordance with the Cash Management and
Investments Policy of the municipality.

 Interest earned on the CRR investment is recorded as part of the total interest earned in the Statement of Financial
Performance, whereafter such interest may be transferred from accumulated surplus to CRR.
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.2 Reserves (continued)
 The CRR may only be utilised for the purpose of purchasing items of property, plant and equipment for the

municipality and may not be used for the maintenance of these items.
 If gains or losses are made on the sale of assets, these are reflected in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Government grant reserve

When items of property, plant and equipment are financed from government grants, a transfer is made from the accumulated
surplus to the government grants reserve equal to the government grant recorded as revenue in the statement of financial
performance in accordance with a directive issued by National Treasury. When such items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, a transfer is made from the Government Grant Reserve to the accumulated surplus. The purpose of this policy is to
promote community equity by ensuring that the future depreciation expenses that will be incurred over the useful lives of
government grant-funded items of property, plant and equipment are offset by transfers from this reserve to the accumulated
surplus.

When an item of property, plant and equipment financed from government grants is disposed of, the balance in the Government
Grant Reserve relating to such item is transferred to the accumulated surplus.

Accumulated Surplus

The accumulated surplus represents the net difference between the total assets and the total liabilities of the municipality. Any
surpluses and deficits realised during a specific financial year are credited/ debited against accumulated surplus. Prior year
adjustments, relating to income and expenditure, are debited/credit against accumulated surplus when retrospective
adjustments are made.

1.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with
registered banking institutions with a maturity period of between three and twelve months and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents recorded at amortised cost in the annual financial statements approximate their
fair values. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash with bank, net of bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank overdrafts are expensed as
incurred.

Amounts recovered from the WCG, Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of Infrastructure), in respect of the
future medical liability of the road staff are included in the balance of cash and cash equivalents.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
supply of services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the

municipality; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost is considered to be the fair value as at date of acquisition.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
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Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured as follows:

(i) Plant and machinery - at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses; and

(ii) Buildings - at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, over the estimated useful lives to their estimated residual value of the
assets. The depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years:

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Estimated useful life

Buildings Straight line 30-65 years
Infrastructure Straight line 5-55 years
Furniture and fixtures Straight line 3-35 years
Motor vehicles Straight line 5-35 years
Office equipment Straight line 3-30 years
Plant and machinery Straight line 3-50 years
Other property, plant and equipment Straight line 3-50 years
Leased assets Straight line 5-10 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting
date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate.

At each reporting date, the municipality assesses whether there is any indication that the municipality's expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 9).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial
statements (see note 9).
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Expected useful life

In assessing whether there is any indication that the expected useful life of an asset has changed, the municipality considers the
following indications:

(a) The composition of the asset changed during the reporting period, i.e. the significant components of the asset changed.

(b) The use of the asset has changed, because of the following:

(i) The entity has changed the manner in which the asset is used.

(ii) The entity has changed the utilisation rate of the asset.

(iii) The entity has decided to dispose of the asset in a future reporting period(s) such that this decision        
changes the expected period over which the asset will be used.

(iv) Technological, environmental, commercial or other changes that occurred during the reporting period that have, 
      or will, change the use of the asset.

(v) Legal or similar limits placed on the use of the asset have changed.

(vi) The asset was idle or retired from use during the reporting period.

(c) The asset is approaching the end of its previously expected useful life.

(d) Planned repairs and maintenance on, or refurbishments of, the asset and/or its significant components either being
undertaken or delayed.

(e) Environmental factors, e.g. increased rainfall or humidity, adverse changes in temperatures or increased exposure to
pollution.

(f) There is evidence that the condition of the asset improved or declined based on assessments undertaken during the
reporting period.

1.5 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the
form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the municipality; and
 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Intangible assets (continued)

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software, other 3 - 15 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
 on disposal; or
 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in surplus
or deficit when the asset is derecognised.

1.6 Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

Recognition

The municipality’s heritage assets are culturally significant resources. These assets, in addition to meeting the definition of a
heritage asset, are currently in use as office accommodation and therefore meets the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Heritage assets are not recognised as a heritage asset even though the definition of a heritage asset is met, because a
significant portion is applied for administrative purposes. 

Heritage assets are accounted for in accordance with GRAP on property, plant and equipment (GRAP 17). Refer to accounting
policy 1.4.

The municipality has the following registered heritage assets:
 Building at 46 Alexander Street, Stellenbosch that was declared as a  provincial heritage site on 8 September 1967.
 Building at 194 Main Road, Paarl.

Impairment

On an annual basis the municipality assess heritage assets for any indications of impairment. The municipality uses the
following guidance provided by GRAP 21 and 26 (impairment of cash and non-cash generated assets). The indicators for
impairment may include but are not limited to:

External sources:

Changes in the market - if there is a significant decrease in the market value of the similar item.

Changes in the market - absence of an active market for a revalued heritage asset, for example if the supplier has been
liquidated.

Internal sources:

Significant change with an adverse effect on the entity - spare parts are no longer available and changes in technology took
place.

Physical damage to the heritage asset or prolonged deterioration affecting its value.
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Accounting Policies

1.7 Changes in accounting policies and, estimates, and correction of errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change in policy. In such cases, the municipality restates the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in
estimates are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors are applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error.  In such cases, the municipality restates the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for
which retrospective restatement is practicable.  Refer to applicable note to the annual financial statements for details of the
correction of errors recorded during the period under review.

1.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest
of another entity.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial
position.

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity initially measures a financial asset and financial liability at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
 Financial instruments at fair value.
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost are subject to an impairment review.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or using an
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility in the case of a financial asset.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by a municipality on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
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Accounting Policies

1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, a municipality shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the
expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not
possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the
municipality shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash
 a residual interest of another municipality
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another municipality; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another municipality under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the municipality.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another municipality; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the municipality.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by a municipality in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the municipality had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or
determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

 the municipality designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near - term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair
value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

Reclassification

The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 a combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the municipality cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host
contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. This
requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the municipality
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available becomes
the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the municipality reclassifies the instrument
from cost to fair value.

Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument, and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and
is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, a municipality calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted where the initial credit period granted or received is consistent with
terms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised
in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

For amounts due to the municipality, significant financial difficulties of the receivable, probability that the receivable will enter
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced using an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

Where financial assets are impaired using an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit within
operating expenses. When such financial assets are written off, the write-off is made against the relevant allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised as revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognises the asset; and
- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
based on their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at
that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of
the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and
having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are
accounted for in accordance with the standard of GRAP on revenue from non-exchange transactions.
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1.9 Statutory receivables

Identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require settlement
by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost method is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured at their
transaction amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges (where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment losses
and any amounts derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.

The transaction amount (for purposes of this standard) for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated,
levied or charged in accordance with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows:
 if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on revenue from exchange transactions;
 if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes

and transfers); or
 if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or another standard of GRAP, the

receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably.

Initial measurement

The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount.

Subsequent measurement

The municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any:

 interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);
 impairment losses; and
 amounts derecognised.

Other charges

Where the municipality is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy
additional charges on overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in
"Accrued interest" above, as well as the relevant policy on revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on revenue from
non-exchange transactions (taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired.

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:

 Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling, business
rescue or an equivalent.

 It is probable that the debtor will enter sequestration, liquidation or another financial re-organisation.
 A breach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where

levied).
 Adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in

debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.
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1.9 Statutory receivables (continued)

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measures the impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, either directly or using an allowance account. The amount of the losses is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

In estimating the future cash flows, a municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in
future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the entity discounts the estimated future cash
flows using a rate that reflects the current risk-free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific to the statutory receivable, or group
of statutory receivables, for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted either directly or by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment
does not result in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying
amount of the receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:
 the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;
 the municipality transfers to another party substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or
 the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has

transferred control of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognises the receivable; and
- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those
transferred based on their relative fair values at the transfer date. The entity considers whether any newly created rights and
obligations are within the scope of standard of GRAP on financial instruments or another standard of GRAP. Any difference
between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recognised, are recognised in surplus
or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the prime lending rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1.10 Leases (continued)

The difference between the amounts recognised as revenue and the contractual receipts is recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in the  Statement of Financial Performance.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments is recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight- line basis.

Any contingent rent is expensed in the period in which it is incurred.

1.11 Inventories

Inventories consist of unsold properties and consumables.

Initial measurement

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is deemed to be
the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Direct costs relating to unsold properties are accumulated for each separately
identifiable development.

Subsequent measurement

Unsold properties and consumables to be distributed at no or nominal consideration are subsequently measured at the lower of
cost and current replacement cost.

Roads inventory to be distributed at no or nominal consideration or to be consumed in the production process of goods to be
distributed at no or nominal consideration is subsequently measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable, and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipality.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises unsold low-cost housing contained in inventory when construction of such properties has been
completed and occupation of houses has been taken by the beneficiaries. At date of derecognition, the expense is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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1.11 Inventories (continued)

When other inventories are utilised or consumed, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods
are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement
cost, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

1.12 Grants in aid

The municipality annually awards grants to organisations in terms of section 67 of the MFMA. When making these transfers, the
municipality does not:

 receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or sale transaction;
 expect to be repaid in future; or
 expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment.

1.13 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.

The municipality will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of
users taken based on the financial statements.

1.14 Budget information

The municipality is subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

The approved budget covers the period from 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2023.

The  annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period has been included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts as prescribed
in GRAP 24.

A comparison of actual versus budgeted revenue and expenditure is disclosed in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and
actual amounts and reasons for variances in excess of 10%.

1.15 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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1.15 Related parties (continued)

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management is those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including those
charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform
such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is
reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses narrative
information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s financial
statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.16 Value Added Tax

The municipality is registered with SARS for VAT on the invoice basis, in accordance with section 15(1) of the VAT Act 
(Act No. 89 of 1991).

1.17 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

Depreciation (amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as cash-generating assets or non-cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
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1.17 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to those
future cash flows.

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current prime lending rate and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of a cash generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Cash-generating units

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a
cash-generating unit, even if some or all the output is used internally. The municipality uses management's best estimate of
future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:

 the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use.

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is
justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
 its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
 its value in use (if determinable); and
 zero.

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other cash-
generating assets of the unit.

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-cash-
generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit.
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1.17 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the
carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service
potential to a cash-generating unit.

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above
the lower of:

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss

been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit.

1.18 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined using the following approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the
current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated based on
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
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1.18 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset are determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the
municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features that are unnecessary for the goods or services the
asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or
services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis
thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.19 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when the environmental liability arises. The provision is
calculated by a qualified environmental engineer. The provision represents the net present value at the reporting date of the
expected future cash flows to rehabilitate the landfill site. The discount rate used to calculate the effect of time value of money is
linked to the index for earthworks as published by Statistics South Africa.

Where some or all the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.
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1.19 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions shall not be recognised for deficits from future operating activities.

If the municipality has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 40.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality.

A contingent liability:
 a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality; or
 a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.20 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when the municipality has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.21 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a
transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.21 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Agency fees are recognised to the extent of work performed.

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of municipal assets yielding interest is recognised when:
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality, and
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method.

1.22 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represents an increase in net assets.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, the
municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or
gives value to another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential are required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a
nonexchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding is recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised, it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
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1.22 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Transfers

Apart from services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.24 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. Refer to
note 33 for detail.

1.25 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means any expenditure incurred by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with section 15 or
11(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), and includes:

 overspending of the total amount appropriated in the municipality’s approved budget;
 overspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in the approved budget;
 expenditure from a vote unrelated to the department or functional area covered by the vote;
 expenditure of money appropriated for a specific purpose, otherwise than for that specific purpose;
 spending of an allocation referred to in paragraph (b), (c) or (d) of the definition of ‘‘allocation’’ otherwise than in

accordance with any conditions of the allocation; or
 a grant by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with the MFMA.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense and,
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.26 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense and, where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.27 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in
contravention of the municipality's supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.

All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.28 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for services rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in GRAP) of the
reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and
are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting municipality,
unless either:

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that
are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for services rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions whereby an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

 bonus and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which
the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the municipality expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The municipality recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
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1.28 Employee benefits (continued)

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits
for one or more employees.

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common
control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and benefit
levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned.

Long term receivable

When, and only when, it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation, a municipality shall recognise its right to reimbursement as a separate asset. The municipality shall
measure the asset at fair value. In all other respects, the municipality shall treat that asset in the same way as plan assets. In
the statement of financial performance, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan may be presented net of the amount
recognised for a reimbursement.

The municipality recognised a long-term receivable relating to the recoveries from the Department of Transport and Public
Works in respect of the post-employment medical benefit relating to the roads staff. 

The assumptions used by the actuaries to calculate the portion of the roads staff are the same as that used to calculate the
amount of the liability relating to the post-employment medical aid.

Multi-employer plans 

The entity classifies a multi-employer plan as a defined contribution plan or a defined benefit plan under the terms of the plan
(including any constructive obligation that goes beyond the formal terms). 

Where a plan is a defined benefit plan, the entity accounts for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan
assets and cost associated with the plan in the same way as for any other defined benefit plan.

When sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting for a plan that is a defined benefit plan, the entity
accounts for the plan as if it was a defined contribution plan.

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined benefit
liability, the entity recognised actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the
reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or
fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting
entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:

 the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the
reporting entity; or 

 the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period.

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation, which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement.
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1.28 Employee benefits (continued)

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee
benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the
defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined
benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability, the entity recognises past service cost as an expense in
the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets, together
with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other than those
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan itself.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts: 
 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly;
 plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement.

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measures the resulting asset at the
lower of:

 the amount determined above; and
 the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future

contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate that
reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above are recognised in surplus or deficit.

The entity determines the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient
regularity such that the amounts recognised in the  annual financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

 current service cost;
 interest cost;
 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
 actuarial gains and losses;
 past service cost;
 the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and
 the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability).

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related
current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the
accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service as giving
rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost, the entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, the entity shall attribute
benefit on a straight-line basis from:

 the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether the benefits are conditional on
further service); until

 the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under the plan, other
than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market
prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.
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1.28 Employee benefits (continued)

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises:

 any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
 any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measures the obligation (and the related plan assets, if
any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan
is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the entity has a legally
enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the obligations
on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously.

Actuarial assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible. 

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled. 

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflects the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money are consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:
 estimated future salary increases;
 the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those

terms) at the reporting date; and
 estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit

plan, if, and only if, either:
 those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
 past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner, for

example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term service awards is the net total of the following amounts:
 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

 current service cost;
 interest cost;
 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
 actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
 past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
 the effect of any curtailments or settlements.

1.29 Investments

Investments are long-term investments that are held with registered banking institutions with a maturity period of more than
twelve months. Long-term investments are recorded at amortised cost in the annual financial statements and approximate their
fair values.
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1.30 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.31 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity:
 that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to

transactions between activities of the same entity);
 whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that

activity and in assessing its performance; and
 for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

Measurement

The amount of each segment item reported is the measure reported to management for the purposes of making decisions about
allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. Management uses only one measure of a segment’s
surplus or deficit, the segment’s assets, or the segment’s liabilities in assessing segment performance and deciding how to
allocate resources, segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities that are reported in terms of that measure.
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2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2023 or later periods:

Guideline: Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites

The objective of this guideline: The Constitution of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) (the Constitution), gives local
government the executive authority over the functions of cleaning, refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal.
Even though waste disposal activities are mainly undertaken by municipalities, other public sector entities may also be
involved in these activities from time to time. Concerns were raised about the inconsistent accounting practices for landfill
sites and the related rehabilitation provision where entities undertake waste disposal activities. The objective of the guideline
is therefore to provide guidance to entities that manage and operate landfill sites. The guidance will improve comparability
and provide the necessary information to the users of the financial statements to hold entities accountable and for decision
making. The principles from the relevant standards of GRAP are applied in accounting for the landfill site and the related
rehabilitation provision. Where appropriate, the guideline also illustrates the accounting for the land in a landfill, the landfill
site asset, and the related rehabilitation provision.

The effective date of the guideline is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2023.

The municipality expects to adopt the guideline for the first time in the 2023/2024 annual financial statements.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.

GRAP 25 (as revised): Employee Benefits

Background

The Board issued the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits (GRAP 25) in November 2009. GRAP 25 was based on the
International Public Sector Accounting Standard on Employee Benefits (IPSAS 25) effective at that time. However, GRAP 25
was modified in some respects where the Board decided the requirements of the International Accounting Standards (IAS)
on Employee Benefits (IAS® 19) were more appropriate. Specifically, the Board: 

 Eliminated the corridor method and required recognition of actuarial gains and losses in full in the year that they
arise; and 

 Required the recognition of past service costs in the year that a plan is amended, rather than based on whether
they are vested or unvested.

Since 2009, the International Accounting Standards Board® has made several changes to IAS 19, including changes to the
recognition of certain benefits, and where these changes are recognised. The IPSASB made similar changes to its standard
and as a result of the extent of changes, issued IPSAS 39 on Employee Benefits to replace IPSAS 25 in 2016.

When the Board consulted locally on the proposed amendments to IPSAS 25 in 2016, stakeholders welcomed the
amendments to align IPSAS 25 to IAS 19 and supported the changes that resulted in IPSAS 39. 

In developing GRAP 25, the Board agreed to include the guidance from the IFRS Interpretation on IAS 19 – The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction (IFRIC 14® ) partly in GRAP 25 and partly in
the Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP on The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (IGRAP 7). 

Key amendments to GRAP 25

The Board agreed to align GRAP 25 with IPSAS 39, but that local issues and the local environment need to be considered.
As a result of this decision, there are areas where GRAP 25 departs from the requirements of IPSAS 39. The Board’s
decisions to depart are explained in the basis for conclusions.

The amendments to GRAP 25 are extensive and mostly affect the accounting for defined benefit plans. A new renumbered
Standard of GRAP (e.g. GRAP 39) will not be issued, but rather a new version of the current GRAP 25. 

The effective date of these improvements is 01 April 2023.
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

The municipality expects to adopt the improvements for the first time in the 2023/2024 annual financial statements.

The impact of these improvements is currently being assessed.

GRAP 104 (as revised): Financial Instruments

Following the global financial crisis, several concerns were raised about the accounting for financial instruments. This
included that (a) information on credit losses and defaults on financial assets was received too late to enable proper
decision-making, (b) using fair value in certain instances was inappropriate, and (c) some of the existing accounting
requirements were seen as too rules based. As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board® amended its
existing Standards to deal with these issues. The IASB issued IFRS® Standard on Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) in 2009 to
address many of the concerns raised. Revisions were also made to IAS® on Financial Instruments: Presentation and the
IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The IPSASB issued revised International Public Sector Accounting
Standards in June 2018 to align them with the equivalent IFRS Standards.

The revisions better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments. The amendments result in better
information available to make decisions about financial assets and their recoverability, and more transparent information on
financial liabilities.

The most significant changes to the Standard affect:
 Financial guarantee contracts issued
 Loan commitments issued
 Classification of financial assets
 Amortised cost of financial assets
 Impairment of financial assets
 Disclosures

The effective date of these improvements is 01 April 2023.

The municipality expects to adopt the improvements for the first time in the 2023/2024 annual financial statements.

The impact of these improvements is currently being assessed.

GRAP 2020: Improvements to the standards of GRAP 2020

Every three years, the Accounting Standards Board undertakes periodic revisions of the Standards of GRAP, in line with best
practice internationally among standard setters. 

Improvements to Standards of GRAP are aimed at aligning the Standards of GRAP with international best practice, to
maintain the quality and to improve the relevance of the Standards of GRAP.

Amendments include-

GRAP 5 – Borrowing Costs
 For general borrowings, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation determined by applying a capitalisation rate;

- Clarify that borrowings made specifically for purposes of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded until
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare asset for intended use or sale are complete.

GRAP 13 – Leases
 Operating leases and sale and leaseback transactions are currently assessed for impairment in accordance with

GRAP 26; and
 Clarify that these arrangements may also be assessed in accordance with GRAP 21.

GRAP 16 – Investment Property
 Clarify that GRAP 21 may be applied to assess investment property for impairment; and
 Include heading “Classification of property as investment property” (paragraphs 6 and 7) and delete existing

headings.
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)
 Investment property under construction (within scope of GRAP 16)

- Added heading “Guidance on initially measuring self-constructed investment property at fair value”
- Added clarification that investment property is measured at fair value at earliest of:

o completion of construction or development; or
o when fair value becomes reliably measurable

 Clarify requirements on transfers to and from Investment property
- Change in use involves an assessment on whether:

o property meets, or ceases to meet definition of investment property and
o evidence exists that a change in use has occurred

- List of examples of a change in use is regarded as non-exhaustive

GRAP 17 – Property, Plant and Equipment
 Delete example indicating that quarries and land used for landfill may be depreciated in certain instances

- Land has an unlimited useful life and cannot be consumed through its use

GRAP 20 – Related Party Disclosures
 Clarify that entity, or any member of a group of which it is part, providing management services to reporting entity

(or controlling entity of reporting entity) is a related party
- Disclose amounts incurred by the entity for the provision of management services that are provided by a
separate management entity
- If an entity obtains management services from another entity (“the management entity”) the entity is not
required to apply the requirements in paragraph .35 to the remuneration paid or payable by the management
entity to the management entity’s employees or those charged with governance of the entity in accordance with
legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions
- Management services are services where employees of the management entity perform functions as
“management” as defined

GRAP 24 – Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
 Terminology amended

- Primary financial statements amended to “financial statements” or “face of the financial statements”

GRAP 31 – Intangible Assets
 Extend requirement to consider whether reassessing useful life of intangible asset as finite rather as indefinite

indicates that asset may be impaired
- Both under cost model or revaluation model

GRAP 32 – Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
 Clarify disclosure requirement for service concession assets

- Disclose carrying amount of each material service concession asset recognised at the reporting date

GRAP 37 – Joint Arrangements
 Application guidance clarified

- When a party obtains joint control in a joint operation where activity of joint operation constitutes a function
(GRAP 105 or GRAP 106), previously held interest in the joint operation is not remeasured

GRAP 106 – Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control
 When party obtains control of joint operation and entity had rights to assets, or obligations to liabilities before

acquisition date, it comprises an acquisition achieved in stages
- Apply the requirements for an acquisition achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interest
in joint operation

Directive 7 – The Application of Deemed Cost
 Clarify that bearer plants within scope of Directive

The effective date of these improvements is 01 April 2023.

The municipality expects to adopt the improvements for the first time in the 2023/2024 annual financial statements.

The impact of these improvements is currently being assessed.
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to this Standard of GRAP, are primarily drawn from the IASB’s Amendments to IAS 1.

Summary of amendments are: 

Materiality and aggregation 

The amendments clarify that: 
 information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial information;
 materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements; and
 even when a Standard of GRAP requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations apply.

Statement of financial position and statement of financial performance

The amendments clarify that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and aggregated
as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements.

Notes structure

The amendments add examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that understandability and comparability
should be considered when determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in
the order listed in GRAP 1.

Disclosure of accounting policies

Remove guidance and examples with regard to the identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as
being potentially unhelpful.

A municipality applies judgement based on past experience and current facts and circumstances.

The effective date of this amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2023.

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2023/2024 annual financial statements.

The impact of these improvements is currently being assessed.
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3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 7,541,787 24,328,779
Short-term investments 636,000,000 766,000,000

643,541,787 790,328,779

Included in the balance of cash and cash equivalents is an amount of R42 023 830 (2022: R35 961 349) relating to the portion
recovered from the WCG, Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of Infrastructure), in respect of the future
medical aid liability of the roads staff.

Included in the balance of cash and cash equivalents is an amount relating to unspent conditional grants (refer to note 12).

No cash and cash equivalents have been pledged as security.

Short-term investments

ABSA - Investment
Opening balance 164,000,000 148,000,000
Movement for the year (80,000,000) 16,000,000

84,000,000 164,000,000

FNB - Investment
Opening balance 129,000,000 137,000,000
Movement for the year 15,000,000 (8,000,000)

144,000,000 129,000,000

INVESTEC - Investment
Opening balance 139,000,000 141,000,000
Movement for the year (9,000,000) (2,000,000)

130,000,000 139,000,000

NEDBANK - Investment
Opening balance 171,000,000 165,000,000
Movement for the year - 6,000,000

171,000,000 171,000,000

STANDARD BANK - Investment
Opening balance 163,000,000 155,000,000
Movement for the year (56,000,000) 8,000,000

107,000,000 163,000,000

636,000,000 766,000,000
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3. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The municipality had the following bank accounts

`

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Nedbank - Primary bank account 4,041,786 6,828,779 7,653,639 4,041,786 6,828,779 7,653,639
Nedbank - Call account 3,500,000 17,500,000 12,500,000 - - -

Total 7,541,786 24,328,779 20,153,639 4,041,786 6,828,779 7,653,639

4. Other receivables from exchange transactions

Current

Accrued interest 23,511,314 17,321,583
Allowance for impairment (139,187) (129,997)
Councillors 19,921 22,484
Deposits 4,740 4,740
Insurance claims 29,807 40,071
Municipal health debtor 95,266 74,760
Other receivables 2,082,092 174,595
Post retirement medical aid 248,445 225,995
Prepayments 2,490,217 2,278,610
Rental 26,741 4,341
Roads services (Department of Infrastructure) 29,030,739 26,796,873

57,400,095 46,814,055

Non-current

Accrued interest (non-current investments) 6,349,282 -
Allowance for impairment - -

6,349,282 -

Other receivables from exchange transactions (non-current) 6,349,282 -
Other receivables from exchange transactions (current) 57,400,095 46,814,055

Total other receivables from exchange transactions 63,749,377 46,814,055

Other receivables pledged as security

No other receivables were pledged as security.

Credit quality of other receivables

The credit quality of other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty defaults. The municipality’s historical experience in
collection of other trade receivables falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors, management's view is that no
additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the municipality’s other trade receivables.

Other receivables from exchange transactions (Current)

Gross balance
Other receivables from exchange transactions 57,539,282 46,944,052

57,539,282 46,944,052
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4. Other receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Less: Allowance for impairment
Other receivables (116,804) (110,343)
Post retirement medical aid (22,383) (19,654)

(139,187) (129,997)

Net balance
Other receivables from exchange transactions 57,400,095 46,814,055

57,400,095 46,814,055

Other receivables from exchange transactions
Current (0-30 days) 31,359,569 27,167,230
31 - 60 days 3,499 2,437
61 - 90 days 164 3,482
91 - 120 days - -
121 - 365 days - -
> 365 days 15,412 18,227

31,378,644 27,191,376

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year.

Prepayments of R2 490 217  (2022: R2 278 610) were not included as the future economic benefits relate to the receipt of
goods and services. Councillor debt of R19 921 (2022: R22 484) was not included as this relate(s) to recoveries still to be
concluded at reporting date. The short-term interest accrual of  R23 511 314 (2022: R17 321 583) was not included in the
ageing as it is not due yet.

Included in other receivables is an amount of R1 839 670 related to the land purchased for the development of the landfill site.
The purchase of the land has not yet been completed at 30 June 2023, however, the funds have been transferred to the
Attorneys Trust Account. The purchase is expected to be completed during the first quarter of the financial year ending
30 June 2024.

Other receivables past due but not impaired

Management regards other receivables from exchange transactions for outstanding amounts of more than 30 days as past due.
The impairment of other receivables from exchange transactions is based on the historic payment rate of the receivable.

As at 30 June 2023, other receivables of R38 996 (2022: R46 632) were past due but not impaired.

No other receivables were pledged as security.
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4. Other receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of other receivables from exchange transactions

Opening balance (129,997) (127,467)
Provision for impairment (10,377) (5,440)
Unused amounts reversed 1,187 2,910

(139,187) (129,997)

Ageing: Other receivables from exchange transactions (non-current)

Gross balance
Accrued interest 6,349,282 -

6,349,282 -

Less: Allowance for impairment
Accrued interest - -

Net balance
Accrued interest 6,349,282 -

6,349,282 -

The long-term interest accrual of  R6 349 282 (2022: Rnil) was not included in the ageing as it is not due yet. No portion of the
accrued interest is considered to be past due but not impaired.

Other receivables past due but not impaired

Management regards the accrued interest due from the long-term investments as not being past due. The accrued interest only
becomes payable to the municipality upon maturity of the underlying investment.

No other receivables were pledged as security.

5.  Trade Receivables from exchange transactions

Gross balances
Fire fighting 313,964 196,611

Less: Allowance for impairment
Fire fighting (289,641) (196,611)

Net balance
Fire fighting 24,323 -

Fire fighting
Current (0 -30 days) - -
31 - 60 days 24,324 -
61 - 90 days 75,679 50,982
91 - 120 days 40,649 331
121 - 365 days - 28,352
> 365 days 173,312 116,946

313,964 196,611
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5.  Trade Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year (196,611) (85,926)
Contributions to allowance (116,328) (117,761)
Reversal of allowance 23,298 7,076

(289,641) (196,611)

Trade receivables pledged as security

No trade receivables were pledged as security.

The risk profile of each class of debtor was assessed to determine the allowance for impairment. 

No collateral is held for any of the debtors disclosed above.

Credit quality of trade receivables

Due to historic trends that cannot be determined, the credit quality of each individual debtor that is neither due nor past nor
impaired was assessed. As per the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy, all debtors with accounts outstanding for more
than 60 days are handed over to the debt collectors of the municipality. The municipality’s historical experience in collection of
trade receivables falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors, it is management's view that no additional risk beyond
amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the municipality’s trade receivables.

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

The debt originated as a result of firefighting services rendered in terms of the Fire Fighting Act. The impairment for receivables
from exchange transactions was calculated based on the assessment of each individual debtor, as a historic payment trend
cannot be determined for firefighting debtors.

As at 30 June 2023, trade receivables of R289 641 (2022: R196 611) were past due but not impaired.

Trade receivables impaired and provided for

As at 30 June 2023, consumer debtors of Rnil  (2022: Rnil) were impaired.

As at 30 June 2023, consumer debtors of R289 641 (2022: R196 611) were provided for.

The ageing of these receivables are as follows:

Current (0 - 30 days) - -
31 - 60 days - -
61 - 90 days 75,679 50,982
91 - 120 days 40,649 331
120 days or more 173,313 145,298

289,641 196,611

6. Inventories

Consumable stores 2,530,493 1,905,577
Housing stock 72,940 72,940

2,603,433 1,978,517

No inventory has been pledged as security.

Consumables valued at R158 000 (2022: R49 320) were written off and recognised in the statement of financial performance.

Inventory valued at R5 386 853 (2022: R4 160 608) were expensed in the statement of financial performance.
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7. VAT receivable

VAT 2,693,524 2,455,080

Statutory receivables

Gross balances
VAT receivables 2,693,524 2,455,080

Less: Allowance for impairment
VAT receivables - -

Net balance
VAT receivables 2,693,524 2,455,080

Transactions arising from statute

The municipality is registered with SARS for VAT on the invoice basis, in accordance with Section 15(1) of the VAT Act (Act No.
89 of 1991). The statutory receivable is measured at its transactional amount.

The VAT receivable recognised at year end is mainly due to the impact of the difference between the input and output VAT
recognised during the financial year as well as the accruals raised at year end. 

No interest or other charges are levied against the statutory receivable.

Management regards statutory receivables as being impaired on the same basis that other receivables from exchange
transactions are assessed for impairment (historic payment rate of the receivable).

Historically, all refunds have been received within 30 days of the submission of the VAT 201 returns to SARS.

Reconciliation of the provision for impairment

The statutory receivable is not considered to be impaired by the municipality as SARS has not defaulted on refund payments in
the past. 

Receivables past due not impaired

Statutory receivables which are less than 30 days past due are not considered for impairment. At 30 June 2023, Rnil (2022:Rnil)
were past due but not impaired.

Statutory receivables pledged as security

No statutory receivables were pledged as security.

No collateral is held for any of the statutory receivables.

8. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Government grants and subsidies 84,892 122,441

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security

No receivables from non- exchange transactions were pledged as security.

The risk profile of each class of debtor was assessed to determine the allowance for impairment. 

No collateral is held for any of the debtors disclosed above.
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8. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions

The credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions impaired

As at 30 June 2023, receivables from non-exchange transactions of Rnil (2022: Rnil) were impaired and provided for.

Net balances
Government grant and subsidies 84,892 122,441

Government grant and subsidies
Current (0 - 30 days) 84,892 122,441

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Opening balance - -

9. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

2023 2022

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Land 66,454,904 - 66,454,904 66,454,904 - 66,454,904
Buildings 51,424,174 (28,174,356) 23,249,818 49,343,791 (27,055,598) 22,288,193
Plant and machinery 22,998,105 (14,068,986) 8,929,119 22,527,031 (13,116,356) 9,410,675
Furniture and fittings 8,594,637 (5,757,120) 2,837,517 8,601,910 (5,573,629) 3,028,281
Motor vehicles 61,086,479 (28,739,413) 32,347,066 52,054,371 (27,465,105) 24,589,266
Office equipment 29,352,271 (14,070,470) 15,281,801 29,022,105 (14,259,686) 14,762,419
Infrastructure 6,037,889 (1,232,904) 4,804,985 4,472,303 (1,107,189) 3,365,114
Other property, plant and
equipment

9,558,545 (5,116,741) 4,441,804 9,113,349 (4,544,636) 4,568,713

Total 255,507,004 (97,159,990) 158,347,014 241,589,764 (93,122,199) 148,467,565

Criteria for determination for classification between Property, plant and equipment and Investment property

The criteria created to identify whether an asset meets the definition of PPE or Investment property have been determined as
follows:

a) In the instance where the property yields rentals, where a significant portion of the property is held for administrative purposes
and an insignificant portion is held for rentals, the total property will be evaluated as PPE and not as investment property. This
will apply even if the intention is to rent the property out for a prolonged period.

b) Where a significant portion (more than 50%) of the total property, including land and all other buildings is held for rentals,
the property will be classified as investment property. This will apply even if management intends to rent the property out for
a prolonged period.

A property consisting of a parking area, is rented to the public, and a significant portion of the property (land and buildings) is
held by the municipality for administrative purposes.
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9. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (continued)

The consideration of a new lease is based on the need of the municipality prior to expiry of the existing lease agreements. The
property meets the criteria set out above and has therefore been classified as PPE.

Heritage assets are not recognised as a heritage asset even though the definition of a heritage asset is met, because a
significant portion is applied for administrative purposes.

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2023

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Total

Land 66,454,904 - - - - 66,454,904
Buildings 22,288,193 2,116,910 (29,954) - (1,125,331) 23,249,818
Plant and machinery 9,410,675 1,029,898 (105,356) (33,608) (1,372,490) 8,929,119
Furniture and fittings 3,028,281 233,870 (37,613) - (387,021) 2,837,517
Motor vehicles 24,589,266 10,738,770 (64,500) - (2,916,470) 32,347,066
Office equipment 14,762,419 4,433,461 (1,390,309) - (2,523,770) 15,281,801
Infrastructure 3,365,114 1,565,585 - - (125,714) 4,804,985
Other property, plant and
equipment

4,568,713 473,570 (28,087) 33,608 (606,001) 4,441,803

148,467,565 20,592,064 (1,655,819) - (9,056,797) 158,347,013

Included in additions is work-in-progress that relates to Buildings (R242 650) and Infrastructure (R1 565 585).

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 66,384,904 70,000 - - 66,454,904
Buildings 22,856,489 541,500 - (1,109,796) 22,288,193
Plant and machinery 10,344,469 560,382 (55,090) (1,439,086) 9,410,675
Furniture and fittings 3,169,179 256,482 (8,235) (389,145) 3,028,281
Motor vehicles 28,148,961 - - (3,559,695) 24,589,266
Office equipment 16,380,381 960,588 (115,232) (2,463,318) 14,762,419
Infrastructure 3,340,543 149,000 - (124,429) 3,365,114
Other property, plant and equipment 4,583,445 557,292 - (572,024) 4,568,713

155,208,371 3,095,244 (178,557) (9,657,493) 148,467,565

Included in additions is work-in-progress that relates to Office equipment (R132 772).

Reconciliation of repairs and maintenance - 2023

Contracted
services

Employee
related cost

Materials and
supplies

Total

Buildings 2,869,288 1,757,901 36,781 4,663,970
Office equipment 1,288,916 - 14,158 1,303,074
Motor vehicles 2,869,446 - 47,547 2,916,993
Other 186,084 - - 186,084

7,213,734 1,757,901 98,486 9,070,121
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9. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (continued)

Reconciliation of repairs and maintenance - 2022

Contracted
services

Employee
related cost

Materials and
supplies

Total

Buildings 2,122,062 1,635,474 30,466 3,788,002
Office equipment 703,012 - 46,690 749,702
Plant and equipment 115,124 - 5,526 120,650
Motor vehicles 863,992 - 451,928 1,315,920
Other - - 2,090 2,090
Furniture and fittings 38,113 - - 38,113

3,842,303 1,635,474 536,700 6,014,477

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the MFMA is available for inspection at the registered office of the
municipality.

No assets have been pledged as security.

Other property, plant and equipment were split into the various classes as disclosed in the note for both the current and
prior year.

An impairment assessment was performed based on the indicators as listed in the accounting policy under paragraph 1.4 PPE.
No potential impairment losses have been recognised on PPE at the reporting date.

A review of useful lives of PPE was done. Management considers whether there is any indication that expectations about the
useful life of an asset have changed since the previous reporting date.  There were changes in the remaining useful lives of
intangible assets during the financial year. Refer to note 42 for details relating to the change in accounting estimates.

10. Intangible assets

2023 2022

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Computer software, other 2,011,361 (1,519,426) 491,935 1,902,361 (1,335,746) 566,615

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2023

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Amortisation Total

Computer software, other 566,615 144,000 (8,351) (210,329) 491,935

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2022

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software, other 658,926 38,157 (130,468) 566,615
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11. Investments

ABSA
Opening balance - -
Movements during the year 108,000,000 -
Short term: Transfer to cash and cash equivalents - -

108,000,000 -

STANDARD BANK
Opening balance - -
Movements during the year 55,000,000 -
Short term: Transfer to cash and cash equivalents - -

55,000,000 -

INVESTEC
Opening balance - -
Movements during the year 15,000,000 -
Short term: Transfer to cash and cash equivalents - -

15,000,000 -

178,000,000 -

The long-term investments have a maturity period of five years and are measured at amortised cost.

The short-term portion of the long-term investments relates to the portion of the investments that will mature within the next
twelve months. These are transferred to cash and cash equivalents, when applicable.

12. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Community development workers (CDW) operational support grant 14,116 204,046
Emergency municipal load- shedding relief grant 950,000 -
Expanded public works programme integrated grant for municipalities - 100,000
Fire service capacity building grant - 1,046,000
Integrated transport planning grant 85,605 672,322
Local government financial management grant - 154,932
Local government internship grant 8,200 46,000
Local government public employment support grant - 200,000
Public contributions and donations - 251,005
Rural roads asset management system grant (RRAMS) 75 2,748,000
Safety initiative implementation - whole of society approach (WOSA) 755,824 353,921
Western Cape municipal interventions grant 98,482 -

1,912,302 5,776,226

See note 22 & 23 for reconciliation of grants from national/ provincial government. These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced
investment until utilised (refer to note 3).

13. Payables from exchange transactions and Other

Creditors accruals 13,440,538 2,770,072
Other payables 594,664 213,412
Payments received in advanced 68,999 67,357
Retentions 109,627 -
Trade payables 370,111 2,776,632
Unclaimed funds 872 553

14,584,815 5,828,026
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14. Employee benefits

Current employee benefits
Employee benefit accruals 2,158,334 2,576,834
Current: medical aid liability 8,916,862 8,964,681
Provision staff leave 18,033,797 17,376,311
13th cheque 5,399,598 5,259,102
Current: ex-gratia benefit 142,309 204,000
Current: long service award 2,652,908 1,788,000
Performance bonus 944,138 898,137

38,247,946 37,067,065

Other long-term employee benefits
Long-service award 13,138,475 13,339,999

Post-employee benefits
Post-retirement medical aid benefits 131,224,251 135,612,320
Ex-gratia benefit 263,404 884,001

131,487,655 136,496,321

Current liability 38,247,946 37,067,065
Non-current liability 144,626,130 149,836,320

182,874,076 186,903,385

Post-retirement and medical aid benefits

The municipality offers employees and continuation members the opportunity of belonging to one of several medical
schemes, most of which offer a range of options pertaining to levels of cover.

Upon retirement, an employee may continue membership of the medical scheme. Upon a member's death in service or
death-in-retirement, the surviving dependants may continue membership of the medical scheme.

In-service members will receive a post-employment subsidy of 60% or 70% of the contribution payable should they be a
member of a medical aid at retirement.

All continuation members and their eligible dependants receive a 60% or 70% subsidy.

Upon a member's death-in-service or death-in-retirement the surviving dependants will continue to receive the same subsidy.

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following medical aid schemes:

-Bonitas
-Key Health
-Samwumed
-Sizwe Hosmed
-LA Health

Details relating to eligible employees of the post-retirement medical aid benefit obligation are listed below:

Active members
Principal members 260 271
Average age 48.7 49.4
Average past service cost R19.18 million R19.4 million
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

Continuation members
Principal members 145 149
Average age 72.2 71.9

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are:-
Projected benefit obligation 140,141,113 144,577,000

140,141,113 144,577,000

The obligation in respect of past services has been estimated as follows:-
Active members 46,074,977 46,192,000
Continuation members 94,066,136 98,385,000

Net obligation 140,141,113 144,577,000

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are:-
Current service cost 2,002,000 2,946,000
Interest cost 16,695,000 17,502,000
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses (14,762,992) (7,501,911)

Amount charged to Statement of Financial Performance 3,934,008 12,946,089

The future service cost for the ensuing financial period is estimated to be R2 298 483, whereas the interest cost for the next
year is estimated to be R16 901 018.

The best estimates for the employer benefit payments in the 2023/24 financial period is expected to be R8 916 862.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
Opening benefit obligation liability 144,577,000 139,672,000
Payments to members (8,369,895) (8,041,089)
Charge to Statement of Financial Performance 3,934,008 12,946,089

Closing benefit liability 140,141,113 144,577,000

The economic assumptions used are set relative to government long-term fixed coupon gilts and long-term index linked gilts
on issue on 30 June 2023.

The government bond yield curves are relatively flat from outstanding maturity terms of 15 years. Therefore the economic
assumption is based on bonds with the closest outstanding maturity terms to 15 years. On 30 June 2023, the bonds with the
closest outstanding terms to 15 years were:
• Fixed coupon gilt - R2037 with an outstanding term of 13.6 years and yield to maturity of 12.06%.
• Index linked gilt - I2038 with an outstanding term of 14.6 years and yield to maturity of 5.00%.

The Nominal Discount Rate has been set as the return from the R2037 long-term fixed coupon gilt of 12.06% on 30 June
2023.

At the previous valuation, the nominal discount rate was set as yield curve.

Key actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 12.06% Yield Curve
Health-care inflation 7.75% CPI + 1.5%
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis on current-service and interest cost:
Assumption Change Current

service cost
Interest cost Total % change

Central assumptions 2,298,483 16,901,018 19,199,501
Health-care inflation %1 2,761,526 18,926,028 21,687,554 %13

%-1 1,928,716 15,197,298 17,126,014 %-11
Post-retirement mortality 20% 2,245,076 16,805,300 19,050,376 %-1

-20% 2,355,859 17,002,870 19,358,729 %1

Sensitivity analysis on the benefit liability:
Assumption Change Liability % change
Central assumptions 140,141,113
Health-care inflation 1 % 156,932,238 12%

-1 % 126,014,083 -10%
Post-retirement mortality 20% 139,347,432 -1 %

-20% 140,985,658 1 %

History of Liabilities and Experience
Adjustments

30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2023

Accrued liability 140,285,000 131,534,500 139,672,000 144,577,000 140,141,113
Experience adjustment (2,278,000) - - 9,179,411 2,765,874

In terms of the Memorandum of Agreement between the WCG, Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of
Infrastructure), and the past experience hereon, funds will be made available to maintain the approved organogram of the
roads division in the municipality. The future claim for roads staff for post-employment medical aid has therefore been raised
as an employee benefit asset.

Employee benefit asset
Opening balance 7,934,649 10,555,196
Current service cost 663,000 870,000
Payment received from WCG (3,169,288) (3,589,525)
Interest cost 5,077,000 5,169,000
Benefits paid (2,570,711) (2,449,475)
Interest on payments from WCG (2,893,193) (1,674,022)
Actuarial loss / (gain) (4,465,672) (946,525)

575,785 7,934,649

Reconciliation of employee benefit asset
Current asset 575,785 2,721,827
Non-current asset - 5,212,822

575,785 7,934,649

The assumptions used by the actuaries to calculate the portion of the roads staff are the same as were used to calculate the
amount recognised as post-employment medical aid.

The amounts recognised as the current portion are equal to the amount as recognised in the valuation report for the
respective financial years.

Ex-gratia benefits

The ex-gratia pensions are pensions that are paid by the municipality from its revenue and are not funded or paid from one
of the municipality's formalised pension arrangements.

All employees who did not participate in the municipality's formal pension funds are entitled to a revenue pension, which is
sometimes referred to as "ex-gratia" pensions.
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

Details of employees eligible for ex-gratia benefits are detailed below: 

Members
In-service employees for ex-gratia pension 2 5
In-service employees eligible for lump sum benefit on retirement 4 4

Average age in years
In-service employees for ex-gratia pension 59.52 59.73
In-service employees eligible for lump sum benefit on retirement 56.52 60.04

The amount recognised in the Statement  of Financial Position is:-
Projected benefit obligation 405,712 1,088,000

The amount recognised in the Statement  of Financial Performance is:-
Interest cost 84,000 74,000
Recognised actuarial (Gain) / Loss 33,156 39,524

117,156 113,524

The future service cost for the ensuing financial year is estimated to be Rnil, whereas the interest cost for the next financial
year is estimated to be R45 115. 

The best estimates for the employer benefit payments in the 2023/24 financial year are expected to be R142 309.

The economic assumptions used are set relative to government long-term fixed coupon gilts and long-term index-linked gilts
on issue on 30 June 2023.

The government bond yield curves are relatively flat from outstanding maturity terms of 15 years. Therefore the economic
assumption based on bonds with the closest outstanding maturity terms to 8 years. On 30 June 2023, the bonds with the
closest outstanding terms to 10 years were:
• Fixed coupon gilt - R2032 with an outstanding term of 8.8 years and yield to maturity of 11.120%.
• Index linked gilt - I2033 with an outstanding term of 9.7 years and yield to maturity of 4.905%.

The Nominal Discount Rate has been set as the return from the R2032 long-term fixed coupon gilt of 11.120% as of
30 June 2023. At the previous valuation the nominal discount rate was set as yield curve.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as
follows:
Opening benefit obligation 1,088,000 976,001
Payments to members (799,444) (1,524)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 33,156 39,524
Interest and service cost 84,000 74,000

Closing benefit obligation 405,712 1,088,001

Key actuarial assumptions
Discount rate %11.12 %7.71
CPI inflation rate %6.22 %6.37
Salary inflation rate %7.72 %7.37

Sensitivity analysis on the benefit obligation:
Assumption Change Total Liability % change
Central Assumptions 405,712
Benefit Inflation rates %1 446,665 %10

%-1 369,676 %-9
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on the interest cost:
Assumption Change Interest cost % change
Central Assumptions 45,115
Benefit Inflation rates 1 % 49,669 10%

-1 % 41,108 -9%

History of Liabilities, Assets and
Experience Adjustments

30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2023

Accrued liability 1,559,725 1,429,000 976,000 1,088,000 405,712
Experience adjustment (152,346) - - - 188,459

Long-service awards

The municipality offers employees a long-service award for every five years of service completed from ten years of service to
forty-five years of service.

Details of employees eligible for long-service awards are detailed below:

Members 389 397
Average age in years 47 47

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are:
Projected benefit obligation 15,791,385 15,128,000

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are:
Current service cost 948,000 881,000
Interest cost 1,752,000 1,489,000
Recognised actuarial (gain) / losses (307,211) 145,400

Amount charged to Statement of Financial Performance 2,392,789 2,515,400

The future service cost for the ensuing financial year is estimated to be R940 810, whereas the interest cost for the next
financial year is estimated to be R1 744 471.

The best estimates for the employer benefit payments in the 2023/24 financial period are expected to be R2 652 908.

The economic assumptions used are set relative to government long-term fixed coupon gilts and long-term index linked gilts
on issue on 30 June 2023.

The government bond yield curves are relatively flat from outstanding maturity terms of 15 years. Therefore the economic
assumption based on bonds with the closest outstanding maturity terms to 15 years. On 30 June 2023, the bonds with the
closest outstanding terms to 15 years were:
• Fixed coupon gilt - R2037 with an outstanding term of 13.6 years and yield to maturity of 12.06%.
• Index linked gilt - I2038 with an outstanding term of 14.6 years and yield to maturity of 5.00%.

The nominal discount rate has been set as the return from the R2037 long-term fixed coupon gilt of 12.06% on
30 June 2023. At the previous valuation, the nominal discount rate was set as yield curve.

Movements in the present value of the benefit obligation were as follows:
Opening benefit obligation 15,128,000 14,313,000
Payment to members (benefits vesting) (1,729,404) (1,700,400)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (307,211) 145,400
Interest and service cost charged to Statement of Financial Performance 2,700,000 2,370,000

Closing benefit obligation 15,791,385 15,128,000
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

Key actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 12.06% Yield Curve
Salary inflation 7.75% CPI +1%
Average retirement age 62 62

Assumptions Change Liability % change
Central Assumptions 15,791,385
General salary inflation 1% 16,763,252 6%

-1% 14,905,689 -6%
Withdrawal rates 20% 15,267,766 -3%

-20% 16,356,369 4%

Assumptions Change Current
service cost

Interest cost Total % change

Central assumptions 940,810 1,744,471 2,685,281
General salary inflation %1 1,013,222 1,861,678 2,874,900 %7

%-1 876,096 1,637,656 2,513,752 %-6
Withdrawal rates 20 % 893,203 1,681,322 2,574,525 %-4

%-20 993,532 1,812,608 2,806,140 %5

History of Liabilities and Experience
Adjustments

30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2023

Accrued liability 12,707,467 13,877,000 14,313,000 15,128,000 15,791,385
Experience adjustment 927,882 - - 181,400 99,421

Retirement benefit information 

The municipality makes provision for post-retirement benefits to eligible councillors and employees who belong to different
pension schemes. These funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act and include both defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes.

The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified contributions.
Where councillors / employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the
municipality are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

These schemes are multi employer plans and are subject to a tri-annual, bi-annual or annual actuarial valuation as set out
below.

a) LA Retirement Fund (Previously: Cape Joint Pension Fund)

The LA Retirement Fund operates both as a defined benefit and defined contribution scheme. 

This defined benefit plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan as the municipality’s liability in the proportionate
share of actuarial gains and losses cannot readily be determined.

Defined Benefit Scheme

The contribution rate payable under the defined benefit section is 27%, 9% by the members and 18% by their councils.  The
actuarial valuation report at 30 June 2022 disclosed an actuarial valuation amounting to R1 391 841 000
(30 June 2021: R1 486 110 000), with a net accumulated surplus of R144 158 000 (2021: R69 420 000), with a funding level
of 111.6% (30 June 2021: 104.9%).

Defined Contribution Scheme

The actuarial valuation report at 30 June 2022 indicated that the defined contribution scheme of the fund is in a sound
financial position, with assets amounting to R1 976 184 000 (30 June 2021: R2 082 488 00), net investment reserve of Rnil
(30 June 2021: Rnil) and with a funding level of 100% (2021: 100%).
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14. Employee benefits (continued)

The actuary concluded that:

- The Defined Benefit Section is in a sound financial condition with a funding level of 111.6% as at 30 June 2022.

- The Defined Contribution Section of the fund was in a sound financial condition with a funding level of 100% as at 
30 June 2022.

- Overall the fund is in a sound financial condition with an overall funding level of 104.5%.

- The Trustees awarded a 5.2% pension increase effective 1 January 2023.

- The Trustees awarded 100% of monthly pension bonus to pensioners payable in December 2022.

b) Consolidated Retirement Fund for Local Government  (Previously: Cape Joint Retirement Fund)

The contribution rate for members is 7.5% of basic salary, whilst the respective Local Authorities are contributing 19.5%.

The fund provides defined contribution benefits to its active members and deferred members. The benefit payable on exit of
a member is the Member’s Share. This is broadly equal to the contributions (after costs) with the addition of investment
returns.

The last statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2022 revealed that the net assets of the fund amounted to
R36 502 914 000 (30 June 2021: R34 148 081 000), with funding levels of 131.6% and 100.4% (30 June 2021: 133% and
100.5%) for the Pensions Account and the Share Account respectively. The contribution rate paid by the members
(7,50%/9%) and the municipalities (7,50%/19,5%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future. The
actuary certified that the structure of the assets is appropriate relative to the nature of the liabilities, given normal
circumstances and that the Fund is in a sound financial condition as at the valuation date.

c) The Municipal Workers Retirement Fund (Previously: SAMWU National Provident Fund)

The Municipal Workers Retirement Fund is a defined contribution scheme. Members contribute at a rate of not less than
7.5% of salaries, as required by the Rules. The employers contribute at a total rate of not less than 18%. From 1 July 2017,
members and employers that fall under other bargaining councils or forums are not bound by the above minimum
contribution rates.  The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2020 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to
R9 021 008 000 (30 June 2017: R7 720 948 000), with funding levels of 102.2% (30 June 2017: 110.3%). The Fund’s assets
were sufficient to cover the members’ Fund Credits and to provide a margin for contingency reserves as at 30 June 2020.
We have allocated the full margin towards the required balance for the risk benefits reserve, which leaves no assets
available for the data reserve and a (very small) negative balance for the investment reserve – this is discussed further
below, but it should be noted that strong investment returns for the 18 months following the valuation date have enabled the
negative investment reserve to be eliminated (as at 31 December 2021). The Fund was in a sound financial position at the
valuation date.

d) The Municipal Councillors Pension Fund

The Municipal Councillors Pension Fund operates as a defined contribution scheme. The statutory valuation performed as at
30 June 2018 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R1 798 030 000 (30 June 2015 : R2 551 861 000), with
funding levels of 103.26% (30 June 2015: 101.08%). The contribution rate paid by the members (13.75%) and council
(15%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future.  The Actuary certified that the Fund was in a
sound financial condition as at 30 June 2018, in that the assets of the fund were sufficient to cover the accrued service
liabilities including the recommended contingency reserves in full.

The appointment of a Curator in terms of section 5(1) of the Financial Institutions (protection of funds) Act 2001 for the whole
of the business of the Municipal Councillors Pension Fund was done in December 2017. Due to the provisional curatorship, a
short moratorium has been placed on the payment of benefits to members/beneficiaries. In terms of the curatorship order,
the Court ordered as follows: 
1. The provisional Curatorship order of 19 December 2017 is made final; 
2. The Curator shall furnish the Registrar of the Pension Fund with a progress report; and
3. The Curator must deliver a further progress report to the Court by no later than 31 October 2018 which report deals with
the status of curatorship as at 30 September 2018; on the curatorship once every two months.
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15. Accumulated surplus

Ring-fenced internal funds and reserves within accumulated surplus - 2023

Capital
replacement

reserve

Government
grant reserve

Accumulated
surplus

Total

Opening balance 79,307,027 2,887,399 717,922,363 800,116,789
Surplus for the year - - 50,567,090 50,567,090
Transfer to capital replacement reserve 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) -
Property, plant and equipment purchases (19,775,208) (816,856) 20,592,064 -
Intangible assets (144,000) - 144,000 -

66,387,819 2,070,543 782,225,520 850,683,882

Ring-fenced internal funds and reserves within accumulated surplus - 2022

Capital
replacement

reserve

Government
grant reserve

Accumulated
surplus

Total

Opening balance 65,457,033 2,941,714 697,003,729 765,402,476
Surplus for the year - - 34,714,313 34,714,313
Transfer to capital replacement reserve 16,000,000 - (16,000,000) -
Property, plant and equipment purchases (2,111,848) (54,315) 2,166,163 -
Intangible assets (38,158) - 38,158 -

79,307,027 2,887,399 717,922,363 800,116,789

16. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2023

Opening
Balance

Additions Utilised
during the

year

Total

Provision (Insurance claims) 43,276 57,000 (43,276) 57,000

Reconciliation of provisions - 2022

Opening
Balance

Additions Utilised
during the

year

Total

Provision (Insurance claims) 6,440 43,276 (6,440) 43,276

The provision relates to insurance claims, which were not finalised at year end, but were finalised before the financial statements
were authorised for issue. 

17. Service charges

Fire service charges 138,396 182,762

18. Rental of facilities and equipment

Premises 91,087 229,048

An amount of R71 739 included in the rental income relates to a lease agreement between CWDM and the lessee which ends
on 30 June 2025. The annual rental escalation is calculated based on the average CPI over the previous twelve-month period.
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19. Roads services

Department of Transport and Public Works  (Department of Infrastructure) 117,033,414 105,635,889

The municipality has a Memorandum of Agreement with the WCG, Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of
Infrastructure) for rendering services regarding the roads function within the jurisdiction of the CWDM.

The final allocation received from the Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of Infrastructure) was revised to
R111 000 000 (Initial allocation: R105 200 000) during the current financial year.

20. Other income

Brokerage 70,264 63,223
Electricity income (Eerste Begin) 609 21,157
Insurance income 82,538 54,612
LG SETA refund 381,014 384,462
Miscellaneous income 18,348 47,055
Municipal health income 693,504 739,566
Tender document income 9,786 1,052

1,256,063 1,311,127

21. Interest received - investment

Interest on investments: Long term 6,349,282 -
Interest on investments: Short term 56,649,476 40,295,365

62,998,758 40,295,365

During the current year, the average interest rate on the short-term investments is 7.45% (2022: 5.15%) whereas the average
interest rate on the long-term investments is 12.09% (2022:-%).

The municipality deposits its investments with multiple banks with varying interest rates linked to the prime rate.

22. Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants
Community development workers (CDW) operational support grant 136,885 41,081
Equitable share 2,891,000 2,662,000
Expanded public works programme integrated grant for municipalities 1,469,000 1,313,000
Integrated transport planning 586,717 1,050,134
Joint district and metro approach 1,000,000 2,000,000
Local government financial management grant 1,000,000 845,068
Local government internship grant 37,800 55,545
Rural roads asset management systems grant (RRAMS) 71,925 -
RSC levy replacement grant 248,404,000 242,546,000
Sandhills - toilet hire 509,352 498,134
Safety initiative implementation - whole of society approach (WOSA) 1,098,097 2,263,681
Western Cape municipal interventions grant 1,518 -

257,206,294 253,274,643

Conditional and Unconditional

Included in the above are the following grants and subsidies received:

Equitable share 2,891,000 2,662,000
RSC levy replacement grant 248,404,000 242,546,000

251,295,000 245,208,000
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22. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

Equitable Share

The Equitable Share is the conditional share of the revenue raised nationally and is allocated in terms of section 214 of the
Constitution (Act 108 of 1996) to the municipality by the National Treasury.

Community development workers (CDW) operational support grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 204,046 169,127
Current-year receipts 75,000 76,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (136,885) (41,081)
Refund of unspent portion (128,045) -

14,116 204,046

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Community Development and Planning Services.

To provide financial assistance to municipalities to cover the operational and capital costs pertaining to the line functions of the
community development workers including the supervisors and regional coordinators.

Integrated transport planning

Balance unspent at beginning of year 672,322 822,456
Current-year receipts - 900,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (586,717) (1,050,134)

85,605 672,322

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Technical Services.

The funds were utilised to review and update Municipal Integrated Transport Plans in terms of the National Land Transport Act,
2009 (Act No. 5 of 2009).

Local government financial management grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 154,932 -
Current-year receipts 1,000,000 1,000,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,000,000) (845,068)
Refund of unspent portion (154,932) -

- 154,932

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Financial and Strategic Support Services.

To promote and support reforms in financial management by building capacity in municipalities to implement the Municipal
Finance Management Act.

This grant was mainly utilised to improve on the municipality's audit outcome, the upgrade and maintenance of financial
management systems and to implement National Treasury's internship programme.

62

ROWEND
CWDM



Cape Winelands District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2023 2022

22. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

Fire service capacity building grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,046,000 1,046,000
Refund of unspent portion (1,046,000) -

- 1,046,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Community Development and Planning Services.

To provide financial assistance to municipalities to ensure functional emergency communication, mobilisation systems and fire
services.

Sandhills - toilet hire

Current-year receipts 509,352 498,134
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (509,352) (498,134)

- -

Strategic Objective: Technical Services.

The allocation is made to the municipality by the Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of Infrastructure) as a
refund for temporary toilets hired in Sandhills.

Local government public employment support grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 200,000 -
Current-year receipts - 200,000
Refund of unspent portion (200,000) -

- 200,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: The Office of the Municipal Manager

To coordinate and ensure the implementation of targeted, short term public employment programmes for communities identified
as being in distress, through conditional transfers to local and district municipalities and the metro in the Western Cape.

Joint district and metro approach grant

Current-year receipts 1,000,000 2,000,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,000,000) (2,000,000)

- -

Strategic Objective: The Office of the Municipal Manager

To provide financial assistance to district municipalities to implement catalytic projects to improve infrastructure, systems,
structures and service delivery.
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22. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

Rural roads asset management systems grant (RRAMS)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 2,748,000 2,711,000
Current-year receipts 72,000 2,748,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (71,925) -
Refund of unspent portion (2,748,000) (2,711,000)

75 2,748,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Technical Services.

The purpose is to assist rural district municipalities in setting up their road asset management systems and collect road and
traffic data in line with the Road Infrastructure Strategic Framework for South Africa (RISFSA).

Local government internship grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 46,000 31,545
Current-year receipts - 70,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (37,800) (55,545)

8,200 46,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Financial and Strategic Support Services.

The purpose of the grant is to provide financial assistance to municipalities in support of capacity building for the future by
means of an internship programme.

Safety initiative implementation - whole of society approach (WOSA)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 353,921 294,601
Current-year receipts 1,500,000 2,323,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,098,097) (2,263,680)

755,824 353,921

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Community Development and Planning Services.

To enable a resilient, sustainable, quality living environment through the operationalisation of a Safety Plan.

Expanded public works programme integrated grant for municipalities

Balance unspent at beginning of year 100,000 -
Current-year receipts 1,369,000 1,413,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,469,000) (1,313,000)

- 100,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Financial and Strategic Support Services, Community Development and Planning Services and Technical
Services.

This grant incentivises the municipality to expand job creation efforts through the use of labour-intensive delivery methods in
various identified focus areas, in compliance with the Expanded Public Works Programme Guidelines.
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22. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

The grant contributed towards increased levels of employment in areas where unemployment is relatively high as well as
providing work experience and gaining expertise through in house training.

Western Cape municipal interventions grant

Current-year receipts 100,000 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,518) -

98,482 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Community Development and Planning Services.

This grant provides financial assistance to municipalities to improve infrastructure, systems, structures, corporate governance,
service delivery and compliance with executive obligations.

Emergency Municipal Load- Shedding Relief Grant

Current-year receipts 950,000 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12).

Strategic Objective: Community Development and Planning Services.

Provide a financial contribution to municipalities towards the purchase and installation of back-up energy supply (which may
include generators, renewable power sources, batteries and all ancillary costs associated with the installation, i.e. switch gear,
safe keeping, caging, etc.) for water and wastewater infrastructure as an immediate response to the prolonged load-shedding,
thereby mitigating the impact on the provision of basic services and potential health risks.

23. Public contributions and donations

Public contributions and donations 251,005 938,667

Reconciliation of conditional contributions
Balance unspent at beginning of year 251,005 260,592
Current-year receipts - 929,080
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (251,005) (938,667)

- 251,005

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12)
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23. Public contributions and donations (continued)
2023 Balance

unspent at
beginning of

year

Current year
receipts

Conditions
met -

transferred to
revenue

Refund of
unspent
portion

Balance
unspent at the

end of the
year

Road, Station Road, Ceres 251,005 - (251,005) - -

2022 Balance
unspent at

beginning of
year

Current year
receipts

Conditions
met -

transferred to
revenue

Refund of
unspent
portion

Balance
unspent at the

end of the
year

Road, Station Road, Ceres 260,592 - (9,587) - 251,005
Donation: Nieuwedrift - 840,000 (840,000) - -
Donation: Laptops - 89,080 (89,080) - -

260,592 929,080 (938,667) - 251,005

24. Employee-related costs

Acting allowances 87,448 51,921
Actuarial loss / (gain) (10,571,375) (6,370,462)
Basic 130,976,857 125,505,846
Bonus 10,285,874 9,784,549
Current service cost 2,287,000 2,957,000
Defined contribution plans 22,266,074 21,218,567
Group schemes 2,591,849 2,457,987
Housing benefits and allowances 4,798,782 4,630,094
Leave pay provision charge 1,804,137 908,552
Medical aid - company contributions 13,080,077 12,700,772
Other allowances 6,997,748 8,165,063
Overtime payments 7,809,621 8,032,490
Performance bonus 868,472 1,150,225
Telephone 986,216 689,855
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 12,570,060 12,321,954
Unemployment insurance fund (UIF) 880,880 878,427
Workmen's compensation assistance (WCA) 1,100,457 1,069,362

208,820,177 206,152,202

2023 Long-service
awards

Ex-gratia PRMA Less: Funded
asset

Total

Current service cost 948,000 - 2,002,000 (663,000) 2,287,000
Net actuarial (gains) / losses recognised (307,211) 33,156 (14,762,992) 4,465,672 (10,571,375)

640,789 33,156 (12,760,992) 3,802,672 (8,284,375)

2022 Long-service
awards

Ex-gratia PRMA Less: Funded
asset

Total

Current service cost 881,000 - 2,946,000 (870,000) 2,957,000
Net actuarial (gains) / losses recognised 145,400 39,524 (7,501,911) 946,525 (6,370,462)

1,026,400 39,524 (4,555,911) 76,525 (3,413,462)
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24. Employee-related costs (continued)

Remuneration of senior management

2023 Basic salary Car
allowance

Performance
bonuses

Contribution
to UIF,

medical and
pension

funds

Other Total

Municipal Manager 1,405,443 360,000 241,367 89,408 311,260 2,407,478
Chief Financial Officer 1,210,275 240,000 230,246 289,717 24,000 1,994,238
ED: Community development and
planning services

1,229,395 300,000 202,842 36,081 144,000 1,912,318

ED: Technical services 1,258,538 150,000 148,016 300,370 24,000 1,880,924

5,103,651 1,050,000 822,471 715,576 503,260 8,194,958

2022 Basic Salary Car
allowance

Performance
bonuses

Contribution
to UIF,

medical and
pension

funds

Other Total

Municipal Manager 1,255,967 360,000 237,800 84,731 24,000 1,962,498
Chief Financial Officer 1,133,971 240,000 222,331 272,771 24,000 1,893,073
ED: Community development and
planning services 

1,095,369 300,000 199,844 34,216 24,000 1,653,429

ED: Technical services 1,204,923 150,000 222,331 272,974 24,000 1,874,228

4,690,230 1,050,000 882,306 664,692 96,000 7,383,228

The following accrued to key management personnel in terms of GRAP 25 at year-end:

Staff leave
Municipal Manager 71,316 322,510
Chief Financial Officer 132,608 72,654
ED: Community development and planning services 71,920 45,862
ED: Technical Services 83,753 66,049

359,597 507,075

25. Remuneration of Councillors

Executive Mayor 1,122,917 1,045,223
Deputy Executive Mayor 570,693 535,226
Speaker 908,177 843,164
Other Councillors 11,005,102 10,320,892

13,606,889 12,744,505

Remuneration of Councillors

2023 Salaries Contribution
to medical

and pension
funds

Car allowance Other Total

Executive Mayor 399,345 103,449 180,000 440,123 1,122,917
Deputy Executive Mayor - M Sampson 419,202 31,491 120,000 - 570,693
Speaker - D Joubert 697,836 52,433 111,177 46,731 908,177
Other Councillors 8,657,176 454,733 1,171,690 721,503 11,005,102

10,173,559 642,106 1,582,867 1,208,357 13,606,889
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25. Remuneration of Councillors (continued)

2022 Salaries Contribution
to medical

and pension
funds

Car allowance Other Total

Executive Mayor 361,976 106,796 169,337 407,114 1,045,223
Deputy Executive Mayor - D Swart 160,367 - 43,857 - 204,224
Deputy Executive Mayor - M Sampson 257,691 13,312 60,000 - 331,003
Speaker - C Meyer 230,961 27,732 36,168 27,083 321,944
Speaker - D Joubert 402,033 30,697 64,853 23,636 521,219
Other Councillors 7,887,635 351,714 1,459,220 622,323 10,320,892

9,300,663 530,251 1,833,435 1,080,156 12,744,505

The salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the
Constitution of South Africa, read with the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act and the MEC of local government in the
province's determination in accordance with this Act.

26. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 9,056,797 9,657,493
Intangible assets 210,329 130,468

9,267,126 9,787,961

27. Debt impairment

Debt impairment 102,220 113,215

28. Finance costs

Employee benefits 13,454,000 13,896,000

29. Transfers and subsidies

Grants in aid
Community and Social Services - 180,000
Farmer households 1,052,684 389,996
Sport and recreation 757,661 -
Private enterprises 435,344 500,000

2,245,689 1,069,996

Monetary allocations
Fire services 300,000 250,000
Farmer households 927,100 1,681,865
Community and social services 529,988 350,000
Social relief 373,324 361,525
Tourism 2,552,828 2,250,000
Sport and recreation 1,286,246 1,325,000
Support to local municipalities 4,155,000 9,700,000
Private enterprises 30,000 -

10,154,486 15,918,390

12,400,175 16,988,386
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30. Contracted services

Outsourced Services
Alien Vegetation Control 1,268,438 1,656,474
Burial Services 97,620 -
Business and Advisory 25,673 470,438
Cleaning Services 268,111 649,181
Clearing and Grass Cutting Services 1,040,195 478,261
Hygiene Services 932,383 880,323
Professional Staff 1,364,185 1,205,517
Security Services 3,411,212 2,442,656
Translators, Scribes and Editors 129,863 224,993
Traffic Control 327,175 -

Consultants and Professional Services
Business and advisory 3,310,236 3,293,965
Infrastructure and planning 1,755,767 213,386
Laboratory services 1,474,137 1,738,529
Legal costs 108,417 469,071

Contractors
Artists and Performers 471,850 2,000
Audio-visual Services 13,000 1,850
Catering Services 2,635,973 1,398,266
Employee Wellness 91,560 194,071
Exhibit Installations 25,775 -
Fire Services 12,861,025 11,956,626
Gardening Services 58,364 175,723
Graphic Designers 90,000 26,580
Maintenance of Buildings, Facilities, Equipment and Unspecified Assets 8,551,288 5,417,475
Pest Control and Fumigation 127,986 64,139
Photographer 13,400 14,950
Plants, Flowers and Other Decorations 10,800 22,603
Stage and Sound Crew 104,943 101,138
Transportation - 126,881

40,569,376 33,225,096
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31. General expenses

Achievements and awards 278,329 203,568
Advertising, publicity and marketing 3,468,307 2,618,880
Auditors remuneration 3,206,646 2,573,272
Bank charges, facility and card fees 149,075 240,270
Bargaining council 60,599 58,545
Bursaries (employees) 372,518 -
Chemicals 184,388 155,700
Cleaning materials 238,379 234,523
Communications 4,331,804 4,726,229
Consumables 490,104 733,442
Courier and delivery services 198,500 209
Deeds 1,091 1,119
Drivers licences and permits 18,049 17,730
Entertainment 44,744 38,541
External computer services 6,113,916 6,743,023
Full-time union representatives 127,303 25,772
Hire charges 4,757,894 6,796,528
Insurance underwriting 3,098,150 3,480,066
Licences 169,083 118,876
Materials and supplies 29,483,476 15,611,083
Municipal services 6,516,269 6,325,262
Parking fees 250 250
Printing and stationery 1,210,441 1,140,386
Printing, publication and books 276,078 499,566
Professional bodies, membership and subscription 2,212,873 2,205,600
Refreshments 510,186 277,870
Registration fees 73,747 75,348
Roadworthy tests 16,878 17,955
Skills development fund levy 1,929,291 1,839,274
Tollgate fees 273,508 239,746
Transport provided as part of departmental activities 1,514,150 943,803
Travel and Visas 6,193 -
Travel and subsistence 2,663,509 1,237,440
Uniforms and protective clothing 776,952 2,821,466
Vehicle tracking 192,831 215,903
Wet fuel 13,194,491 11,548,633

88,160,002 73,765,878

32. Auditors' remuneration

Fees 3,206,646 2,573,272
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33. Prior period errors

The prior year has been amended to account for prior period errors.

Below is a summary of the total effect that the prior period errors, changes in accounting policies and reclassifications had on
the amount previously disclosed in the annual financial statements, followed by a description of each individual prior period
error with the amount involved.

Statement of Financial Position
Audited Prior year

error
Reclassi-
fications

Restated

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 790,328,779 - - 790,328,779
Other receivables from exchange transactions 46,814,055 - - 46,814,055
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 122,441 - - 122,441
Inventories 1,978,517 - - 1,978,517
VAT receivable 2,455,080 - - 2,455,080
Employee benefit asset 2,721,827 - - 2,721,827

844,420,699 - - 844,420,699

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 147,967,023 500,542 - 148,467,565
Intangible assets 566,615 - - 566,615
Employee benefit asset 5,212,822 - - 5,212,822

153,746,460 500,542 - 154,247,002

Total Assets 998,167,159 500,542 - 998,667,701

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 4,912,888 915,138 - 5,828,026
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 5,776,226 - - 5,776,226
Provisions 43,276 - - 43,276
Employee benefit obligation 37,067,065 - - 37,067,065

47,799,455 915,138 - 48,714,593

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 149,836,320 - - 149,836,320

Total Liabilities 197,635,775 915,138 - 198,550,913

Net Assets
Accumulated surplus 800,531,384 (414,596) - 800,116,788
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33. Prior period errors (continued)

33.1 Property, plant and equipment

Balance previously reported 147,967,023
* Landfill 551,556
** Carpets - Cost (181,456)
** Carpets - Accumulated depreciation 117,348
** Carpets - Depreciation 11,003
*** Ethernet devices - Depreciation 2,091

148,467,565

* The costs incurred to develop and construct the regional landfill site after receiving the approval for the licence to operate
the regional landfill site on 26 November 2019 were incorrectly expensed as contracted services and should have been
recognised as capital expense. The costs incurred for the feasibility study of the regional landfill site, meet the definition of a
capital expense. The error impacted the opening balance of cost of R551 556 and the opening balance of accumulated
surplus for the 2021/2022 financial year of R551 556. 

** The costs incurred for the installation of carpets were incorrectly accounted for as capital expenditure. The installation of
carpets meets the definition of operational expenditure. The error impacted the opening balance of cost of R181 456, the
opening balance of accumulated depreciation of R117 348 and the opening balance of accumulated surplus for the
2021/2022 financial year of R53 106. The error also impacted the depreciation of R11 003 and accumulated depreciation of
R11 003 for the 2021/2022 financial year. 

*** The depreciation on the ethernet devices was incorrectly accounted for as the ethernet devices were not installed in the
2021/2022 financial year. The error impacted the depreciation of R2 091 and accumulated depreciation of R2 091 for the
2021/2022 financial year. 

33.2 Payables from exchange transactions

Balance previously reported 4,912,888
* External computer services 915,138

5,828,026

* The invoice related to the Microsoft licence for the 2021/2022 financial year was received in the 2022/2023 financial year. 

33.3 Accumulated surplus

Balance previously reported 800,531,384
* External computer services (915,137)
** Landfill 551,556
*** Carpets - Cost (181,456)
*** Carpets - Accumulated Depreciation 117,348
*** Carpets - Depreciation 11,002
**** Ethernet devices - Depreciation 2,091

800,116,788

* The invoice related to the Microsoft licence for the 2021/2022 financial year was received in the 2022/2023 financial year. 

** The costs incurred to develop and construct the regional landfill site after receiving the approval for the licence to operate
the regional landfill site on 26 November 2019 were incorrectly expensed as contracted services and should have been
recognised as capital expense. The costs incurred for the feasibility study of the regional landfill site, meet the definition of a
capital expense. The error impacted the opening balance of cost of R551 556 and the opening balance of accumulated
surplus for the 2021/2022 financial year of R551 556. 
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33. Prior period errors (continued)

*** The costs incurred for the installation of carpets were incorrectly accounted for as capital expenditure. The installation of
carpets meets the definition of operational expenditure. The error impacted the opening balance of cost of R181 456, the
opening balance of accumulated depreciation of R117 348 and the opening balance of accumulated surplus for 2021/2022
financial year of R53 106. The error also impacted the depreciation of R11 003 and accumulated depreciation of R11 003 for
2021/2022 financial year.

**** The depreciation on the ethernet devices was incorrectly accounted for as the ethernet devices were not installed in the
2021/2022 financial year. The error impacted the depreciation of R2 091 and accumulated depreciation of R2 091 for the
2021/2022 financial year.

Statement of Financial Performance
Audited Prior year

error
Reclassification Restated

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 182,762 - - 182,762
Rental of facilities and equipment 229,048 - - 229,048
Roads services 105,635,889 - - 105,635,889
Other income 1,311,127 - - 1,311,127
Interest received - investment 40,295,365 - - 40,295,365

Total revenue from exchange transactions 147,654,191 - - 147,654,191

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 253,274,643 - - 253,274,643
Public contributions and donations 938,667 - - 938,667

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 254,213,310 - - 254,213,310

Total revenue 401,867,501 - - 401,867,501

Expenditure
Employee-related costs (206,152,202) - - (206,152,202)
Remuneration of Councillors (12,744,505) - - (12,744,505)
Finance cost (13,896,000) - - (13,896,000)
Depreciation and amortisation (9,801,055) 13,094 - (9,787,961)
Lease rentals on operating lease (298,157) - - (298,157)
Debt impairment (113,215) - - (113,215)
Contracted services (33,225,096) - - (33,225,096)
Transfers and subsidies (16,988,386) - - (16,988,386)
General expenses (72,850,740) (915,138) - (73,765,878)

Total expenditure (366,069,356) (902,044) - (366,971,400)

Operating surplus 35,798,145 (902,044) - 34,896,101
Loss on disposal of assets (132,468) - - (132,468)
Inventories losses/ write-downs (49,320) - - (49,320)

(181,788) - - (181,788)

Surplus for the year 35,616,357 (902,044) - 34,714,313
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33. Prior period errors (continued)

33.4 Depreciation and amortisation

Balance previously reported (9,801,055)
* Carpets 11,003
** Ethernet devices 2,091

(9,787,961)

* The costs incurred for the installation of carpets were incorrectly accounted for as capital expenditure. The installation of
carpets meets the definition of operational expenditure. The error impacted the opening balance of cost of R181 456, the
opening balance of accumulated depreciation of R117 348 and the opening balance of accumulated surplus for the
2021/2022 financial year of R53 106. The error impacted the depreciation of R11 003 and accumulated depreciation of
R11 003 for the 2021/2022 financial year. 

** The depreciation on the ethernet devices was incorrectly accounted for as the ethernet devices were not installed in the
2021/2022 financial year. The error impacted the depreciation of R2 091 and accumulated depreciation of R2 091 for the
2021/2022 financial year.

33.5 General Expenses

Balance previously reported (72,850,740)
* External computer services (915,138)

(73,765,878)

* The invoice related to the Microsoft licence for the 2021/2022 financial year was received in the 2022/2023 financial year.

34. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 50,567,090 34,714,313
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,267,126 9,787,961
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities 1,571,805 132,468
Finance costs 13,454,000 13,896,000
Public contributions and donations - (929,080)
Debt impairment 102,220 113,215
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 3,329,555 9,192,183
Inventory write-off 158,000 49,320
Changes in working capital:
Other receivables from exchange transactions (16,935,322) (25,513,957)
Trade receivables from exchange transactions (126,543) (52,229)
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 37,549 (38,572)
Movement in provisions 13,724 36,836
Payables from exchange transactions 672,736 1,416,545
VAT (238,444) (739,757)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (3,863,924) 440,905
Inventories (782,916) 733,360
Employee benefit obligation (20,812,864) (16,516,547)
Long-term receivable 7,358,864 2,620,547

43,772,656 29,343,511
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35. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The accounting policy for financial instruments was applied to the following Statement of Financial Position items:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 24,323 -
Other receivables from exchange transactions 61,239,239 44,512,961
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 84,892 122,441
Cash and cash equivalents 643,541,787 790,328,779
Investments 178,000,000 -

882,890,241 834,964,181

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Payables from exchange transactions 14,584,815 5,828,026

Refer to notes 3, 4, 5 ,8, 11 and 13 for additional disclosures.

Liquidity risk

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

The municipality has limited exposure to liquidity risk and is able to meet its financial obligations as it falls due. The municipality
limits exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring all liabilities are cash backed.

The following are contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

At 30 June 2023 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Payables from exchange transactions 14,584,815 - - -

At 30 June 2022 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Payables from exchange transactions 5,828,026 - - -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents. The municipality invests cash with multiple banks, limiting
exposure to any one counter-party.

The carrying amount of investments,  receivables and cash and cash equivalents represent the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

`

Financial assets at amortised cost 2023 2022
Other receivables from exchange transactions 61,239,239 44,512,961
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 24,323 -
Cash and cash equivalents 643,541,787 790,328,779
Receivables from non- exchange transactions 84,892 122,441
Investments 178,000,000 -

Fair values

Irrespective of the longer maturity for the investments held by the municipality, the fair value of these financial instruments are
substantially identical to the values reflected in the Statement of Financial Position.

There were no changes in the municipality's approach to financial risk management from the prior year. 
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35. Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The municipality's exposure to interest rate risk and effective interest rate on financial instruments at balance sheet date are
as follows:

a) Investments and Cash and cash equivalents
The average interest rate on the short term investments is 7.45% (2022: 5.15%) whereas the average interest rate on the long
term investments is 12.09% (2022:nil%). The municipality invests with multiple banks with varying interest rates linked to the
prime rate.  

b) External loans
The municipality had no external loans and borrowings as at 30 June 2023 (2022: Rnil).

Market risk

It is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates that will affect the
municipality's projected income. The municipality does not hold any assets that are impacted by changes in the market.

Foreign currency risk is deemed to be minimal as very few foreign currency transactions are conducted.

There were no changes in the municipality's approach to financial risk management from the prior year.

36. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that as at 30 June 2023, the municipality had an accumulated surplus of R850 683 877
(2022: R800 116 788).  

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

With the abolishment of the Regional Services Council Levies on 30 June 2006, the CWDM is dependent on Government
Grants, including the Equitable Share, for approximately 59% of the municipality's revenue.  In addition, funds received for
Roads services account for a further 27%.

37. Unauthorised expenditure

No unauthorised expenditure was incurred and/or identified for the current and previous financial years.

38. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported - -
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified - current 400 -
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified - prior period - -
Less: Amount recovered - current (400) -
Less: Amount recovered - prior period - -
Less: Amount written off - current - -
Less: Amount written off - prior period - -

Closing balance - -

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Misuse, by a municipal official, of a fuel card intended for official vehicles of the municipality. 400 -

The expenditure incurred has been recovered from the relevant official and the investigation and related consequence
management processes have been completed.
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39. Irregular expenditure

No irregular expenditure was incurred and/or identified for the current and previous financial year.

40. Contingencies

40.1 Contingent liabilities

(i) 2023: The status of the delictual claim for damages in the amount of R451 000 against Cape Winelands District
Municipality and the Minister of Transport and Public Works by a Mr P Afrika allegedly arising from an accident in July 2008.
At pre-trial conference, it was decided that the matter is to be transferred from the High Court to the Magistrate’s Court. This
has the effect that the potential liability of the municipality is reduced to approximately R100 000. The said process is
currently pending. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the financial effect, measured by using the principles set
out for provisions.

(2022: The status of the delictual claim for damages in the amount of R451 000 against Cape Winelands District Municipality
and the Minister of Transport and Public Works by a Mr P Afrika allegedly arising from an accident in July 2008.  At pre-trial
conference, it was decided that the matter is to be transferred from the High Court to the Magistrate’s Court. This has the
effect that the potential liability of the municipality is reduced to approximately R100 000. The said process is currently
pending. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect, measured by using the
principles set out for provisions.)

(ii)  2023:  The status of the claim, where the plaintiff included the Cape Winelands District Municipality is that the plaintiff
added another plaintiff in their legal suit. The attorneys of the plaintiff proceeded to reach a settlement with a party in the
lawsuit. The claim against the municipality was closed after the settlement was reached.

(2022:  The status of the claim, where the plaintiff included the Cape Winelands District Municipality as the second of three
defendants in this matter, is currently awaiting a trial date.  The insurance brokers of the municipality who are currently
dealing with the matter: Mariska Cordy/Cape Winelands District Municipality/Stellenbosch Municipality state that the pre-trial
proceeded and the matter was adjourned until 15 October 2018 to enable the parties to comply with the timetable set out in
the agreed pre-trial minutes. The settlement per the summons issued amounts to R6 142 100.  The settlement amount is to
be paid by the insurance company on behalf of the municipality and it would be expected of the municipality to only pay the
excess amount which has not been determined as yet.  It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full extent of the
financial effect, measured by using the principles set out for provisions.)

(iii) 2023: The status of the claim where the district municipality was jointly added as a third party, remains the same as
reported on in the previous year.  Specifically that on 22 January 2018 a combined summons was issued by the High Court
of South Africa under Case No 728/18 in terms of which the trustees of the Fransie Conrade Trust (the plaintiffs) instituted
action against the trustees of the Thera Trust (the defendant) for the damages suffered in the amount of R2 371 525,07 as a
result of a fire that started on the property of Thera Trust and which allegedly spread to the property of the Fransie Conradie
Trust. On 18 May 2018 a third party notice was served on the district municipality, in terms of which the Cape Winelands
District Municipality was joint as a third party by the defendants (Thera Trust) who avers that the district municipality is a joint
wrongdoer with Thera Trust (the defendant) in that the district municipality was negligent and that such negligence caused or
contributed to the damages suffered by the plaintiff. The matter was reported to the district municipality’s insurers and a fire
incident report was accordingly provided, where after a notice of intention to defend was entered. The Cape Winelands
District Municipality is currently awaiting the matter to be set down for pre-trial hearing and thereafter trial. In view of the
aforementioned, it is clear that it is not possible at this stage to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect,
measured by using the principles set out for provisions.
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40. Contingencies (continued)

(2022: The status of the claim where the district municipality was jointly added as a third party, remains the same as reported
on in the previous year.  Specifically that on 22 January 2018, a combined summons was issued by the High Court of South
Africa under Case No 728/18 in terms of which the trustees of the Fransie Conrade Trust (the plaintiffs) instituted action
against the trustees of the Thera Trust (the defendants) for the damages suffered in the amount of R2 371 525,07 as a result
of a fire that started on the property of Thera Trust and which allegedly spread to the property of the Fransie Conradie Trust.
On 18 May 2018, a third party notice was served on the district municipality, in terms of which the Cape Winelands District
Municipality was joint as a third party by the defendants (Thera Trust) who avers that the district municipality is a joint
wrongdoer with Thera Trust (the defendant) in that the district municipality was negligent and that such negligence caused or
contributed to the damages suffered by the plaintiff. The matter was reported to the district municipality’s insurers and a fire
incident report was accordingly provided, where after a notice of intention to defend was entered. The Cape Winelands
District Municipality is currently awaiting the matter to be set down for pre-trial hearing and thereafter trial. In view of the
aforementioned, it is clear that it is not possible at this stage to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect,
measured by using the principles set out for provisions.)

(iv) 2023:  The status of the claim is the same as reported in the previous year. On 1 February 2021, a summons was issued
by the High Court of South Africa, Western Cape Division, under Case Number 2023/21 in terms of which the plaintiffs
instituted action against the Cape Winelands District Municipality, as the sixth defendant,  for damages suffered to the
amount of R26 767 475. The plaintiffs claim that a veld of forest fire that happened on or about 5 February 2018 and spread
onto the plaintiffs properties from a certain property situated adjacent to the plaintiffs properties. The properties are located
within the jurisdiction of the Cape Winelands District Municipality. The plaintiffs claim that the district municipality owed a
general duty of care to the public to prevent the spread of a veldfire and resultant damages by acting reasonably and
practically in the circumstances and furthermore to comply with the standard operating procedures in respect of veldfires
occurring on days marked with a "Red" of "High - Extreme" Fire Danger Index rating.  The district municipality entered a
Notice of Intention to Defend.  The relief the plaintiffs are seeking is as follows: (a) that the Defendants be held liable for the
damages to the amount of R20 667 475, (b) that the Defendants be held liable for the damages to the amount R6 100 000,
(c) interest on the aforesaid amounts at the prescribed rate a tempore morae from date of demand alternatively date of
summons until date of payment in full, (d) costs of suit, (e) further and/or alternative relief. It is not yet practicable to provide
an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect, measured by using the principles set out for provisions.

(2022:  The status is the same as reported in the previous year. On 1 February 2021, a summons was issued by the High
Court of South Africa, Western Cape Division, under Case Number 2023/21 in terms of which the plaintiffs instituted action
against the Cape Winelands District Municipality, as the sixth defendant,  for damages suffered to the amount of R26 767
475. The plaintiffs claim that a veld of forest fire that happened on or about 5 February 2018 and spread onto the plaintiffs
properties from a certain property situated adjacent to the plaintiffs properties. The properties are located within the
jurisdiction of the Cape Winelands District Municipality. The plaintiffs claim that the district municipality owed a general duty
of care to the public to prevent the spread of a veldfire and resultant damages by acting reasonably and practically in the
circumstances and furthermore to comply with the standard operating procedures in respect of veldfires occurring on days
marked with a "Red" of "High - Extreme" Fire Danger Index rating.  The district municipality entered a notice of intention to
defend.  The relief the plaintiffs are seeking is as follows: (a) that the defendants be held liable for the damages to the
amount of R20 667 475, (b) that the defendants be held liable for the damages to the amount R6 100 000, (c) interest on the
aforesaid amounts at the prescribed rate a tempore morae from date of demand alternatively date of summons until date of
payment in full, (d) costs of suit, (e) further and/or alternative relief. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full
extent ofthe  financial effect, measured by using the principles set out for provisions.)

(v) 2023:  The Cape Winelands District Municipality's insurance company received a letter of demand on 12 May 2022 from
Santam Insurance.  On  25 February 2021, an incident occurred between the plaintiff's vehicle and a vehicle of the Cape
Winelands District Municipality. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect,
measured by using the principles set out for provisions.

(vi) 2023: A combined summons was issued on 13 April 2022  by the Magistrates Court for the District of Worcester under
Case No 919/2022 in terms of which N Adams instituted action against the Cape Winelands District Municipality.  On  or
around 8 August 2021, a collision occurred between the plaintiff's vehicle and a pothole. Damages suffered were to the
amount of R54 073.95 plus legal fees. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect,
measured by using the principles set out for provisions.
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40. Contingencies (continued)

(vii) 2023:  On 10 May 2023, the Cape Winelands District Municipality received a notice in terms of section 3 of the Institution
of Legal Proceedings against Organs of State, (Act No. 40 of 2002) from the attorneys of B Shikwambana. The notice is for
damages suffered to the amount of R26 238.33 in a motor vehicle accident on 14 June 2022.  The matter was reported to
the district municipality's insurers. It is not yet practicable to provide an estimate of the full extent of the financial effect,
measured by using the principles set out for provisions.

viii) 2023: The municipality is still waiting on the outcome of seven public liability claims, 38 third party accident claims  that
were handed over to the state attorneys and/ or the municipality's insurance brokers. It is not practicable to provide an
estimate of the financial effect, measured by using the principles set out for provisions; hence the disclosure of the value is
not possible.

(2022: The municipality is still waiting on the outcome of four public liability claims, 42 third party accident claims that were
handed over to the state attorneys and/ or the municipality's insurance brokers. It is not practicable to provide an estimate of
the financial effect, measured by using the principles set out for provisions; hence the disclosure of the value is not possible.)

ix) 2023: The municipality responded to the notice received from Blignaut Neerahoo Attorneys regarding a contractual
dispute for a claim of R402 285. The municipality has not received further correspondence from the plaintiff.  The legal
proceedings related to the matter have not yet commenced and there is no certainty that the municipality will be liable for the
amount claimed

(2022: The municipality received a notice from Blignaut Neerahoo Attorneys regarding a contractual dispute for a claim of
R402 285. The legal proceedings related to the matter have not yet commenced and there is no certainty that the
municipality will be liable for the amount claimed.)

x) 2023: The municipality responded to the notice received from Marlo Laubscher Attorneys regarding an arrears municipal
account of R33 732.  The municipality has not received further correspondence from the plaintiff. The municipality currently
is still awaiting the outcome of the enquiries it has made regarding the responsibility for the settlement of this arrears account
as there are community members residing on the property who should be responsible for the settlement of the municipal
accounts.

(2022: On 22 June 2022, the municipality received a notice from Marlo Laubscher Attorneys regarding an arrears municipal
account of R33 732. The municipality currently is still awaiting the outcome of the enquiries it has made regarding the
responsibility for the settlement of this arrears account as there are community members residing on the property who
should be responsible for the settlement of the municipal accounts.)

40.2 Contingent assets

2023: The municipality is still awaiting the outcome of one insurance claim with an estimated amount of R4 719 that was not
concluded as at 30 June 2023. The claim is specific to the 2022/2023 financial year.
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41. Related parties

The salaries and remuneration of key management and Councillors are disclosed in notes  24 &  25 to the Annual Financial
Statements.

42. Change in estimate

Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles

42.1 Review of RUL of Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 

The following changes were made in accounting estimates during the year. The new depreciation/ amortisation for the year
has been calculated and stated as well as the amount that the depreciation/ amortisation would have been had an estimate
change not been effected. 

Asset Type Description Total of
depreciation/
amortisation
on assets for
2022/23 had
no change

been
effected:

Total new
depreciation/
amortisation
for 2022/23

after the
change was

effected:

2022/2023:
Difference:
Increase in

depreciation/
amortisation

Total of
depreciation/
amortisation
on assets for
future years

had no
change been

effected:

Total new
depreciation/
amortisation

for future
years after
the change

was
effected:

Future years:
Difference:
Decrease in

depreciation/
amortisation

Intangibles 52,616 75,159 22,543 174,083 151,539 (22,543)

43. B-BBEE Performance

2022/2023

Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section B-BBEE Compliance
Performance Information.

The municipality did not include the compliance results with B-BBEE in the 2021/2022 Annual report due to delays as a result of
disputes regarding outcomes. The municipality were regarded to be non-compliant for the 2021/2022 Financial year.

2021/2022

Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section B-BBEE Compliance
Performance Information.

The municipality included the relevant disclosure on B-BBEE performance in a note to the 2020/2021 financial statements.
However, the municipality omitted to report its compliance results with B-BBEE in the 2020/2021 Annual Report. The
municipality is a Level Seven Contributor. 

44. Events after the reporting date

a) The additional amount included in note 16 to provisions relating to the adjusting event amounted to R57 000.

b) Appropriation has been made in the 2023/2024 Annual Budget for the retrospective implementation from 1 July 2022 of the
upper limits of salaries, allowances and benefits of a Grade 5 municipal council as set out in the Notice No. 3807 published in
Government Gazette No. 49142 of 18 August 2023.The financial impact of this retrospective implementation is R527 463 and is
subject concurrence by the MEC for local government in the province. 

45. Reconciliation between budget and annual financial statements

45.1 Statement of financial performance

Service charges (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Service charges 138,396 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 138,396 -
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45. Reconciliation between budget and annual financial statements (continued)

Service charges were remapped from other revenue to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Agency services (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 117,789,784 -
Roads capital 816,856 -
Management fees 10,488,175 -
Management fees (12,061,401) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 117,033,414 -

The capital financing for roads services was remapped from transfers and subsidies to roads services. Management fees
were remapped to roads services to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

To align to the accounting treatment for the funding received from Department of Transport and Public Works (Department of
Infrastructure) with regard to roads maintenance, the prior year naming convention for this funding source was changed from
agency services to roads services. Both the prior year and current year naming convention is therefore consistent. This
allows the users of the financial statements to have a clear understanding of the substance to this funding source.

Licences and permits (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 693,504 -
Licences and permits (693,504) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance - -

Licences and permits were remapped to other income to adhere to the requirements of GRAP. 

Transfers and subsidies (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 256,947,947 -
Sandhills toilet hire 509,352 -
Public contributions and donations (251,005) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 257,206,294 -

Sandhills toilet hire was remapped from other revenue to transfers and subsidies to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.
Public contributions and donations were remapped to adhere to the requirements of GRAP. 

Public contributions and donations (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Public contributions and donations 251,005 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 251,005 -

Public contributions and donations were remapped from transfers and subsidies to adhere to the requirements of GRAP. 

Other revenue (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 11,770,407 -
Management fees: Roads services (10,488,175) -
Service charges (138,396) -
Management fees: RRAMS (71,925) -
Sandhills toilet hire (509,352) -
Licences and permits 693,504 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 1,256,063 -

Other revenue was remapped to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Employee-related costs (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 221,173,724 -
Workmen's compensation fund 1,100,457 -
Interest cost (13,454,000) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 208,820,181 -
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45. Reconciliation between budget and annual financial statements (continued)

Workmen's compensation fund was remapped from other expenditure to employee-related cost to adhere to the
requirements of GRAP. Interest cost on post-retirement benefits and long-service awards was remapped to finance costs to
adhere to the requirements of GRAP. 

Finance cost  (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Interest cost 13,454,000 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 13,454,000 -

Interest cost on post-retirement benefits and long-service awards was remapped from employee-related costs to finance
costs to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Lease rentals on operating lease (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Lease rentals on operating lease   298,157 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 298,157 -

Lease rentals on operating lease were remapped from other expenditure to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Inventory consumed (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 36,914,883 -
General expenses (36,914,883) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance - -

Inventory consumed was remapped to general expenses to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Other expenditure (Actual amount as per statement of comparison)    64,705,133 -
Workmen's compensation fund (1,100,457) -
Lease rental on operating leases (298,157) -
Inventory consumed 36,914,883 -
Management fees (12,061,401) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 88,160,001 -

Workmen's  compensation fund was remapped from other expenditure to employee-related cost to adhere to the
requirements of GRAP. Lease rentals on operating lease were remapped from other expenditure to adhere to the
requirements of GRAP.  Inventory consumed was remapped to general expenditure to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.
Management fees were remapped from other expenditure to roads services.

Losses (Actual amount as per statement of comparison)    1,729,805 -
Inventories losses (158,000) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 1,571,805 -

Inventories losses were remapped from other expenditure to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Inventories losses (Actual amount as per statement of comparison)    - -
Inventories losses 158,000 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 158,000 -

Inventories losses were remapped from losses to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Transfers and subsidies: Capital monetary (Actual amount as per statement of
comparison)    

816,856 -

Roads capital (816,856) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance - -

The capital financing for roads was remapped from transfers and subsidies to roads services.
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45. Reconciliation between budget and annual financial statements (continued)

Contracted services (Actual amount as per statement of comparison)    40,641,300 -
Management fee: Rural roads asset management (71,925) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial performance 40,569,375 -

Management fee for the rural roads asset management was remapped from other income to adhere to the requirements of
GRAP.

45.2 Statement of financial position

Cash and cash equivalents (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Cash on hand 4,041,786 -
Call investment deposits 639,500,000 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 643,541,786 -

Cash on hand and call investment deposits were remapped to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Consumer debtors (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 31,197,253 -
Service charges (81,031) -
Prepayments and advances 2,490,217 -
Insurance claims 29,807 -
Output VAT:  Provision for doubtful debt impairment (649) -
Deposits 4,740 -
Accrued interest 23,511,314 -
Third party refund 248,445 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 57,400,096 -

Consumer debtors were remapped to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

VAT receivable (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
VAT receivable   2,693,524 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 2,693,524 -

VAT receivable was remapped from other debtors and trade and other payables to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions (Actual amount as per statement of
comparison)

- -

Accrued income 84,892 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 84,892 -

Accrued income was remapped from other debtors to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions: Non-current (Actual amount as per
statement of comparison)

- -

Accrued Income 6,349,282 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 6,349,282 -

Accrued income was remapped from other debtors to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.
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45. Reconciliation between budget and annual financial statements (continued)
Consumer deposits (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 22,500 -
Consumer deposits (22,500) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position - -

Consumer deposits were remapped to payables from exchange transactions to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Trade and other payables (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 18,537,018 -
Unspent conditional grants (1,912,300) -
Output VAT 95,933 -
Employee benefits (2,158,334) -
Consumer deposits 22,500 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 14,584,817 -

Trade and other payables were remapped to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Provisions (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 36,146,612 -
Employee benefits (36,089,612) -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 57,000 -

Provisions were remapped to employee benefit obligation to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Accumulated surplus (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) 784,296,059 -
Reserves 66,387,818 -

Actual amount as per statement of financial position 850,683,877 -

Reserves were remapped to accumulated surplus to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

45.3 Cashflow statement

Employee-cost (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Employee cost 218,964,508 -

Amount as per cash flow statement 218,964,508 -

Employee cost was remapped from suppliers and employees to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Remuneration of Councillors (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) - -
Remuneration of Councillors 13,606,889 -

Amount as per cash flow statement 13,606,889 -

Remuneration of Councillors was remapped from suppliers and employees to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.

Transfers and grants (Actual amount as per statement of comparison) (12,400,174) -
Transfers and grants    12,400,174 -

Amount as per cash flow statement - -

Transfers and grants were remapped to suppliers to adhere to the requirements of GRAP.
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46. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure

According to the Accounting Policy, explanations should be provided in cases where the difference between the Adjustments
Budget and the Actual Expenditure exceeds 10%.

Current assets

Consumer debtors

Variance as a result of the future medical aid liability, ex-gratia pension and long service bonus that is only calculated at year
end.

Other debtors

Variance as a result of higher interest rates than anticipated during the budget preparation process.

Inventory

The issuing of inventory was less than anticipated during the budget preparation process.

Current portion of long- term receivable

The calculation that is made for the future medical aid liability, ex-gratia pension and long service bonus is calculated by
actuaries and the budget estimation is brought in line therewith. However, the revised estimation is only done at year end.

Cash

Variance as a result of the budget schedules mapping the call account as part of investments.

Call investment deposits

During the latter part of the financial year, transfers were made from current investments to non-current investments.

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Investments

During the latter part of the financial year, transfers were made from current investments to non-current investments.

Intangible assets

Capital items classified as property, plant and equipment during the budget preparation process were reclassified to
intangible assets during the preparation of the annual financial statements.

Other non-current assets

The calculation that is made for the future medical aid liability, ex-gratia pension and long-service bonus is calculated by
actuaries and the budget estimation is brought in line therewith. However, the revised estimation is only done at year end.
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46. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure (continued)

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Consumer deposits

During the budget preparation process there was no lease agreement in place, hence no provision was made for consumer
deposits.

Trade and other payables

The delivery of specialised fire fighting vehicles at year end gave rise to an increase in creditor accruals.

Provisions

The calculation that is made for the future medical aid liability, ex-gratia pension and long service bonus is calculated by
actuaries and the budget estimation is brought in line therewith. However, the revised estimation is only done at year end.

Non-current liabilities

Provisions

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Net assets 

Reserves

The transfer to the capital replacement reserves is only done at year end and therefore cannot be accurately budget for.

46.2 Statement of financial performance

Rental of facilities and equipment

Variance as result of the lease agreement only being finalised in April 2023.

Agency services

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Licences and permits

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Other revenue

Other revenue consists of different income sources which is subject to change due to external factors.

Interest received - investment

Variance as a result of higher interest rates than anticipated during the budget process.

Transfer and subsidies

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.
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46. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure (continued)

Expenditure

Employee-related costs

Variance as a result of vacant post not being filled due to the implementation of the new staff regulations.

Remuneration of Councillors

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Inventory consumed

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Depreciation and amortisation

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required. 

Debt impairment

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Contracted services

Not all projects were rolled out as planned and have been deferred to the next financial year.

Transfers and subsidies

The deregistration of a few of the non-profit organisations gave effect to the non-payment of funds to beneficiaries.

Other expenditure

Variance as a result of tender prices quoted being less than anticipated.

Losses

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Transfer and subsidies - capital (monetary allocations)

A large portion of the unspent amount relates to the emergency loadshedding relief grant that was allocated to the
municipality during the latter part of the financial year, hence it was impossible to spend the funds by the end of 30 June
2023.

46.3 Cash flow statement

Other revenue

Refer to reason provided above for the statement of financial performance.

Transfers and subsidies - operational

Variance is less than 10%, no reason required.

Transfers and subsidies - capital

The replacement for the Ceres workshop asbestos roof for road services was only partially completed in the 2022/2023
financial year.
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46. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure (continued)

Interest

The accrued interest was incorrectly mapped as a cash flow item during the budget preparation process.

Suppliers and employees

Refer to reason provided above for the statement of financial performance.

Transfers and grants

Refer to reason provided above for the statement of financial performance.

Capital assets

The delivery of specialised firefighting vehicles occurred at year-end and were recognised as accruals.

Investments

During the latter part of the financial year, transfers were made from current investments to non-current investments.

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

At the time the final budget was approved is not known which assets will be disposed during the financial year.

Consumer deposits

During the budget preparation process there was no lease agreement in place, hence no provision was made for consumer
deposits.

47. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

47.1) Contributions to organised local government

Current year subscription / fee 2,290,110 2,321,684
Amount paid - current year (2,175,605) (2,205,600)
Discount received (5%) (114,505) (116,084)

- -

47.2) Audit fees

Current year audit fee-AGSA 3,206,646 2,573,272
Current year audit fee-Audit Committee 121,833 102,576
Amount paid (3,316,503) (2,670,178)

11,976 5,670

47.3) PAYE, UIF and SDL

Current year payroll deductions 40,929,436 (39,178,059)
Amount paid - current year (40,929,436) 39,178,059

- -

47.4) Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year payroll deductions (70,579,325) (67,631,029)
Amount paid - current year 70,579,325 67,631,029

- -
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47. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)

47.5) VAT

VAT receivable 5,710,257 2,743,707
VAT payable (3,016,733) (288,627)

2,693,524 2,455,080

All VAT returns were submitted by the due date throughout the year.

47.6) Councillors' arrear accounts

During the financial year under review no Councillor was in arrears with the settlement of rates or services.

However, Councillor arrear accounts are in respect of Councillors Gwada, Ross, Nyamana and Heradien for the
overpayment of remuneration due to the upward change in the grading of Witzenberg, Drakenstein and Langeberg
Municipalities and the termination of Cllr Mcako of Stellenbosch Municipality.

The arrear accounts of Councillors Magqazana and Qoba relate to overpayments due to calculation errors with the final
payments at the termination/resignation of their positions held as Councillors of the CWDM.

30 June 2023 Outstanding
less than 90

days 

Outstanding
more than 90

days 

Total 

Cllr. Z.L Gwada - 2,463 2,463
Cllr. S. Ross - 4,387 4,387
Cllr. S.W. Nyamana - 769 769
Cllr. P Heradien (resigned 10/12/2014) - 10,315 10,315
Cllr. C. Mcako (resigned 29/06/2016) - 1,138 1,138
Cllr. S.S. Magqazana - 742 742
Cllr. L.N. Qoba - 107 107

- 19,921 19,921

In terms of section 167(2) of the MFMA, the municipality must and has the right to, recover remuneration paid otherwise than
in accordance with the framework of the Remuneration of Public Office-Bearers Act, 1998 from political office-bearers and
may not write off any expenditure incurred by the municipality in paying or giving such remuneration.

(i) In respect of upward grading of the local municipalities within the district:

In view of the above-mentioned determination, the municipality recovered all overpayments as a result of the upward grading
or changes in positions held on council committees of its local municipalities, except for the above mentioned Councillors,
where payment arrangements have been made or legal action instituted.

Legal action against Councillors Heradien, Ross, Gwada (deceased) and Nyamana is currently in process. Attempts by the
municipality's debt collectors to institute a claim against the deceased estate of Cllr Gwada are ongoing, though to date this
has been unsuccessful. Challenges with the appointment of debt collectors delayed the said legal process, however a
contract was secured towards the end of the financial year.  

(ii) In respect of resignations:

Attempts by the municipality's debt collectors to institute a claim against the deceased estate of Cllr Mcako are still ongoing,
though to date this has been unsuccessful. Challenges with the appointment of debt collectors delayed the said legal
process; however a contract was secured towards the end of the financial year. Councillors Magqazana and Qoba will be
handed over for the institution of legal action.
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47. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)
30 June 2022 Outstanding

less than 90
days 

Outstanding
more than 90

days 

Total 

Cllr. Z.L Gwada - 2,463 2,463
Cllr. S. Ross - 4,387 4,387
Cllr. S.W. Nyamana - 769 769
Cllr. P Heradien (resigned 10/12/2014) - 10,315 10,315
Cllr. C. Mcako (resigned 29/06/2016) - 1,138 1,138
Cllr. N.S. Louw (resigned 25/07/2018) - 689 689
Cllr. S.S. Magqazana - 1,868 1,868
Cllr. L.N. Qoba - 856 856

- 22,485 22,485

In terms of section 167(2) of the MFMA, the municipality must and has the right to, recover remuneration paid otherwise than
in accordance with the framework of the Remuneration of  Public Office-Bearers Act, 1998 from political office-bearers and
may not write off any expenditure incurred by the municipality in paying or giving such remuneration.

(i) In respect of upward grading of the local municipalities within the district:

In view of the above-mentioned determination, the municipality recovered all overpayments as a result of the upward grading
or changes in positions held on council committees of its local municipalities, except for the above mentioned Councillors,
where payment arrangements have been made or legal action instituted.

Legal action against Councillors Heradien, Ross, Gwada (deceased) and Nyamana is currently in progress. Attempts by the
municipality's debt collectors to institute a claim against the deceased estate of Cllr Gwada are still ongoing, though to date
this has been unsuccessful.

(ii) In respect of resignations / terminations:

Cllr Louw has adhered to the payment arrangements made and the relevant arrears were fully recovered after 30 June 2022.
Attempts by the municipality's debt collectors to institute a claim against the deceased estate of Cllr Mcako are ongoing,
though to date this has been unsuccessful. Councillors Magqazana and Qoba will be handed over for legal action to be
instituted, pending the appointment of a new debt collector.

Particulars of non-compliance

No incidents of non-compliance occurred during the current and prior financial year.

Disclosures by municipality on intergovernmental and other allocations

Allocations made to municipalities

Section 123 of the MFMA determines that the municipality must disclose information on any allocations made by the municipality
to another municipality. The following allocations were made to local municipalities within CWDM for  projects as identified by the
respective local municipality in terms of service level agreements:

Breede Valley Municipality 605,000 962,000
Drakenstein Municipality 815,000 6,226,000
Langeberg Municipality 560,000 864,000
Stellenbosch Municipality 615,000 984,000
Witzenberg Municipality 1,560,000 764,000

4,155,000 9,800,000
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48. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The municipality is organised and reports to management on the basis of nine major functional areas. The functional areas
make up segments of the three strategic objectives of the municipality.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances
and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also
considered appropriate for external reporting purposes.

Types of goods and/or services by segment

These reportable segments as well as the goods and/or services for each segment are set out below:

Reportable segment Goods and/or services
Community development and planning services Creating an environment and forging partnerships that

ensure social and economic development of all
communities, including the empowerment of the poor in the
Cape Winelands District

Technical services Promoting sustainable infrastructure services and a
transport system that foster social and economic
opportunities
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48. Segment information (continued)

2023

Community
development
and planning

services

Technical
services

Non-
reportable

Total

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 138,396 - - 138,396
Rental of facilities and equipment - - 91,087 91,087
Roads services - 106,545,239 10,488,175 117,033,414
Other income 693,504 18,347 544,212 1,256,063
Interest revenue - investment - - 62,998,758 62,998,758
Revenue from non- exchange transactions - - - -
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 1,236,500 2,636,995 253,332,799 257,206,294
Public contribution and donations - 251,005 - 251,005

Total segment revenue 2,068,400 109,451,586 327,455,031 438,975,017

Total revenue 438,975,017

Expenditure
Employee-related costs 93,214,527 66,243,477 49,362,173 208,820,177
Remuneration of Councillors - - 13,606,889 13,606,889
Depreciation and amortisation 4,235,267 2,224,490 2,807,369 9,267,126
Lease rentals on operating lease - - 298,157 298,157
Debt impairment - - 102,220 102,220
Finance cost - - 13,454,000 13,454,000
Contracted services 24,010,281 7,571,224 8,987,871 40,569,376
Transfers and subsidies 7,034,107 1,866,067 3,500,001 12,400,175
Loss on disposal of assets 122,571 1,192,697 256,537 1,571,805
Inventories losses / write- downs - - 158,000 158,000
General expenses 10,448,027 50,515,909 27,196,066 88,160,002

Total segment expenditure 139,064,780 129,613,864 119,729,283 388,407,927

Surplus/(deficit) 50,567,090

Assets
Non - current assets 12,232,579 5,268,846 3,090,639 20,592,064
Intangible assets - - 144,000 144,000

Total additions to non- current assets 12,232,579 5,268,846 3,234,639 20,736,064
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48. Segment information (continued)

2022

Community
development
and planning

services

Technical
services

Non-
reportable

Total

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 182,762 - - 182,762
Rental of facilities and equipment - - 229,049 229,049
Roads services - 96,314,491 9,321,397 105,635,888
Other income 739,566 46,707 524,854 1,311,127
Interest received - investment - - 40,295,365 40,295,365
Revenue from non- exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 2,304,762 2,861,268 248,108,613 253,274,643
Public contribution and donations 89,080 9,587 840,000 938,667

Total segment revenue 3,316,170 99,232,053 299,319,278 401,867,501

Total revenue 401,867,501

Expenditure
Employee-related cost 91,325,121 64,088,393 50,738,688 206,152,202
Remuneration of Councillors - - 12,744,505 12,744,505
Depreciation and amortisation 4,650,557 2,115,271 3,022,133 9,787,961
Lease rentals on operating lease - - 298,157 298,157
Debt impairment - - 113,215 113,215
Finance cost - - 13,896,000 13,896,000
Contracted services 20,132,438 5,108,724 7,983,934 33,225,096
Transfers and subsidies 8,199,521 1,288,865 7,500,000 16,988,386
Loss on disposal of assets 52,068 59,114 21,286 132,468
Inventories losses / write- downs - - 49,320 49,320
General expenses 9,891,441 38,797,730 25,076,707 73,765,878

Total segment expenditure 134,251,146 111,458,097 121,443,945 367,153,188

Surplus/(deficit) 34,714,313

Other information
Non- current assets 1,031,286 383,829 1,680,128 3,095,243
Intangible assets - 38,158 - 38,158

Total additions to non- current assets 1,031,286 421,987 1,680,128 3,133,401

Measurement of segment surplus or deficit

Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

Information about geographical areas

Although the municipality operates in a number of geographical areas, it is irrelevant for users of the financial statements as
the municipality's geographical areas of operation can be seen as a single geographical area when deciding how to allocate
resources.
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49. Capital commitments

Approved and contracted for
Property, plant and equipment - Buildings 233,766 -
Property, plant and equipment - Infrastructure 281,417 171,695
Property, plant and equipment - Office equipment - 47,265

515,183 218,960

The amount of R233 766 relates to Tender T2022/101 for the removal of existing thatch and re-thatching of roof.

The amount of R 281 417 relates to Tender T2019/132 (2023:R 110 354; 2022: R171 695) and Tender T2021/057 
(2023: R 171 063) respectively for the development of a regional landfill site.

The amount of R47 265 relates to Quotation 2020/073 for the procurement and installation of remote ethernet devices.
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Report to be attached once finalised and as received from Oversight Committee/MPAC. 
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Accessibility indicators Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services or 
outputs. 

Accountability 
documents 

Documents used by executive authorities to give ‘full and regular’ reports 
on the matters under their control to parliament and provincial 
legislatures as prescribed by the Constitution. This includes plans, 
budgets, in-year and annual reports. 

Activities The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the 
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe 
‘what we do’. 

Adequacy indicators The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand. 

Annual report A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the regulations 
set out in section 121 of the MFMA. Such report must include annual 
financial statements as submitted to and approved by the Auditor-
General. 

Approved budget An approved budget means an annual budget that has been approved by 
Council and includes such annual budget as revised by an adjustment 
budget in terms of section 28 of the MFMA. 

Baseline Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when 
setting performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of 
performance recorded in a year prior to the planning period. 

Basic municipal service A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and 
reasonable quality of life to citizens within that particular area. If not 
provided, it may endanger public health and safety or the environment. 

Budget year The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved – means 
a year ending on 30 June. 

Cost indicators The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of 
outputs.  

Distribution indicators The distribution of capacity to deliver services. 

Financial statements Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of financial 
performance, cash-flow statement, notes to these statements and any 
other statements that may be prescribed. 

General key performance 
indicators 

After consultation with MECs for local government, the minister may 
prescribe general key performance indicators that are appropriate and 
applicable to local government generally. 

Impact The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty and 
creating jobs. 

Inputs All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of outputs. 
Inputs are ‘what we use to do the work’. They include finances, 
personnel, equipment and buildings. 

Integrated Development 
Plan (IDP) 

Sets out municipal goals and development plans. 

National key performance 
areas 

Service delivery and infrastructure; 
Economic development; 
Municipal transformation and institutional development; 
Financial viability and management; and 
Good governance and community participation. 

Outcomes The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the 
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate 

GLOSSARY 
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clearly to an institution’s strategic goals and objectives set out in its 
plans. Outcomes are ‘what we wish to achieve’. 

Outputs The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. Outputs 
may be defined as ‘what we produce or deliver’. An output is a concrete 
achievement (i.e., a product such as a passport, an action such as a 
presentation or immunisation, or a service such as processing an 
application) that contributes to the achievement of a key result area. 

Performance indicator Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to 
input, activities, output, outcomes and impacts. An indicator is a type of 
information used to gauge the extent to which an output has been 
achieved (policy developed, presentation delivered, service rendered). 

Performance information Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services and 
activities. Can also be used interchangeably with performance measure. 

Performance standards The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of 
performance that is generally accepted. Standards are informed by 
legislative requirements and service level agreements. Performance 
standards are mutually agreed criteria to describe how well work must be 
done in terms of quantity and/or quality and timeliness, to clarify the 
outputs and related activities of a job by describing what the required 
result should be. In the employee performance management and 
development system, performance standards are divided into indicators 
and the time factor. 

Performance targets The level of performance that municipalities and its employees strive to 
achieve. Performance targets relate to current baselines and express a 
specific level of performance that a municipality aims to achieve within a 
given time period. 

Service Delivery and 
Budget Implementation 
Plan 

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the municipality’s 
delivery of services; including projections of the revenue collected and 
operational and capital expenditure by vote for each month. Service 
delivery targets and performance indicators must also be included. 

Vote One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided 
for appropriation of money for the different departments or functional 
areas of the municipality. The vote specifies the total amount that is 
appropriated for the purpose of a specific department or functional area. 
 
Section 1 of the MFMA defines a ‘vote’ as: 
(a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 

divided for the appropriation of money for the different departments 
or functional areas of the municipality; and 

(b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the 
purposes of the department or functional area concerned. 
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v
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p
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b
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SECOND AND/OR THIRD-TIER STRUCTURE AS AT 30 JUNE 2023 

Directorate Position Name 

Office of the Municipal 
Manager 

Director: IDP, Performance and Risk Management BT Daries 

Chief Audit Executive S Green 

Deputy Director: Communication Services EJ Otto 

Deputy Director: Legal Services  SS Sanders 

 

Financial and Strategic 
Support Services 

Director: Budget and Treasury Office MJ Lesch 

Director: Human Resources GCN Julie 

Director: Support Services K Smit 

 

Community Development 
and Planning Services 

Deputy Director: Socio-Economic Development RWB van Wyk 

Deputy Director: Town and Regional Planning QJ Balie 

Chief Fire Officer W Josias 

Head of Municipal Disaster Management Centre SP Minnies 

Deputy Director: Municipal Health Services RJ Humphreys 
 

Technical Services Director: Roads H Maart 

Deputy Director: Project Management C Swart 

Deputy Director: Facilities Management TJ Solomon 

Deputy Director: Information Technology AM Gabier 

Deputy Director: Regulation of Passenger 
Transport Services 

CT Nkasela 

 

  

APPENDIX C – SECOND AND/OR THIRD-TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITYAPPENDIX C – THIRD-TIER 

ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITYAPPENDIX 

C – THIRD-TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITYAPPENDIX C – THIRD-TIER 

ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITYAPPENDIX C – SECOND AND/OR 

THIRD-TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITYAPPENDIX C – THIRD-TIER 
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APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 
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APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
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In terms of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998) as amended: 
 
FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF MUNICIPALITIES (Sections 83-89) 
 
83 General 
 
(1) A municipality has the functions and powers assigned to it in terms of Sections 156 and 229 of the 

Constitution. 
 
(2) The functions and powers referred to in Subsection (1) must be divided in the case of a district 

municipality and the local municipalities within the area of the district municipality, as set out in this 
Chapter. 

 
(3) A district municipality must seek to achieve the integrated, sustainable and equitable social and 

economic development of its area as a whole by – 
(a) ensuring integrated development planning for the district as a whole; 
(b) promoting bulk infrastructural development and services for the district as a whole; 
(c) building the capacity of local municipalities in its area to perform their functions and exercise their 

powers where such capacity is lacking; and 
(d) promoting the equitable distribution of resources between the local municipalities in its area to 

ensure appropriate levels of municipal services within the area. 
 
84 Division of functions and powers between district and local municipalities 
 
(1) A district municipality has the following functions and powers: 

(a) Integrated development planning for the district municipality as a whole, including a framework 
for integrated development plans of all municipalities in the area of the district municipality. 

(b) Potable water supply systems. 
(c) Bulk supply of electricity, which includes for the purposes of such supply the transmission, 

distribution and, where applicable, the generation of electricity. 
(d) Domestic waste water and sewage disposal systems. 
(e) Solid waste disposal sites, in so far as it relates to – 

(i) the determination of a waste disposal strategy; 
(ii) the regulation of waste disposal; 
(iii) the establishment, operation and control of waste disposal sites, bulk waste transfer 

facilities and waste disposal facilities for more than one local municipality in the district. 
(f) Municipal roads that form an integral part of a road transport system for the area of the district 

municipality as a whole. 
(g) Regulation of passenger transport services. 
(h) Municipal airports serving the area of the district municipality as a whole. 
(i) Municipal health services. 
(j) Firefighting services serving the area of the district municipality as a whole, which includes – 

(i) planning, coordination and regulation of fire services; 
(ii) specialised firefighting services such as mountain, veld and chemical fire services; 
(iii) coordination of the standardisation of infrastructure, vehicles, equipment and procedures; 
(iv) training of fire officers. 

(k) The establishment, conduct and control of fresh produce markets and abattoirs serving the area 
of a major proportion of the municipalities in the district. 

APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 
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RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2022/2023APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF A DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 2022/2023 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 
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(l) The establishment, conduct and control of cemeteries and crematoria serving the area of a major 
proportion of municipalities in the district. 

(m) Promotion of local tourism for the area of the district municipality, 
(n) Municipal public works relating to any of the above functions, or any other functions assigned to 

the district municipality. 
(o) The receipt, allocation and, if applicable, the distribution of grants made to the district municipality. 
(p) The imposition and collection of taxes, levies and duties as related to the above functions or as 

may be assigned to the district municipality in terms of national legislation. 
 
(2) A local municipality has the functions and powers referred to in section 83(1), excluding those functions 

and powers vested in terms of Subsection (1) of this section in the district municipality in whose area it 
falls. 
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To be included in final copy… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 2022/2023 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX 

F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2022/2023 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX 

F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 

 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTSAPPENDIX E – RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/2022 
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APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX 

F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX G (II) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCEAPPENDIX G (I) – 

REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES 
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COUNCILLORS OF CAPE WINELANDS DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY [01 JULY 2022 – 30 JUNE 2023] 

 

Title Initials Surname Name 

Cllr EG 
Arendse 

(Resigned 12-12-2022) 
Edgar Gerades 

Ald WM Blom Willem Mathys 

Cllr NM  Bushwana Nomantu Margaret 

Cllr GJ  Carinus Gideon Jakobus 

Cllr D 
Carolissen 

(Appointed 25-05-2023) 
Doreen 

Cllr P  Daniëls Patrick 

Cllr PT 

De Villiers 

(Appointed 13-01-2023) 

(Resigned 24-05-2023) 

Peter Thomas 

Cllr AJ Du Plessis Adriaan Johannes 

Ald R Farao Reginald 

Cllr GJ Fredericks Gerrit Jacobus 

Ald S Goedeman Samuel 

Cllr E Groenewald Esther 

Cllr V Hani Vuyiwe 

Cllr F Jacobs Frances 

Cllr DB Janse Dendeline Babara 

Cllr JJS Januarie JJ Johannes Saolomon 

Ald DD Joubert Donaven David 

Cllr CO Klaaste Claire Olivia 

Cllr SE 
Korabie 

(Appointed 24-03-2023) 
Stephen Edmund 

Cllr J Kriel Jacques 

Ald L 

Landu 

(Appointed 12-08-2022) 

(Resigned 27-2-2023) 

Linda 

Cllr MS Liebenberg Mary-Shiela 

Cllr J Maliti Jacqueline 

APPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX G (II) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCEAPPENDIX G (I) – 

REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX F – 

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX G (II) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCEAPPENDIX G (I) – 

REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCEAPPENDIX F – 

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCEAPPENDIX F – DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

APPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX G (II) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCEAPPENDIX G (I) – 

REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX G (II) – REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX H – CONDITIONAL GRANTS RECEIVED: EXCLUDING MIGAPPENDIX G (II) – 

REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCEAPPENDIX G (I) – REVENUE 

COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE 
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Title Initials Surname Name 

Cllr C Manuel Charles 

Cllr XL Mdemka Xoliswa Leonora 

Ald C Meyer Clara 

Cllr TR  Mpulanyana Thuso Reginald 

Cllr RS Nalumango Ronalda Schivonne 

Cllr DW Nel Daniel Wilhelmus 

Cllr L Ngwane Lulama 

Cllr AJ Pedro Andre Jonathan 

Cllr  WC  Petersen Wilhelmina Christina 

Cllr N Phatsoane Nonzame 

Cllr AM Richards Abdul Moutie 

Ald M Sampson Margaret 

Cllr ND Sauerman Nicolaas Daniel 

Cllr J Smit Johannes 

Cllr M Smit Margaurite 

Ald R 
Smuts 

(Resigned 31-07-2022) 
Rian 

Cllr JHP Steyn Jacobus Hermanus Phillipus 

Cllr D Swart Dirk 

Cllr M Van Stade Marius 

Ald (Dr) H Von Schlicht Helena 

Cllr CF Wilskut Colin Frederick 

Cllr MH Yabo Mzwabantu Hector 
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AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO DRAFT 2022/2023 ANNUAL REPORT FOR MUNICIPAL 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
 
The National Management Air Quality Act (NEM: AQA) places a duty on the different spheres of 
government to prevent pollution that present a threat to health, well- being or the environment, while 
the National Framework for Air Quality Management in South Africa. defining the functions of the 
spheres of government 
 
The district municipality has to fulfil the function of atmospheric emission licensing authority to 
manage legislated requirements in terms of the atmospheric emission licenses issued to Section 21 
listed activities. In addition, the monitor compliance with operations and minimum emission standards 
set for activities declared as Section 23 controlled emitters.   
 
The National Framework assign and delineate responsibilities for the implementation of NEM: AQA to 
the different spheres of government as indicated in Table below: 
 
 (District function highlighted in red) 

Typical AQA governance functions relating to compliance monitoring 

Function AQA Ref. DEA Prov. 
Municipalities 

Metro Dist. Local 

Monitoring potential illegal listed activities. S.51(1)(a) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring compliance with emission standards in respect of the 
manufacture, sale or use any appliance or conducting of an 
activity declared as a controlled emitter. 

S.51(1)(a) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring compliance in respect to reasonable steps to prevent 
the emission of any offensive odour caused by an activity, in 
terms of nuisance or disturbance matters. 

S.51(1)(a) O O PR I PR 

Monitoring compliance in respect to reasonable steps to prevent 
the emission of any offensive odour caused by a listed activity. S.51(1)(a) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring compliance in respect noise caused by an activity, in 
terms of nuisance or disturbance matters. S.51(1)(a) O O PR I PR 

Monitoring compliance in respect noise, caused by a listed 
activity. S.51(1)(a) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring compliance with directives to submit or to implement a 
pollution prevention plan.  S.51(1)(b) PR PR I I I 

Monitoring compliance with directives to submit an atmospheric 
impact report. S.51(1)(c) PR PR PR PR PR 

Monitoring compliance with notification requirements in respect of 
mines that are likely to cease mining operations within a period of 
five years. 

S.51(1)(d) PR I I I I 

Monitoring compliance with conditions or requirements of an 
atmospheric emission licence  S.51(1)(e) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring any application for an atmospheric emission licence, 
or for the transfer, variation or renewal of such a licence to 
ensure that it does not contain false or misleading information  

S.51(1)(f) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring any information provided to an air quality officer to 
ensure that it does not contain false or misleading information.  S.51(1)(g) PR PR PR PR I 

Monitoring compliance with conditions subject to which 
exemption from a provision of the AQA was granted. S.51(1)(h) PR I I I I 



Monitor compliance with the requirements of the National Dust 
Control Regulations, for listed activities. 

S.32 
(regs) 

PR PR PR PR I 

Monitor compliance with the requirements of the National Dust 
Control Regulations for an activity, in terms of nuisance or 
disturbance matters. 

S.32 
(regs) 

I I PR I PR 

Monitor compliance with the emission standards set out for 
activities declared as controlled emitters in terms of section 23. 

S.32 
(regs) 

O O PR PR I 

Monitor compliance with the emission standards set out for 
activities declared as controlled emitters in terms of section 23; 
for facilities that have been issued with an AEL. 

 PR PR PR PR I 

Monitor compliance with the requirements for emission reporting  
according to the regulations developed in terms of section 12(b) 
and (c) in the event such reporting requirements are not 
stipulated in the AEL. 

S12 PR I I I I 

 

Key: PR Principal Responsibility in relevant jurisdiction O Oversight & support I Input 

 
Air quality matters referred to the CWDM air quality officer by the public, CWDM Municipal Health 
Services, Department of Forestry, Fisheries (DFFE) and Environment, Department Environmental 
Affairs, Development Planning (DEA&DP) and local municipalities are investigated and if district 
responsibility to address the matter will be dealt with in terms of the relevant air quality legislation. 
 
The following matters related to district responsibility in terms of air quality management reference in 
the 2022/2023 Annual Report – 
  

- Site visit and input to a proposed project to erect a pilot Zig-zag kiln at Cabrico. 

 

Cabrico are in possession of an atmospheric emission license (AEL), where the license requires 

the license holder to ensure no changes to operations related to AEL to happen without prior 

approval from the Licensing Authority, and/or consultation with the competent authority in 

terms of the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA).  

 

Site visit and meeting between Cabrico, DEA&DP and CWDM on proposed pilot plant to 

produce bricks to establish applicability of NEMA environmental authorisation. DEA&DP gave 

permission to erect plant under condition that AEL authorised throughput and minimum 

emission standards are not exceeded. 

 

- Provide input to Stellenbosch Municipality on a proposed bio-char plant in Jonkershoek. 

 

Stellenbosch Municipality requested input to a public enquiry to establish a bio-char plant. 

With the design capacity of a bio-char plant, such a facility can either be considered a Section 

21 listed activity needing environmental authorisation and a AEL to operate or considered a 

small-scale char plant regulated as Section 23 controlled emitter.  

 

Bio-char plant never materialised. 

 

- Intergovernmental engagement between CWDM, Drakenstein Municipality and DEA&DP to 

address public complaints on offensive odorous emissions. 



Complaints investigation by CWDM and Drakenstein Municipality revealed possible sources of 

public complaints on offensive odours could be Drakenstein Crematorium as Section Listed 

activity and/or continuous burning of Drakenstein Municipality sewage sludge ponds.  

Intergovernmental engagement between CWDM, Drakenstein Municipality and DEA&DP on 

finding solutions to complaints. 

Drakenstein Municipality launched an initiative with their Fire Services to stabilise the 

sewerage ponds underbrush burning. 

CWDM continuous investigation into operations at Drakenstein Crematorium and compliance 

to set AEL requirements led to the CWDM requesting the facility to halt operations for 

formulating a pollution abatement plan to ensure compliance.  

- Site visit and discussions on boiler smoke complaint from Ceres Fruit Processors in Ceres. 

Upon complaints for smoke emanating from Ceres Fruit Processors as Section 23 controlled 

emitter, investigated the complaint during a site visit.  

Found Boiler 3 monitored particulate matter emissions exceeded the emission limits for 

controlled emitters. Specialist boiler investigation revealed damage to the multi cyclone grid 

arrestor and shut down valve escalated the oxygen intake into the boiler resulting in 

particulate matter exceedance.  

The low quality coal distributed require more frequent shoot blowing which contributed to 

visible smoke and frequent loadshedding resulted in boilers scaling down during low request 

for steam, resulting in coal clinkers in the boilers. 

Ceres Fruit Processors rectified the damage to Boiler 3 and only except A-grade coal peas at 

facility. 

- Input to Basic Assessment on proposed residential development in Paarl in the close proximity 

of operational brick manufacture utilizing clamp kilns.  

Provide input towards air quality management on NEMA Basic Assessment process input to 

residential development in Drakenstein Municipality adjacent to facility utilising brick kilns and 

operating under an AEL issued by CWDM.  

- AQO’s input to the Langeberg Town Planning Department wrt a rezoning application from 

Agricultural Zone I To Industrial Zone III for a proposed Manganese Mine. 

Input to Langeberg Municipality on a request for input on air quality management to a 
rezoning application to obtain a mining license through Department of Mineral Resources and 
Energy (DMRE). DMRE would resume the role of atmospheric emission licensing authority 
should the proposed mining activities require an AEL.   
 

The Air Quality Officer’s input to the 2022/2023 Annual Report of the CWDM under Component G: 
Environmental Protection included the assistance to management of air quality matters with the local 
municipalities. The CWDM Air Quality Management Plan emphasised the fundamental need for 
intergovernmental cooperation with the local municipalities for good air quality governance within the 
district. The CWDM maintain the principle of cooperative governance with local municipalities to 
ensure effective and efficient rendering of air quality management within the district wrt air quality 
management matters and complaints at local municipal level. 
 



The CWDM AQO gives input on air quality management into required Environmental Impact 
Assessments processes as well as into town planning applications for rezoning or new developments 
at local municipalities.  
 
Complaints Handling 
 
The handling of air quality complaints appears to be complex but trust the explanation will provide 
more clarity regarding the legal requirements/principles applicable when handling and addressing air 
quality complaints by different spheres of government. The responsibility of addressing matters 
pertaining to air quality complaints differ for the officials from the district and local municipality as 
stated below. 
 
Local Municipality  

- Air Quality Management 
In terms of NEM: AQA and National Framework, the handling and addressing of air quality 
complaints regarding offensive emissions (inclusive of odour, smoke, dust) and noise for all 
non-listed activities within their area of jurisdiction must be addressed by the air quality officer 
of the relevant local authority.  This includes small boiler operations, generators, spray booths, 
pizza ovens, printers, production of rubber products, fires from informal meat trading, 
amongst others. Storage and supply of construction materials to the construction and building 
market, such as sand, aggregates, cement, ready-mix cement with related crusher and 
screening operations, are activities that could possibly contribute to air pollution in the district. 
Noise control under Western Cape Noise Control Regulations for industrial related noise and 
other noise related complaints.  
 
Complaints received by the CWDM for non-listed activities are referred to the air quality officer 
or other appropriate law enforcement officers at the local municipalities for investigation and 
addressing in terms of the NEM: AQA, Western Cape Noise Control Regulations or relevant 
municipal By-laws. 

 
District 

- Air Quality Management 
Offensive emissions and noise caused by the operation of any facility promulgated as Section 
21 listed activity or Section 23 controlled emitter under the NEM: AQA, in terms of the National 
Framework this function resorts under the air quality officer of the relevant district 
municipality. 

- Municipal Health Services 
Only in cases where the complainant/s can provide sufficient and written evidence or where 
sufficient other information is available regarding how the offensive emissions in question 
harm the complainant/s' health and/or well-being and investigated in terms of the National 
Health Act, 2003 (Act no. 61 of 2003), by the relevant district Environmental Health 
Practitioner, can be considered a health nuisance. Such complaints relating to offensive 
emissions under the National Health Act or other applicable legislation under which the 
district municipality is authorised, must be dealt with by that district municipality.  

 
Although all the local municipalities within the CWDM had designated officials as air quality officers 
for their municipalities, only Stellenbosch Municipality has appointed a principal officer for air quality 
and noise control. Due to the lack of specialised technical skills in coordinating matters pertaining to 
air quality management at local municipalities, the CWDM assist these municipalities with 
investigations and/or provide technical input towards complaints related to air quality management. 
 



Complaints indicated within the 2022/2023 CWDM Annual Report included mostly complaints 
received by the CWDM air quality officer that upon investigation were referred to local municipalities 
to solve. Although the CWDM assisted the local municipalities with addressing these complaints, the 
relevant authority to close these complaints upon compliance to relevant legislation.  
 
Compliance Monitoring 
 
All listed activities are visited periodically to assess compliance to their AEL’s and the Section 23 
controlled emitters. CWDM evaluate the annual emission reports from these facilities to verify 
compliance with permitted operating conditions and air emission standards. 
 
Durning this reporting period – 

- Drakenstein Crematorium was requested to halt operations to ensure compliance to AEL 
requirements. 

- De Hoop Steenwerwe requested to submit pollution abatement plan to ensure compliance to 
stricter Minimum Emission Standards set Nationally for Subcategory 5.9 listed activities. 

- Western Cape Provincial Veterinary Laboratory not adhering to Minimum Emission Standards 
halted operations to refurbish incinerator and will recommission only in 2024. 

- Non-compliance to Minimum Emission Standards resulted in ICSA Worcester decommissioned 
one cremator and refurbished second cremator, resulting in compliance to set Minimum 
Emission Standards. 
 

The National Atmospheric Emission Reporting Regulations, in terms of section 12 (b) and (c) read with 
section 53 (aA), (o) and (p)of the Air Quality Act and require all Section 21 listed activities and Section 
23 controlled emitters to annually submit their emission inventory report for the preceding year 
inclusive of all possible pollutants from associated facility, operating data, emissions calculations and 
monitored data to the National Atmospheric Emission Inventory System (NAEIS) on or before 31 March 
each year.  Before the end of August each calendar year, the CWDM air quality officer performs an 
audit on the submitted data in order to establish compliance to the said regulations for each facility. 
During the audit period the CWDM evaluate the correctness of the submitted data and request 
additional data or rectifications on submitted data (Attached Proof of NAEIS Audit concluded August 
2022 by CWDM). 
 
Air Quality Management By-law 
 
The CWDM Air Quality district specific air quality management by-law was drafted in terms of Section 
11 of NEM: AQA which stipulated that a municipality may draft a by-law (Draft CWDM Air Quality By-
law attached) It must be noted that all district air quality management functions and responsibilities 
captured within this draft by-law are already captured within the NEM: AQA and the National 
Framework.    
 
The by-law must be taken to the CWDM municipal council for approval and upon being passed by the 
council, the CWDM must follow the consultative process in terms of Chapter 4 of the Municipal 
Systems Act that allows the public an opportunity to make representations with regard to the proposed 
by-law. 
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